
MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  

December 18, 2018 
9:00 am 

AGENDA 
Audio Recording Times Noted in Red 

(Minutes:Seconds) 

1. Roll Call 00:00

2. Approval of Agenda 01:00 Page 1 

3. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest Issues None

4. Approval of Minutes
a. November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole 03:40 Page 2 

5. Business Arising from Minutes
a. November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole 04:13 Page 2 

6. 9:05 am: Human Resources
a. Service Awards  05:55
b. Excellence in Public Service Awards 14:39

7. Presentations
a. 9:30 am VON Annapolis Valley 25:49
b. 9:50 am The Booker School 41:08

Page 16 
Page 17 

8. Administration
a. Strategic Plan 2018-2021 75:42
b. Municipal Branding/Visual Identity 122:44
c. Community Grant Allocations - Youth Travel Assistance Program 170:35

Page 18 
Page 20 
Page 22 

9. Engineering and Public Works, Lands and Parks Services/Financial Services
a. Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Green: Environmental Quality Grant Priority List

253:30
Page 24 

10. Financial Services
a. Multi-Year Grant Commitments with Completed Projects 283:00 Page 34 

11. Correspondence 297:57
a. 2018-11-29 Minister of Fisheries and Oceans re: Offshore Oil and Gas Drilling
b. 2018-11-30 RCMP District Policing Officer Southwest Nova
c. 2018-12-05 Berwick Gala Days Thank You

Page 43 
Page 45 
Page 46 

12. Board and Committee Reports
a. Annapolis Valley Trails Coalition Board 300:07
b. Audit Committee 300:48
c. Kentville Joint Fire Services Committee 301:28
d. Kings Transit Authority Board 302:03
e. Kings Youth Council 303:32
f. Budget and Finance Committee 304:20
g. Regional Sewer Committee 304:38
h. Kings Point to Point Board  304:50
i. Nova Scotia Federation of Municipalities Board Initiatives Report 305:04
j. Nominating Committee 306:08
k. Fire Services Advisory Committee 329:28
l. Diversity Kings County 330:08

Page 48 
Page 49 
Page 50 
Page 51 
Page 52 
Page 53 
Page 53 
Page 54 
Page 55 

13. Other Business None

14. Comments from the Public None

15. In Camera re: Personnel and Contractual Matters 331:04

16. Adjournment
COTW 2018/12/18 Page 1



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
November 20, 2018 

MINUTES 
 
 Meeting Date  

and Time 
A meeting of the Committee of the Whole was held on Tuesday, 
November 20, 2018 at 9:00 am in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Complex, Kentville, NS. 

1. Attendance All Councillors were in attendance. 

  Results for Roll Call 
For 10 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

  Also in attendance were: 
 Rob Frost, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer 
 Trish Javorek, Director, Community Development (until lunch recess) 
 Janny Postema, Municipal Clerk/Recording Secretary 

2. Approval of Agenda The following amendments were made: 
 Business Expense Policy Amendments Supplementary Report - 

deferred to the next meeting; 
 Board and Committee Reports - Diversity Kings County, Kings Youth 

Council and Lake Monitoring Technical Advisory Committee added; 
 In Camera session - personnel item added. 
 
On motion of Councillor Spicer and Councillor Hirtle, that Committee 
of the Whole approve the November 20, 2018 agenda as amended. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 10 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 2

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/Council/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/agenda/2018-11-20%20COTW%20Agenda%20Package.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      2 November 20, 2018 
 
 

3. Disclosure of Conflict of 
Interest Issues 

No Conflict of Interest issues were declared. 

4. Approval of Minutes 

4a. October 16, 2018 On motion of Councillor Best and Councillor Allen, that the minutes 
of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on October 16, 2018 be 
approved. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 10 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

5. Business Arising from Minutes 

5a. October 16, 2018 
 

Mayor Muttart provided the following updates: 
 Diversity & Outreach Specialist is organizing a joint Social Media 

workshop for any interested Councillors at MOK and the three Towns 
in the new year. 

 Air Show Atlantic 2019 organizers are still waiting for confirmation of 
the Blue Angels performing; if they are successful, the Show will be 
held during the Labour Day Weekend 2019. 

 Policy Analyst will be working on a Single Use Plastics SOP. 

6. Presentations 

6a. Kings County Seniors’ 
Safety Society 

Daisy J. Dwyer, Chair, provided a presentation and responded to 
Councillors’ questions, assisted by Michelle Parker, Program Coordinator 
and Ned Chase, Board Member. 

6b. Valley Regional Enterprise 
Network 

Jennifer Tufts, Senior Economic Development Officer, Strategy and 
Implementation, provided a presentation and responded to Councillors’ 
questions. 

6c. The Flower Cart Group Jeff Kelly, Executive Director, and Leah Phinney, participant, provided a 
presentation and responded to Councillors’ questions. 
 
On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Winsor, that 
Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council direct 
the Mayor to provide a letter of comfort to the Flower Cart Group.  
 
Motion Tabled. 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 3

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/Council/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-10-16%20COTW/minutes/2018-10-16%20COTW%20Minutes.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/Council/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-10-16%20COTW/minutes/2018-10-16%20COTW%20Minutes.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/seniors.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/seniors.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/vren.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/vren.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/flower.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      3 November 20, 2018 
 
 

On motion of Councillor Hodges and Councillor Hirtle, that the 
motion regarding the letter of comfort for the Flower Cart Group be 
tabled. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 1 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best Against 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

7. Administration 

7a. Draft Kings REMO Regional 
Emergency Management 
Plan September 2018 

Dan Stovel, Kings County Regional Emergency Management Coordinator, 
presented the report as attached to the November 20, 2018 Committee of 
the Whole agenda and provided a presentation. 
 
On motion of Councillor Hodges and Councillor Hirtle, that 
Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council adopt 
the Kings REMO Regional Emergency Management Plan dated 
September 2018.  
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 10 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

 Lunch Recess On motion of Councillor Hodges and Councillor Hirtle, that 
Committee of the Whole recess for lunch. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 10 
Against 0 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 4

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/remo.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/remo.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/remo.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      4 November 20, 2018 
 
 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
Committee of the Whole recessed for lunch from 11:55 am - 1:00 pm. 
 
Deputy Mayor Lutz noted that she had to leave for a medical appointment 
and would return around 2:00 pm. 

7b. Community Flag Raising 
Request: Valley Restorative 
Justice Week 

The Municipal Clerk presented the report as attached to the November 20, 
2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 
 
On motion of Councillor Spicer and Councillor Best, that Committee 
of the Whole receive the report on the Community Flag Raising 
Request: Valley Restorative Justice Week as attached to the 
November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda for information 
purposes. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 8 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges - 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
It was noted that Councillor Hodges returned to her seat following the 
voting. 

7c. Hospitality Policy Katarina Sebastian, Policy Analyst, presented the report as attached to the 
November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda and provided a 
presentation. 
 
On motion of Councillor Winsor and Councillor Hirtle, to align 
municipal policy with requirements of Chapter 13 of the Revised 
Statutes of Nova Scotia 2017, that Committee of the Whole 
recommend that Municipal Council adopt the proposed Hospitality 
Policy contained in the November 20, 2018 Request for Decision 
Report and that this motion serve as the seven day notice of 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 5

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/flag.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/flag.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/flag.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/hospitality.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      5 November 20, 2018 
 
 

Council’s intention to approve the Policy per 48(1) Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
Motion Amended. 
 
On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Best, that the 
amount for a gift be increased from $40 to up to $150 including tax. 
 
Amendment Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
An amendment by Councillor Hodges to add provisions regarding 
cannabis to the Policy was moved but not seconded, and was therefore 
not considered. 
 
Amended Motion: 
 
To align municipal policy with requirements of Chapter 13 of the 
Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia 2017, that Committee of the Whole 
recommend that Municipal Council adopt the proposed Hospitality 
Policy contained in the November 20, 2018 Request for Decision 
Report, that the amount for a gift be increased from $40 to up to $150 
including tax and that this motion serve as the seven day notice of 
Council’s intention to approve the Policy per 48(1) Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
Amended Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 6



Committee of the Whole                      6 November 20, 2018 
 
 

7d. Municipal Branding/Visual 
Identity 

Melissa Morrison, Special Project Specialist, presented the report as 
attached to the November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda and 
provided a presentation. 
 
On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Hodges, that 
Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council approve 
the creation of a new visual identity (brand) at a cost not to exceed 
$9,999, to be funded from the Economic Development Advertising 
Budget Line 01-2-262-970. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

7e. Municipal Elections 
Advisory Committee 

Melissa Morrison, Special Project Specialist, presented the report as 
attached to the November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda and 
provided a presentation. 
 
On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Best, that 
Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council direct 
the CAO to create a Municipal Elections Advisory Committee as per 
the Terms of Reference attached to the November 20, 2018 agenda 
package. 
 
Motion Amended. 
 
On motion of Councillor Raven and Councillor Hirtle, to add District 
Boundaries between Polling Divisions and e-Voting. 
 
Amendment Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 7

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/branding.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/branding.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/election.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/election.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      7 November 20, 2018 
 
 

 
Amended Motion: 
 
That Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council 
direct the CAO to create a Municipal Elections Advisory Committee 
as per the Terms of Reference attached to the November 20, 2018 
agenda package and add District Boundaries between Polling 
Divisions and e-Voting. 
 
Amended Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 7 
Against 2 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven Against 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor Against 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

7f. Business Expense Policy 
Amendments - 
Supplementary Report 

Deferred. 

8. Financial Services 

8a. Accountability Report 
(Period Ending September 
30, 2018) 

Katrina Roefs, Financial Analyst, presented the report as attached to the 
November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 
 
On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Spicer, that 
Committee of the Whole receive the Accountability Report (Period 
Ending September 30, 2018) as attached to the November 20, 2018 
agenda for information. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 8

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/account.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/account.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/account.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      8 November 20, 2018 
 
 

8b. 2018/19 Capital Investment 
Plan and Gas Tax Allocation 
to Villages 

Karen Kluska, Financial Analyst, presented the report as attached to the 
November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 
 
On motion of Councillor Best and Councillor Hodges, that Committee 
of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council approve a second 
amendment to the 2018/19 Gas Tax use for Village Projects and the 
2018/19 Five Year Capital Investment Plan attached to the Request 
for Decision dated July 17, 2018, to add the Village of Canning J 
Jordan Sidewalk project with a total budget of $33,789 and Gas Tax 
use of $22,526. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz - 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

8c. Accelerated Payment of 
Kings Mutual Century 
Centre Remaining Grant 

Katrina Roefs, Financial Analyst, presented the report as attached to the 
November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 
 
It was noted that Deputy Mayor Lutz returned at 2:17 pm. 
 
On motion of Councillor Winsor and Councillor Hodges, that 
Committee of the Whole recommend to Council that the grant to the 
Berwick Community Association for phase two construction of the 
Kings Mutual Century Centre not be paid in an accelerated fashion 
and that the existing grant commitment be followed until complete. 
 
Motion Defeated. 

Results 
For 5 
Against 5 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven Against 
District 3 Brian Hirtle Against 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer Against 
District 6 Bob Best Against 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen Against 

 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 9

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/gastax.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/gastax.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/gastax.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/kmcc.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/kmcc.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/kmcc.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      9 November 20, 2018 
 
 

On motion of Councillor Hirtle and Councillor Raven, that Committee 
of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council instruct the CAO to 
arrange for a staff report from Finance indicating the cost and 
consequences of paying out all remaining multi-year grant 
commitments for projects that have been completed. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 7 
Against 3 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges Against 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong Against 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best For 
District 7 Emily Lutz Against 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
It was noted that Councillor Best left at 2:30 pm to go to a medical 
appointment. 

9. Councillor Item 

9a. Climate Change Action 
Initiative: Helping Kings 
County Tax-Payers Access 
Energy Upgrades 

Councillor Raven presented the report as attached to the November 20, 
2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 
 
On motion of Councillor Raven and Councillor Hirtle, that Committee 
of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council direct the CAO to 
begin the necessary work to have a Clean Energy Financing program 
ready to begin April 1, 2019. 
 
Motion Amended. 
 
On motion of Councillor Winsor and Councillor Armstrong, to amend 
the date to “come into effect in the 2019/20 fiscal year”. 
 
Amendment Carried. 

Results 
For 7 
Against 2 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle Against 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer Against 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 10

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/climate.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/climate.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/climate.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/climate.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      10 November 20, 2018 
 
 

 
Amended Motion: 
 
That Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council 
direct the CAO to begin the necessary work to have a Clean Energy 
Financing program ready to come into effect in the 2019/20 fiscal 
year. 
 
Amended Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

  On motion of Councillor Raven and Councillor Hirtle, that Committee 
of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council invite Leon de 
Vreede, Sustainability Planner, Town of Bridgewater, to speak to 
Council about the town’s Clean Energy Financing program and other 
components of the “Energize Bridgewater” initiative that embraces 
economic and social development through clean energy and climate 
change action. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

6c. The Flower Cart Group - 
Letter of Comfort 
(continued) 

On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Raven, to bring 
back the motion regarding The Flower Cart Group - Letter of Comfort. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 11

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/letter.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/letter.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      11 November 20, 2018 
 
 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
On motion of Councillor Winsor and Councillor Armstrong, to amend 
the date in the original letter to April 2019. 
 
Amendment Carried. 

Results 
For 8 
Against 1 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle Against 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
Amended Motion: 
 
That Committee of the Whole recommend that Municipal Council 
direct the Mayor to provide a letter of comfort to the Flower Cart 
Group and to amend the date in the original letter to April 2019. 
 
Amended Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 7 
Against 2 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven Against 
District 3 Brian Hirtle Against 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

   

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 12



Committee of the Whole                      12 November 20, 2018 
 
 

10. Correspondence Mayor Muttart provided an overview of the correspondence as attached to 
the November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 

  On motion of Councillor Allen and Councillor Spicer, that Committee 
of the Whole receive the Correspondence as attached to the 
November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

10a. Acadia Women's Rugby 
Championship Thank You 

For information. 
 

10b. Kings Transit Fare 
Adjustments 

For information. 
 

10c. Valley Hospice Foundation 
Thank You 

For information. 
 

11. Board and Committee Reports 

11a. Annapolis Valley Trails 
Coalition Board 

Councillor Spicer presented the report as attached to the November 20, 
2018 Committee of the Whole agenda.  

11b. Kings Transit Authority Board Councillor Raven provided a verbal update and presented three 
promotional videos. 

11c. Diversity Kings County Deputy Mayor Lutz presented the report, which would be included in the 
agenda package following the meeting. 

11d. Kings Youth Council Deputy Mayor Lutz presented the report, which would be included in the 
agenda package following the meeting. 

11e. Lake Monitoring Technical 
Advisory Committee 

Deputy Mayor Lutz presented the report, which would be included in the 
agenda package following the meeting. 

11f. Regional Sewer Committee Councillor Winsor provided a verbal update. 

11g. Budget and Finance 
Committee 

Councillor Winsor provided a verbal update. 

   

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 13

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/rugby.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/rugby.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/fare.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/fare.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/hospice.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/hospice.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/avtc.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/avtc.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/dkc.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/kyc.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/lakes.pdf
http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/COUNCIL/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-11-20%20COTW/reports/lakes.pdf


Committee of the Whole                      13 November 20, 2018 
 
 

Board and Committee 
Reports 

On motion of Councillor Armstrong and Councillor Hirtle, that 
Committee of the Whole receive the Board and Committee Reports 
as attached to the November 20, 2018 Committee of the Whole 
agenda and as provided verbally. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

12. Other Business There was no other business to come before Committee of the Whole. 

13. Comments from the Public No members of the public were in attendance. 

14. In Camera re: Personnel and 
Contractual Matter  

On motion of Councillor Allen and Councillor Spicer, that Committee 
of the Whole move in camera in accordance with Section 22 (2) (c) 
and (e) Municipal Government Act to discuss a personnel and 
contractual matter. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 
Committee of the Whole moved in camera at 3:50 pm and returned to 
open session at 4:07 pm. 

 Port Williams Funding On motion of Councillor Raven and Councillor Armstrong, that 
Committee of the Whole recommend to Council that $6,500 be 
awarded to the Village of Port Williams to be spent in support of its 
business district.  
 
Motion Carried. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 14



Committee of the Whole                      14 November 20, 2018 
 
 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

15. Adjournment On motion of Councillor Spicer and Councillor Hirtle, there being no 
further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:13 pm. 
 
Motion Carried. 

Results 
For 9 
Against 0 

District  Name Results 
Mayor Peter Muttart For 
District 1 Meg Hodges For 
District 2 Pauline Raven For 
District 3 Brian Hirtle For 
District 4 Martha Armstrong For 
District 5 Paul Spicer For 
District 6 Bob Best - 
District 7 Emily Lutz For 
District 8 Jim Winsor For 
District 9 Peter Allen For 

 

 Approved by:  
 

  ________________ ________________ 
Mayor Peter Muttart Janny Postema 
 Municipal Clerk/Recording Secretary 

   
 

Results Legend 
- Absent 
COI Conflict of interest 
For A vote in favour  
Against A vote in the negative or any 

Councillor who fails or refuses to vote 
and who is required to vote by the 
preceding subsection, shall be 
deemed as voting in the negative. 

 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 15



                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 16



Presentation to Committee of the Whole  
 
 
Subject:  An option for education in the county of Kings      
  
Organization:  The Booker School     
 
Name of Presenter(s):  James Weekes: Head of School   
   
Date:  December 18, 2018     
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Organization:  
 

(Who) Summary of the organization you will represent:  
 
The Booker School is a small independent, not-for-profit organization in the village of Port 
Williams. Since 2012 it has offered a chance for families to join a community with the students 
at the heart of their mission. The school aims to gain accreditation with the International 
Baccalaureate’s Primary Years Programme (Elementary) which offers the scaffolding and 
beginning for the more commonly known Diploma Programme (available at Horton & Kings 
Edgehill). The curriculum is inquiry driven, concept based, and internationally recognized as 
challenging, significant and meaningful. We inspire students to be life-long learners. 
 
Discussion: 
 

(What) Brief summary of the topic you wish to discuss: We wish to present the following topics 
to the Council: 
 
Our Philosophy 
Our Scholarship Opportunities 
Our Makerspace/Design Studio 
Our Service Learning Partners 
 
 
Request: 
 

(Why) Please indicate the purpose of the presentation - is your organization requesting a 
commitment? (funding, letter of support, etc.) Or providing the presentation for information?   
 
We would like to inform local leadership about who we are, what we do and why we do it. 
We would like to rally support for the Makerspace & Design Studio, whether that’s through 
financial aid, materials, or programming. 
 
We will prepare an electronic presentation to share with the committee. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 17



           Municipality of the County of Kings  
           Request for Decision 
 
 

TO Committee of the Whole 
  
PREPARED BY Scott Conrod, CAO 
  
MEETING DATE December 18, 2018 
  
SUBJECT Strategic Plan 2018-2021 
  
 
ORIGIN 

• January, October and November 2017 - Strategic Planning Sessions 
• December 5, 2017 Briefing Report - Strategic Plan Update 
• January and February 2018 - Strategic Planning Sessions 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee of the Whole recommend Municipal Council adopt the Strategic Plan for 2018-2021 as 
attached to the December 18, 2018 agenda package.  

INTENT 

To present a final draft of the Strategic Plan and provide background on how it was developed.   
 
DISCUSSION 

A Strategic Plan will allow the organization to be proactive in working towards Council’s objectives. It will 
provide a clear direction to staff in terms of Key Strategic Priorities (KSPs) and increase operational 
efficiencies through the completion of Core Program Enhancements (CPEs). Below is a graphic of how 
the vision, mission, and values interrelate with operational plans.  

 

Input was gathered and reviewed from a variety of sources including: Kings 2050 umbrella statement and 
public consultation, what was heard on the “door steps” during the 2016 election, and, Council strategic 
planning sessions. Council combined these elements and assembled vision, mission and value 
statements, and additionally generated and prioritized KSPs.  

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 18



           Municipality of the County of Kings  
           Request for Decision 
 
 

Council further completed a ranking (prioritizing) exercise on a number of projects and initiatives. Four 
projects rose to the top under this ranking exercise falling under multiple KSPs.  

KSP initiatives are being advanced under a business-planning model (referred to as a Work Plan) that 
considers the benefits of proposed projects (value propositions) in relation to financial metrics and other 
required key success factors.  

Quarterly updates on progress will ensure accountability and transparency. These quarterly updates will 
provide an opportunity to regularly discuss next steps and introduce changes that may be required to 
advance an initiative.  

Following adoption of the Strategic Plan, outward and inward facing documents will be created to 
communicate the plan to the public and staff. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

• Council will consider Work Plans for projects as part of their annual operational, reserve and 
capital budget deliberations. 

• KSPs will also be considered as part of the grant programs as projects will be required to align 
with one or more of the KSPs. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

• The Vision statement was derived from Kings 2050 community engagement. 
• 2016 election campaigns  

ALTERNATIVES  

• Modify the presented information. 
• Not approve the Strategic Plan. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

• Strategic Plan Alignment will be added to briefing and requests for decision reports to ensure 
items being addressed by Council are aligned to the Strategic Plan. 

• Quarterly Strategic Plan Update Reports will be provided to Council. 

APPENDICES 

• Appendix A: Municipality of the County of Kings Strategic Plan 2018-2021 (presentation)  

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 19

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/Council/Meeting_Documents/COTW/2018/2018-12-18%20COTW/reports/stratplan.pdf


          Municipality of the County of Kings 
          Briefing 
 
 

TO Committee of the Whole 
  
PREPARED BY Melissa Morrison, Strategic Project Specialist 
  
MEETING DATE December 18, 2018 
  
SUBJECT Municipal Branding/Visual Identity 
  
 

ORIGIN 

• October 17, 2017 Council Workshop Discussion 
• Municipal Council Motion December 4, 2018 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee of the Whole receive the Municipal Branding/Visual Identity presentation provided on 
December 18, 2018 as information.  

INTENT 

For Committee of the Whole to receive and give feedback on the design. 
  
DISCUSSION 

The Branding Sub-Committee was struck from the CAO’s Off-Site Signage Working Group to determine a 
branding plan. This Committee first met mid August, and has since compiled information from public 
consultation done during Kings 2050, looked at how other municipal units have undertaken branding, and 
have done general public engagement through social media including a survey (both to staff and the 
public) to provide background data to a design firm. The Committee also put out an Expression of Interest 
(EOI) October 5-October 23, 2018 seeking qualified individuals, groups of individuals or firms to assist in 
the development of a new visual identity. Thirteen EOIs were received and scored. Revolve was the 
successful firm.  

Revolve is a branding and marketing firm located in Halifax, Nova Scotia. Their experience and approach 
to place branding set them apart from the other EOIs received. Their ability to not just create a brand but 
also guide implementation can be demonstrated through their work with Halifax and Kentville. 

On December 10, 2018, Revolve met with the ad hoc group to provide feedback on design options. This 
feedback was used to create the design that will be presented at Committee of the Whole on December 
18, 2018. 

After the design has been received by Committee of the Whole, an online link will be open to collect 
public feedback at: www.countyofkings.ca/identity. Today’s presentation will be made available, as well 
as the digital rendering and fields for individuals to provide comments. This site will be open to receive 
comments from December 18 until 2pm on Friday, December 21, 2018. 

These comments will be shared with Revolve and a final design will be created for Council approval on 
January 8, 2019. 

 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 20

http://www.countyofkings.ca/identity


          Municipality of the County of Kings 
          Briefing 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

• Project costs to date have already been considered as part of the Economic Development 
Advertising Budget Line 01-2-262-970.  

• Future costs will be considered as part of upcoming budget deliberations. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

• The public will be given the opportunity to provide feedback on the proposed concepts December 
18-21, 2018. 

• Background data has been gathered through community feedback from Kings 2050, and more 
recently through social media and a survey to both staff and the public. 

ALTERNATIVES  

• There are no alternatives at this time. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

• Community engagement on proposed design. 
• Council makes a decision on final design. 
• Design implemented as part of new building signage. 
• Phased implementation over time. 

APPROVALS 

Scott Conrod, Chief Administrative Officer December 11, 2018 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 21



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Briefing 

 
 

TO Committee of the Whole  
  
PREPARED BY Nichole Gilbert, Coordinator of Recreation Services 
  
MEETING DATE December 18, 2018 
  
SUBJECT Community Grant Allocations - Youth Travel Assistance Program 
  
 
ORIGIN 

• Operating budget approved May 15, 2018 
• FIN-05-018 Community Grants Policy (the ‘Policy’) 
• Grant deadlines: 

o Youth Travel Assistance Program - October 1st  

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee of the Whole receive the Community Grant Allocations Briefing as attached to the 
December 18, 2018 Committee of the Whole agenda for information. 

INTENT 

Receive for information. 

DISCUSSION 

Youth Travel Assistance 

This fund supports youth teams and individuals in the Municipality who 
have won the right or been selected to participate in events that require 
travel. This fund assists with any type of travel an individual or team 
requires for academic, athletic, and art and cultural pursuits, or conferences 
and summits in which the knowledge gained would build leadership skills 
and present unique growth opportunities for the youth. 

 
Staff have reviewed applications for eligibility and have prepared grant allocations for all requests based 
on the evaluation criteria in the Policy. Per s.5.7 of the Policy, the Chief Administrative Officer has 
authority to approve request for Youth Travel.  
  
The following applications were funded: 
 

Name Event Title Location Amount 
Requested 

Amount Funded 

London Moses Royal Agriculture 
Winter Fair -  

Toronto, ON $400 $400 

Shane Sommer 2018 Rising Stars 
U16 Training 
Camp 

Panorama, BC $600 $600 

Kathryn Aurora 
Gray 

The Starmus 
Festival 

Bern, Switzerland $750 $750 

 
 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 22

http://www.countyofkings.ca/upload/All_Uploads/Council/policies/Finance/FIN-05-018%20Community%20Grants.pdf


Municipality of the County of Kings 
Briefing 

 
It should be noted that four Youth Travel applications were deemed ineligible: 
 

• Canadian Pony Club National Quiz Competition - Applicant exceeds age requirement  
• The African Wildlife Ecology Course - Applicant exceeds age requirement 
•  Servants Heart Ministries - Applicants did not win/be selected for travel 
• Canadian Pony Club Prince Philip Games Competition - Travel happened before application 

closing 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

• Youth Travel Assistance Program (Intake 1 of 2): $4,375 from GL 01-2-265-926 (Budget = 
$10,000) 

• Youth Travel Assistance Program (Intake 2 of 2): $1,750 from GL 01-2-265-926 (Budget = 
$10,000) 

• Remaining $3,875 will be transferred to general surplus 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

• Community engagement was included as part of the Policy development process. 
• Policy FIN-05-018 was posted on the municipal website.  
• There was no specific community engagement initiative as this item originated through the budget 

process. 
• Per s.65(au) Municipal Government Act, a list of grant recipients will be published. 

ALTERNATIVES 

• No alternative allocations are recommended. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

• Staff will advise applicants of allocations and any conditions on funding and forward cheques to 
successful applicants. 

• A list of all successful applicants will be published.  

 
APPROVALS 

Rob Frost, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer December 11, 2018 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 23



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

TO Committee of the Whole 
  

PREPARED BY Karen Kluska, CPA,CA, Financial Analyst 
Tim Bouter, P.Eng., Acting Director, Engineering & Public Works 

  
MEETING DATE December 18, 2018 
  

SUBJECT Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Green: Environmental Quality 
Grant Priority List 

  
 
ORIGIN 

• Correspondence from the Province of Nova Scotia dated December 3, 2018  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
• That Committee of the Whole recommend Municipal Council approve the submission of the 2019 

Sewer Upgrades Project to the Province as our first priority under the ICIP Green Environment Grant 
program. 
 

• That Committee of the Whole recommend Municipal Council approve the submission of the 2019 
Community Infrastructure Development & Upgrades Project to the Province as our second priority 
under the ICIP Green Environment Grant program. 

 
INTENT 

To provide Council with information about the new Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) - 
Green: Environmental Quality program and the request to Municipalities to submit a two-project priority 
list to the Province on or before January 18, 2019. 

 
DISCUSSION 

The ICIP - Green: Environmental Quality program is, as the name implies, focused on projects that 
benefit the environment through one of the following three immediate outcomes: 

• Increased capacity to treat and manage wastewater and storm-water 
• Increased access to potable water (drinking water) 
• Increased capacity to reduce or remediate soil and air pollutants 

In addition to the anticipated environmental benefits, the projects must also provide economic and 
societal benefits, such as: 

• Impact on the overall economy of the region 
• Any expected short or long-term job creation as a result. 

Engineering & Public Works have identified two projects that meet these criteria and that would be shovel 
ready for the spring of 2019. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 24



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

2019 Sewer Upgrades Project $1,400,000: 

This option includes the following:  

• the replacement of two end-of-life lift stations, WE-6 on County Home Road in Waterville, and AT-
5, located on Spencer Road in the Meadowview area of North Kentville,  

• the disposal of the sludge that was removed from the Waterville septage facility in the 2018/19 
fiscal year, and  

• the replacement of 1.275 km of sewer pipe on Chapel Road in the Village of Canning, in 
conjunction with a Village project. 

These two lift stations have reached the end of their useful life, with frequent repairs required. WE-6 was 
built in 1973 and requires complete replacement, including the wet-well, pumps, internal plumbing and 
electrical panel at an estimated cost of $300,000. The concrete in the wet-well is failing, resulting in 
significantly increased risk of environmental contamination. AT-5 was built in 1979, and requires new 
pumps, internal plumbing and electrical panel at an estimated cost of $200,000.  

WE-6 Lift Station 

  
AT-5 Lift Station 

 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 25



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

The pumps will be replaced with variable feed drive pumps, which use less electricity because they only 
pump when levels in the crock trigger a pumping requirement, instead of traditional pumps, which ran 
continuously. The internal plumbing and the electrical panels will be replaced. These upgrades will reduce 
the risk of failure leading to environmental contamination of the surrounding area. In addition, the existing 
electrical panels are a health & safety risk to employees servicing the pumps.  

WE-6 pumps all of the sewage in the Waterville sewer system uphill to the treatment facility. The 
Waterville sewer system serves over 500 households in the Cambridge and Waterville area, as well as 
industrial and institutional customers such as Michelin and the Kings Regional Rehabilitation Centre. AT-5 
serves the Meadowview area of North Kentville, which includes approximately 350 households.  

The Waterville septage facility provides the only licensed dumping location in the Municipality, for septic 
tank pumping services. Roughly half of the residents in the Municipality are served by municipal or village 
sewer services. The remaining approximately 25,000 residents have their own septic tanks, which are 
recommended to be pumped and dumped every three years, in order to ensure efficient operation of their 
septic systems, thereby preventing environmental contamination on a wide scale throughout. Since only 
roughly one third of Municipal residents are served by municipal or village water services, it is vitally 
important to the health of most of our residents that their well water is not contaminated as a result of 
septic tank failure.   

 
In the 2018/19 year, the Municipality spent approximately $300k to have the Waterville Septage facility 
desludged, as it was nearly full, and the biologic activity impaired as a result. The pond liner was repaired 
at the same time, thereby preventing future leakage into the environment. The sludge was bagged and 
the bags placed adjacent to the septage to de-water.  In the 2019/20 year, we expect it will cost $300,000 
to have the dried sludge removed from the facility and taken to a licensed disposal location.  

 

 

 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 26



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

 

The Village of Canning is currently planning a project to replace the water pipes and construct sidewalks 
on Chapel Road in Canning. The Municipality plans to replace the end-of-life sewer pipes at the same 
time, in order to ensure a coordinated and efficient use of resources, while addressing the environmental 
issues associated with the pipe failures evidenced in our video inspection. The estimated cost of the 
sewer portion of the project is $600,000.  

Chapel Road Sewer  

 
 

2019 Community Infrastructure Development & Upgrades Project $1,200,000: 

The second project option encompasses: 

• the replacement of the sewer, installation of a new storm-water system, and the addition of 
sidewalk on Mee Road in North Kentville 

The existing sewer pipes were installed in 1972. The video inspection of these pipes show numerous 
breaks where storm water can infiltrate and wastewater can escape into the surrounding environment. 
The project will also include construction of storm-water drainage pipes, for improved storm-water 
management, currently managed through ditching and run-off. Finally, the project will include the 
construction of new sidewalk and curbing. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 27



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

 
 

Mee Road in North Kentville connects several subdivisions, containing an estimated 725 residents, from 
Middle Dyke Road and Scott Drive to Belcher Street in North Kentville. The NSCC Kingstec Campus is on 
the corner of Mee Road and Belcher Street, and many students live in this area and walk on Mee Road to 
campus every day.  A daycare and public transit bus-stop are also located at the school. A corner grocery 
store, veterinary clinic, several churches and dental offices are also in close proximity on Belcher Street. 
School buses stop on Mee Road to collect the children in these subdivisions. The addition of a sidewalk 
would benefit all of these residents, connect to existing sidewalks and other public transportation options 
on Belcher Street and thereby improve the safety and accessibility of active living options for these 
residents and reducing individual vehicle use and greenhouse gas emissions. In the following year, the 
Municipality plans to add sidewalks on Scott Drive, thereby creating a complete active living loop of 
sidewalk of several km.   

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The new ICIP program provides 40% funding from the Federal Government and 33.33% funding from the 
Provincial Government, for a total of 73.33%, leaving 26.67% to be funded from Municipal taxpayers, 
through capital reserves or long-term debt. Gas Tax is not permitted to be stacked with this program, 
therefore any project approved by the Province would not be eligible to claim Gas Tax.  

If the Province accepted the first project, which is budgeted to cost $1.4 million, the potential grant 
funding would be roughly $1 million, leaving $400,000 to be funded from Capital Reserves. If the Province 
accepted the second project, which is budgeted to cost $1.2 million, the potential grant funding would be 
roughly $880,000, leaving $320,000 to be funded from Capital Reserves. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 28



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

The availability of ICIP grant funding benefits Municipal taxpayers by reducing the amount that they would 
otherwise need to contribute from reserves or long-term debt, and frees up Gas Tax funds to use towards 
other projects benefitting Municipal taxpayers. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

There was no specific community engagement, as this item originated through correspondence. 

ALTERNATIVES  

• No alternatives are recommended 

IMPLEMENTATION 

• The approved priority list will be filed with the Province, together with the other documents 
required as part of the application process. 

APPENDICES 

• Appendix A: E-mail correspondence from the Province of Nova Scotia dated December 3, 2018 

APPROVALS 

Scott Conrod, Chief Administrative Officer December 12, 2018 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 29



From: Tim Bouter
To: Karen Kluska
Subject: FW: Call For Application under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program: Green - Environmental Quality

Stream
Date: December-04-18 9:39:45 AM
Attachments: Climate Lens - General Guidance 2018-05-28.pdf

ICIP Major Project Business Case Guide November 28 2018.docx
ACES_en.pdf
Project Application -Green - Environmental Quality - Dec 3 2018 final.pdf
Environmental Quality Project Submission Guide Annexes - 3 DEC 2018 .pdf

From: Scott Conrod 
Sent: December-03-18 3:24 PM
To: Tim Bouter <tbouter@countyofkings.ca>
Subject: FW: Call For Application under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program: Green -
Environmental Quality Stream

From: Waller-Hebb, Aileen <Aileen.Waller-Hebb@novascotia.ca> 
Sent: December-03-18 3:22 PM
To: Port Williams <villageoffice@ns.aliantzinc.ca>; Village of Bible Hill <chris@biblehill.ca>; Village of
Canning <village.canning@xcountry.tv>; Village of Chester <office@villageofchester.org>; Mike
McCleave <mmccleave@kingstonnovascotia.ca>; Village of Lawrencetown
<villageclerk@lawrencetownnovascotia.ca>; Village of New Minas <aprile@newminas.com>;
stpeters.village@stpeterscable.com; Bak, Douglas <dbak@stewiacke.net>; Barr, Gregory
<cao@annapolisroyal.com>; Beaudin, Erin <ebeaudin@wolfville.ca>; Boyd, Jennifer
<jboyd@town.middleton.ns.ca>; Brian Cullen - County of Pictou (brian.cullen@munpict.ca)
<brian.cullen@munpict.ca>; Brooks, Victoria <victoria@district.yarmouth.ns.ca>; Bugley, Rennie
<rbugley@cumberlandcounty.ns.ca>; Carrol, Barry <bcarroll@modg.ca>; Chris McNeill
(cmcneill@regionofqueens.com) <cmcneill@regionofqueens.com>; Scott Conrod
<sconrod@countyofkings.ca>; Coutinho, Louis <lcoutinho@town.windsor.ns.ca>; Crowder, Tammy
<tammy.crowder@bridgewater.ca>; Davis, Jim <Jim.Davis@townofmulgrave.ca>; Dolter, Mike
<mdolter@truro.ca>; Don Regan <dregan@town.berwick.ns.ca>; Doyle, Terry
<tdoyle@townofph.ca>; Dube, Jacques <dubej@halifax.ca>; Ferguson, John
<jferguson@annapoliscounty.ca>; Fraser, Linda <lfraser@municipality.digby.ns.ca>; Rob Frost
<rfrost@countyofkings.ca>; Greg Herrett <gherrett@amherst.ca>; Gushue, Jeffrey
<cao@townofyarmouth.ca>; Heide, Dylan <dylan.heide@townofmahonebay.ca>; Higdon, Susan
<susan.higdon@stellarton.ca>; Horne, Glenn <glenn.horne@antigonishcounty.ns.ca>; Jones,
Jennifer <clerk@clarksharbour.com>; Jones, Rachael <cao@town.oxford.ns.ca>; Lawrence, Jeffrey
<jlawrence@townofantigonish.ca>; Laycock, Martin <mlaycock@westhants.ca>; Leanne
Maceachern (leanne.maceachen@countyvictoria.ns.ca) <leanne.maceachen@countyvictoria.ns.ca>;
MacDonald, Keith <Keith.macdonald@invernesscounty.ca>; MacDonald, Lisa
<lisa.macdonald@newglasgow.ca>; MacEwan, Tom <tom.macewan@municipalityofshelburne.ca>;
MacIntyre, Kent <kmacintyre@richmondcounty.ca>; Malloy, Kevin <kmalloy@modl.ca>; Marvin
MacDonald - District of St. Mary's (marvin.macdonald@saint-marys.ca) <marvin.macdonald@saint-
marys.ca>; Muise, Alain <admuise@munargyle.com>; Nolan, Connie <cnolan@easthants.ca>;

Appendix A

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 30

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TBOUTER
mailto:kkluska@countyofkings.ca
mailto:Aileen.Waller-Hebb@novascotia.ca
mailto:villageoffice@ns.aliantzinc.ca
mailto:chris@biblehill.ca
mailto:village.canning@xcountry.tv
mailto:office@villageofchester.org
mailto:mmccleave@kingstonnovascotia.ca
mailto:villageclerk@lawrencetownnovascotia.ca
mailto:aprile@newminas.com
mailto:stpeters.village@stpeterscable.com
mailto:dbak@stewiacke.net
mailto:cao@annapolisroyal.com
mailto:ebeaudin@wolfville.ca
mailto:jboyd@town.middleton.ns.ca
mailto:brian.cullen@munpict.ca
mailto:brian.cullen@munpict.ca
mailto:victoria@district.yarmouth.ns.ca
mailto:rbugley@cumberlandcounty.ns.ca
mailto:bcarroll@modg.ca
mailto:cmcneill@regionofqueens.com
mailto:cmcneill@regionofqueens.com
mailto:sconrod@countyofkings.ca
mailto:lcoutinho@town.windsor.ns.ca
mailto:tammy.crowder@bridgewater.ca
mailto:Jim.Davis@townofmulgrave.ca
mailto:mdolter@truro.ca
mailto:dregan@town.berwick.ns.ca
mailto:tdoyle@townofph.ca
mailto:dubej@halifax.ca
mailto:jferguson@annapoliscounty.ca
mailto:lfraser@municipality.digby.ns.ca
mailto:rfrost@countyofkings.ca
mailto:gherrett@amherst.ca
mailto:cao@townofyarmouth.ca
mailto:dylan.heide@townofmahonebay.ca
mailto:susan.higdon@stellarton.ca
mailto:glenn.horne@antigonishcounty.ns.ca
mailto:clerk@clarksharbour.com
mailto:cao@town.oxford.ns.ca
mailto:jlawrence@townofantigonish.ca
mailto:mlaycock@westhants.ca
mailto:leanne.maceachen@countyvictoria.ns.ca
mailto:leanne.maceachen@countyvictoria.ns.ca
mailto:Keith.macdonald@invernesscounty.ca
mailto:lisa.macdonald@newglasgow.ca
mailto:tom.macewan@municipalityofshelburne.ca
mailto:kmacintyre@richmondcounty.ca
mailto:kmalloy@modl.ca
mailto:marvin.macdonald@saint-marys.ca
mailto:marvin.macdonald@saint-marys.ca
mailto:marvin.macdonald@saint-marys.ca
mailto:admuise@munargyle.com
mailto:cnolan@easthants.ca



Infrastructure Canada


Climate Lens
General guidance


Version 1.1 - June 1, 2018







 


 


2        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Note to Readers:  


The guidance in this document is evergreen – meaning it will be periodically updated, as 


appropriate, based on lessons learned, best practices and evaluation of ongoing and 


completed assessment activities.  Please ensure you consult the Infrastructure Canada 


website to ensure you have the most recent version of this guidance before undertaking a 


Climate Lens assessment. 


Infrastructure Canada would like to acknowledge the invaluable contribution of expertise 


and support provided by Environment and Climate Change Canada in the preparation of 


this guide. Their guidance and support will also help ensure that future iterations of this 


guide will be useful in assisting infrastructure owners and operators in assessing the 


greenhouse gas emissions and climate resilience of proposed infrastructure projects.  







 


 


3        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Contents 
1. INTRODUCTION 5 


1.1 What is the Climate Lens? 5 


1.2 Why implement a Climate Lens? 5 


1.3 Applicable Programs and Project Thresholds 6 


1.4 Potential Equivalency of Provincial and Territorial Assessment Approaches 7 


 


2. GREENHOUSE GAS MITIGATION ASSESSMENT 8 


2.1 Validation by a Qualified Party 8 


2.2 Relevant Greenhouse Gases 9 


2.3 Assessment Boundary 9 


2.4 Timescale / Forecast Window 10 


2.5 Required Information and General Instructions 11 


2.6 Additional Supports for Applicants 16 


 


3. CLIMATE CHANGE RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT 17 


3.1 Validation by a Qualified Party 17 


3.2 Scope and Boundaries of the Assessment 17 


3.3 Timescale of the Assessment 17 


3.4 Required Risk Management Framework 18 


3.4.1 Guiding Methodology 18 


3.5 Determining the Level of Risk Analysis Required 18 


3.6 Required Information and Data Points 20 


3.6.1 Identification and assessment of climate change risk(s) 21 


3.6.2 Analysis of risk, consequence, likelihood, vulnerability 21 


3.6.3 Resilience measures to be taken 21 


3.6.4 Description of evidence base 22 


 


4. VALIDATION AND QUALITY CONTROL 23 


 


5. WHEN AND HOW TO  SUBMIT ASSESSMENTS TO INFRASTRUCTURE CANADA 24 


  







 


 


4        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex A – Sample Table of Contents for GHG Mitigation Assessments 25 


Annex B – Attestation Template for GHG Mitigation Assessments 27 


Annex C – Global Warming Potentials for GHG Mitigation Assessments 28 


Annex D – Sample Table of Contents for Resilience Assessments 30 


Annex E – Attestation Template for Resilience Assessments 31 


Annex F – Climate Change Resilience Principles 32 


Annex G – Methodologies and Resilience Assessment Steps 34 


Annex H – Resources for Resilience Assessments 41 


Annex I – Glossary 41 


 


 


 


  







 


 


5        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


1. INTRODUCTION  
The purpose of this document is to provide guidance to project proponents who may need to 


undertake a Climate Lens assessment. The objectives of this guidance are to:  


1. Explain the purpose of the Climate Lens and which projects are subject to the 


requirement; 


2. Describe the process for conducting the greenhouse gas (GHG) mitigation assessment 


component of the Climate Lens; 


3. Describe the process for conducting the climate change resilience assessment 


component of the Climate Lens; and 


4. Provide information on when and how to submit completed assessments to Infrastructure 


Canada.  


The guidance in this document is evergreen – meaning it will be periodically updated to remain 


aligned with advancing assessment methodologies.  Please ensure you consult the Infrastructure 


Canada website to ensure you have the most recent version of this guidance before undertaking 


a Climate Lens assessment. 


1.1 What is the Climate Lens? 


The Climate Lens is a horizontal requirement applicable to Infrastructure Canada’s Investing in 


Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP), Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund (DMAF) and Smart 


Cities Challenge. It has two components: the GHG mitigation assessment, which will measure the 


anticipated GHG emissions impact of an infrastructure project, and the climate change resilience 


assessment, which will employ a risk management approach to anticipate, prevent, withstand, 


respond to, and recover from a climate change related disruption or impact. 


   


Individual proponents could be asked to undertake one or both types of assessment, depending 


on the program, funding stream, and the estimated total eligible cost of the project (see 1.3).  


1.2 Why implement a Climate Lens? 


The Climate Lens will provide meaningful insight into the climate impacts of individual projects, 


encourage improved choices by project planners consistent with shared federal, provincial, and 


territorial objectives articulated in the Pan-Canadian Framework for Clean Growth and Climate 


Change—including a commitment to reduce Canada’s GHG emissions by 30% below 2005 levels 


by 2030—and provide a substantive eligibility test for projects funded through the Climate Change 


Mitigation and Adaptation, Resilience and Disaster Mitigation sub-streams of the Investing in 


Canada Infrastructure Program. The Climate Lens is intended to incent behavioral change and 


consideration of climate impacts into the planning of infrastructure projects with a view to 


implementing Canada’s mid-century goals of a clean growth low-carbon economy. The 


prescribed assessments will encourage many project proponents to incorporate climate change 


considerations into their project development process for the first time. By systematically evaluating 


each project’s GHG emissions and/or resilience to the impacts of climate change, project 







 


 


6        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


planners will become increasingly familiar with key considerations, risks, and mitigation strategies, 


which will facilitate better decision making in both current and future infrastructure projects 


 


Assessments prepared under the Climate Lens will also enable the Government of Canada and 


proponents to better communicate the anticipated outcomes of federally-supported 


infrastructure projects to Canadians with respect to climate change efforts. 


1.3 Applicable Programs and Project Thresholds 


The chart below identifies the various programs, streams and sub-streams to which the Climate 


Lens applies, and lists the project value thresholds at which each assessment will be required. 
 


Table 1. Thresholds for Climate Lens requirements 


Programs and Streams GHG Mitigation Assessment 
Climate Change Resilience 


Assessment 


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (Integrated Bilateral Agreements) 


Green Infrastructure – Climate 


Change Mitigation sub-stream 


 


All projects* 


(Demonstrates alignment with 


sub-stream outcome) 
 


If total eligible project costs are 


$10M or greater 


Green Infrastructure – 


Adaptation, Resilience and 


Disaster Mitigation sub-stream 


If total eligible project costs are 


$10M or greater 


 


All projects 


(Demonstrates alignment with 


sub-stream outcome) 
 


Other streams and Sub-streams 


(Environmental Quality, Public 


Transit, Community, Culture and 


Recreation, Rural and Northern 


Communities) 


If total eligible project costs are 


$10M or greater 


If total eligible project costs are 


$10M or greater 


National Programs 


Disaster Mitigation and 


Adaptation Fund 
All projects All projects 


Smart Cities Challenge  


If total eligible project costs are 


$10M or greater and project is a 


climate change mitigation 


project 


If total eligible project costs are 


$10M or greater and project is a 


climate change adaptation, 


resilience or disaster mitigation 


project 
*Electricity projects that have already completed a GHG emissions assessment for Natural Resources Canada as part of 


the Regional Electricity Cooperation and Strategic Infrastructure (RECSI) initiative are not required to complete a second 


assessment and may submit the existing report to satisfy the Climate Lens GHG Mitigation assessments requirement. 


 


The costs of undertaking assessment(s) will be deemed eligible for cost-sharing for all projects 


approved for federal funding.  


 


Should proponents with projects beneath the threshold wish to undertake a mitigation and/or 


resilience assessment, these costs would also be deemed eligible for cost-sharing if the project is 


approved for federal funding, as long as the assessment conforms to the requirements of the 


Climate Lens and is submitted to Infrastructure Canada at the time of application.   







 


 


7        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


In light of the capacity limitations faced by some applicants, (e.g., small communities with a 


population of 5,000 or less) threshold exemptions could be granted by the Minister of Infrastructure 


and Communities on a case-by-case basis. Exemptions may also be considered if the infrastructure 


asset is unlikely to involve opportunities to reduce GHG emissions nor likely to be at risk from climate 


change impacts. Assessments will remain mandatory for all project proponents applying to the two 


climate-focused sub-streams. 


 


In the case of the Smart Cities Challenge, finalists will be required to apply the Climate Lens if their 


project is a GHG mitigation or a climate change resilience project. For the Disaster Mitigation and 


Adaptation Fund, only projects submitting full applications will be required to apply the Climate 


Lens. There is no assessment requirement at the Expression of Interest stage for either program.    


 


Note that thresholds listed above could be subject to revision as part of a future update to the 


Climate Lens guidance. 


1.4 Potential Equivalency of Provincial and Territorial Assessment Approaches 


Where provinces and territories have developed an equivalent approach to assessing GHG 


emissions and mitigation opportunities, and/or asset resilience to the impacts of climate change, 


Infrastructure Canada may choose to deem these approaches as equivalent as the Climate Lens.  


However, in all cases, applicants will be required to supply the information prescribed in the pages 


that follow, and to share the assessment reports with Infrastructure Canada in their entirety.  







 


 


8        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


2. GREENHOUSE GAS 


MITIGATION ASSESSMENT 
Section 2 describes the general parameters and methodological approach to project level-


greenhouse gas (GHG) mitigation assessment. The general guidance provided here is designed to 


complement ISO 14064 Part Two: Specification with Guidance at the Project Level for 


Quantification, Monitoring, and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission Reductions or Removal 


Enhancements, which is the required standard for GHG mitigation assessments under the Climate 


Lens. Should applicants require further direction or clarity on specific procedures and calculation 


methods, the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting is recommended as a robust and rigorous 


supplementary resource. More detailed sector-specific technical guidance, including sample 


templates, will be prepared and shared with applicants in the coming months. The forthcoming 


sector-specific technical guidance is intended to clarify methods and reduce the level of effort 


required to complete GHG mitigation assessments. The sector-specific guidance will also aim to 


increase the consistency of results across individual assessments.  


 


Assessors should be aware that the ISO 14064-2 standard is currently under revision by a technical 


committee led by the International Organization for Standardization. A timeline for publication of 


the updated standard is not available at the time of writing. 


 


To be accepted by Infrastructure Canada, the assessment must be conducted or validated by a 


qualified assessor, as described in section 2.1.  Sections 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4 set out the assessment 


parameters, including relevant GHGs, the assessment boundary, and the timescale for the 


assessment. Section 2.5 lays out the required information and relevant general instructions. 


2.1 Validation by a Qualified Party 


Acceptable mitigation assessments must be conducted, or at a minimum validated, by a qualified 


assessor (i.e., a professional engineer or a GHG accounting professional certified under the ISO 


14064-3 or 14065 standard1). In all instances, the qualified assessor or validator will need to provide 


an attestation confirming that the assessment conforms to the general and sector-specific 


technical guidance provided by Infrastructure Canada and aligns with the relevant assessment 


standard (i.e., ISO 14064-2 and, if chosen, the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting). This 


attestation must be submitted at the time of application, and is required in order to receive 


funding approval from Infrastructure Canada (see Section 5 for additional information on how to 


submit your assessment). As noted in section 1, for approved projects, costs associated with 


Climate Lens assessments will be retroactively eligible for reimbursement. 


 


  


                                                             
1 Note that the list of certified assessors made available by the Standards Council of Canada is not an exhaustive listing of all 
accredited service providers operating in Canada. For instance, some multinational entities may instead opt to pursue 
accreditation through the American National Standards Institute.  



https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

http://www.ghgprotocol.org/sites/default/files/ghgp/standards/ghg_project_accounting.pdf

https://www.iso.org/news/2015/07/Ref1988.html

https://www.scc.ca/en/accreditation/greenhouse-gas

https://www.scc.ca/en/accreditation/greenhouse-gas

https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

http://www.ghgprotocol.org/sites/default/files/ghgp/standards/ghg_project_accounting.pdf

https://www.ansi.org/Accreditation/environmental/greenhouse-gas-validation-verification/Default





 


 


9        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


2.2 Relevant Greenhouse Gases 


Mitigation assessments will consider the same greenhouse gases tracked through Canada’s 


National Inventory Report. Specific gases could be excluded if deemed insignificant and 


appropriately rationalized through the assessment report. Further guidance on the significance of 


individual GHGs will be provided through forthcoming sector-specific technical guidance, as 


appropriate.  
 


Emissions must be converted into CO2 equivalent (CO2e) using the Global Warming Potentials 


identified in the most up-to-date version of Canada’s National Inventory Report (see Annex C) and 


reported in tonnes (t), kilotonnes (kt), or megatonnes (Mt).   


 


2.3 Assessment Boundary 


The Assessment Boundary defines the scope of the mitigation assessment. Mitigation assessments 


are to consider all direct and all significant indirect emissions and emissions reductions linked to the 


project.  


 


 Direct Emissions: Emissions or removals from GHG sources or sinks that are owned or 


controlled by the proponent. At the GHG inventory level, direct emissions are also 


commonly referenced as Scope 1 emissions. 


 


 Indirect Emissions: Emissions or removals that are of consequence to the project, but occur 


at GHG sources or sinks not owned or controlled by the proponent. For example, reduced 


electricity consumption might be considered a secondary effect in some infrastructure 


projects. Indirect emissions can include Scope 2 emissions as well as some Scope 3 emissions 


as defined under the GHG Protocol.  


 


Note that for reporting purposes, any emissions reductions achieved outside of Canada must be 


segregated and reported separately, as they will not contribute to the program’s national GHG 


reduction target. Further, international emissions reductions and purchased offsets or carbon 


credits will not be considered when determining the eligibility of projects submitted under the 


Climate Change Mitigation sub-stream (these projects are meant to set Canada on a path to a 


low-carbon future, and must therefore demonstrate an overall reduction in emissions within 


Canada).  


 
  



http://unfccc.int/national_reports/annex_i_ghg_inventories/national_inventories_submissions/items/10116.php

http://unfccc.int/national_reports/annex_i_ghg_inventories/national_inventories_submissions/items/10116.php





 


 


10        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Table 2. Sample Crosswalk of Project-Level Effects to Inventory Emissions 
DIRECT EFFECTS INDIRECT EFFECTS 


Scope 1 Scope 2 Scope 3 


 Water or wastewater treatment 


processes 


 Generation of electricity 


 Operation of rolling stock 


 Ice plant operations in a 


hockey or curling rink 


 On-site remediation and/or 


construction activities 


 Solid waste disposal 


 Production of biogas 


 Purchased electricity 


 Purchased natural gas 


 Purchased steam 


 Purchased heating / cooling 


(e.g., from an adjacent 


building) 


Upstream Effects 


 Expected shifts in fuel sources 


for electricity  


 Inbound transport of solid waste 


Downstream Effects 


 Downstream electricity 
consumption 


 Impacts on traffic / personal 


vehicle travel 


 Biosolids transport and 


distribution effects (e.g. 


reduced local use of nitrogen 


fertilizer) 


 Impacts on land use / 


population density 


 


Further information and examples of significant secondary or indirect effects, and how to identify 


them in the assessment report will be made available through forthcoming sector-specific 


technical guidance.  
 


Applicants who wish to employ a broader assessment boundary than that prescribed by 


Infrastructure Canada are welcome to do so, but should discuss the associated potential for 


additional assessment costs with their professional service provider (if applicable).  Depending on 


the type of infrastructure being assessed, assessors may judge it useful to expand the scope of the 


assessment to include additional indirect emissions in order to fully capture a project’s reductions 


potential. For example, the introduction of a new public transit line could produce GHG reductions 


through modal shift and/or long-term changes in population density and land use patterns.  


 


2.4 Timescale / Forecast Window 


Mitigation assessments will assess each project across the construction (excluding supply chain) 


and operations and maintenance (O&M) phases. The assessment should not seek to estimate 


construction emissions associated with the asset’s future major rehabilitative maintenance or 


decommissioning. 


 


Assessments should include estimates of a project’s cumulative construction and O&M emissions 


over the useful lifespan of the infrastructure, i.e., annual emissions for each year from the start year 


of the project to the end of its useful life.   


 


Specific reporting in the assessment’s Executive Summary will be required in connection to the year 


2030 to align with Canada’s GHG reduction commitment under the Paris Agreement.  


 


As noted above, quantification of supply chain emissions is not required given the complexities 


associated with both sourcing and quantifying these emissions. However, applicants wishing to 


highlight the benefit of green procurement strategies and/or those interested in pursuing a more 







 


 


11        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


robust analysis are welcome to assess these elements. Where applicable, interested applicants 


should discuss the potential for additional costs with their professional service provider.  
 


2.5 Required Information and General Instructions 


The following information constitutes the mandatory reporting requirements associated with 


mitigation assessments. Project-level emissions must be calculated under a baseline scenario as 


well as the project scenario, and the difference between these two scenarios will establish the net 


increase or reduction in emissions. The high-level results identified below should be explicitly 


referenced in an Executive Summary of the mitigation assessment when it is submitted to 


Infrastructure Canada. This will facilitate the online application process, where this information will 


be required. The underlying assumptions and data used to calculate emissions and prepare 


estimates must be documented in the body of the assessment report.  


 


A sample table of contents for GHG mitigation assessments can be found at Annex A. 


 
i. Baseline GHG emissions calculations  


 


Assessments should establish a baseline or business-as-usual (BAU) emissions trajectory which will 


form the baseline scenario representative of the most probable emissions in the absence of the 


proposed project (this is sometimes also known as a ‘counterfactual’ scenario). This baseline 


depicts the emissions trajectory in the absence of the proposed project. This baseline and the 


asset’s estimated emissions should be tailored to consider the relevant provincial or territorial 


energy mix (e.g., electricity generation sources). This information is available through Natural 


Resources Canada and/or the National Energy Board and will also be highlighted in the 


forthcoming sector-specific technical guidance. The BAU baseline must be calculated 


cumulatively (year-by-year) for the asset’s full useful life, as well as in the year 2030. The net 


increase or decrease in emissions linked to the proposed project will be calculated against this 


baseline.   


 


The assessment’s Executive Summary should expressly identify the BAU baseline emissions in 


2030 as well as cumulative BAU emissions over the asset’s lifespan. 


 


Further guidance on the development of an emissions baseline is available in ISO 14064-2 


and/or the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting.  


 


Key considerations linked to the development of a BAU baseline could include: 


 


o How to define the geographic area impacted by the project and its  


emissions/reductions; 


 


o Expectations regarding the infrastructure’s immediate and future service outputs; 


 


o Whether the BAU enables the assessment to capture emission reductions linked to 


new process and/or system efficiencies implemented under the project scenario;  


 



https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

http://www.ghgprotocol.org/sites/default/files/ghgp/standards/ghg_project_accounting.pdf





 


 


12        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


o Whether the selected BAU scenario represents the most conservative viable 


alternative to the project; and 


 


o Whether there are barriers to a ‘do-nothing’ alternative, such as the introduction of 


new mandatory performance standards, which would inform the baseline. This is 


particularly relevant to retrofit projects. 


 


Assessors will often be required to exercise professional judgement in addressing these 


considerations. Forthcoming sector-specific technical guidance will also provide 


additional details on the development of BAU scenarios for different asset types. 


 


Baseline and project calculations should employ emissions factors identified by the 


relevant provincial or territorial government (when available), or in Canada’s most recent 


National Inventory Report. Specific emission factors relevant to individual sectors/asset 


types will be identified through the forthcoming sector-specific technical guidance. 


Should additional emissions factors be required, these could be sourced from the 


emissions factor database maintained by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 


Change (IPCC) and thoroughly vetted to ensure they are appropriate to the specific asset 


/ infrastructure category and the Canadian context. The selection of any additional or 


alternative emissions factors must be rationalized in the assessment to demonstrate their 


impartiality and appropriateness.  


 


In addition to baseline scenario emissions, these calculations would consider any relevant 


GHG removals, i.e., the calculated mass of GHGs removed from the atmosphere over a 


defined period of time through storage or a carbon sink. An example of a carbon sink 


might be a wetland or forest. 
 


Table 3. Sample Calculations Table for Baseline Scenario Emissions and Removals 


Year 
Total net baseline scenario 


emissions (A) 


Total net baseline scenario 


removals (B) 


Total net baseline emissions 


and removals (A-B) 


Year 1    


Year 2    


Year 3    


Year 4    


Year …    


Lifespan 


Totals 
   


ii. Asset’s estimated GHG emissions calculations 


 


Assessments are required to calculate the asset’s estimated carbon emissions based on the 


assessment boundary and timescale outlined above.  
 


Total emissions over the asset’s expected lifespan, as well as total emissions in the year 2030, 



http://unfccc.int/national_reports/annex_i_ghg_inventories/national_inventories_submissions/items/10116.php

http://www.ipcc-nggip.iges.or.jp/EFDB/main.php





 


 


13        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


must be highlighted in the assessment’s Executive Summary.  


 


The body of the report must detail emissions calculations for each calendar year, and 


provide the cumulative total. The assessment should also explicitly identify the GHG impact 


of the construction phase relative to overall lifespan emissions (however, as noted previously 


quantification of supply chain emissions is not required).  


 


The quantification process should adhere to the following principles identified in both the 


ISO 14064-2 standard and the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting: 


 


 Relevance: The levels of accuracy and uncertainty associated with the 


quantification process should reflect the intended use of the data and the objectives 


of the project. As such projects in the Climate Change Mitigation sub-stream should 


strive for higher levels of accuracy and lower levels of uncertainty.  


 


 Completeness: All primary and all significant secondary effects should be estimated. 


 


 Transparency: All assumptions, methods, calculations, and associated uncertainties 


should be explained.  


 


 Accuracy: Estimates and calculations should be unbiased, and uncertainties should 


be reduced as far as practical. Calculations should be conducted in a manner that 


minimizes uncertainty. 


 


 Conservativeness: Where there are uncertainties, the values used to quantify GHG 


emissions should err on the side of underestimating potential reductions. 


 


 Consistency: All data, methods, criteria, and assumptions shall be applied 


consistently to ensure meaningful comparisons between the baseline and project 


scenario.  


 


Assessors will often be required to exercise professional judgement in applying these 


principles. Further general guidance on emissions calculations is available in                 ISO 


14064-2 and/or the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting. Forthcoming sector-specific 


technical guidance will also provide additional details on the development of emissions 


estimates for different asset types.  


 


Asset emissions calculations should employ emissions factors identified by the relevant 


provincial or territorial government (when available), or in Canada’s most recent National 


Inventory Report. Specific emission factors relevant to individual sectors/asset types will be 


identified through the forthcoming sector-specific technical guidance.  


 


Should additional emissions factors be required, these could be sourced from the 


emissions factor database maintained by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 


Change (IPCC) and thoroughly vetted to ensure they are appropriate to the specific asset 


/ infrastructure category and the Canadian context. The selection of any additional or 


alternative emissions factors must be rationalized in the assessment to demonstrate their 


impartiality and appropriateness.    



https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

http://www.ghgprotocol.org/sites/default/files/ghgp/standards/ghg_project_accounting.pdf

https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

https://www.iso.org/standard/38382.html

http://www.ghgprotocol.org/sites/default/files/ghgp/standards/ghg_project_accounting.pdf

http://unfccc.int/national_reports/annex_i_ghg_inventories/national_inventories_submissions/items/10116.php

http://unfccc.int/national_reports/annex_i_ghg_inventories/national_inventories_submissions/items/10116.php

http://www.ipcc-nggip.iges.or.jp/EFDB/main.php





 


 


14        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


A note on capturing efficiencies: 


 


While it is not required, applicants may benefit from calculating their asset’s GHG 


emissions per unit of service in the year 2030, which would provide a more complete view 


of the project’s climate benefits. For instance, many new assets might provide additional 


units of service and/or perform their functions more efficiently than under the BAU 


scenario. Such a calculation would therefore measure project emissions relative to the 


service or public benefit produced (e.g., annual GHG emissions per cubic meter of 


wastewater treated). This type of metric may be especially helpful in contextualizing 


emissions in infrastructure projects where an overall reduction in emissions is not expected 


relative to the BAU scenario. 
 


    Table 4. Sample Calculations Table for Project Scenario Emissions and Removals 


Year 
Total project scenario 


emissions (A) 


Total project scenario 


removals (B) 


Total net project emissions 


and removals (A-B) 


Year 1    


Year 2    


Year 3    


Year 4    


Year …    


Lifespan 


Totals 
   


 * In-Canada effects and international effects must be reported separately 


  


iii. Net increase/reduction in GHG emissions  


 


The Executive Summary must highlight the net increase or net reduction in GHG emissions, 


calculated cumulatively, relative to the business-as-usual emissions baseline in the year 


2030 and over the full anticipated lifespan of the asset.  
 


In select projects, and all projects under the Climate Change Mitigation sub-stream, this 


calculation will identify GHG reductions, which are defined under the GHG Protocol as a 


decrease in GHG emissions or an increase in removal or storage of GHGs from the 


atmosphere, relative to baseline emissions.  


    


    


  







 


 


15        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Table 5. Sample Calculations Table for Net Change in Emissions and Reductions/Removals 


Year 
Total net project scenario 


emissions and removals (A) 


Total net baseline scenario 


emissions and removals (B) 


Total net change in emissions 


and removals (A-B) 


Year 1    


Year 2    


Year 3    


Year 4    


Year …    


Lifespan 


Totals 
   


 * In-Canada effects and international effects must be reported separately 


iv. Cost-per-tonne calculations  


 


A cost-per-tonne calculation will be prepared for each project under the Climate Change 


Mitigation sub-stream. In the near term, the objective of the metric would be to prepare 


an estimate of the quantity of emissions reduced as a result of program spending, both in 


the year 2030 and over each asset’s expected lifespan.  


 


The cost-per-tonne metric will allow provincial and territorial governments, and  


Infrastructure Canada, to gauge the cost-effectiveness of each jurisdiction’s Climate 


Change Mitigation spending and promote the prioritization of high-impact mitigation 


projects, including those aligned with the provincial and territorial Key Actions identified 


under the Pan-Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change.  


 


Proponents will need to: 


 


 Calculate net GHG reduction estimates (the difference between the baseline scenario 


and project scenario) both in 2030 and over the full expected life of the asset.   


 


 Provide an estimation of the total construction costs and O&M costs over lifetime of 


project: 


 


o Specify total eligible project costs  


 


o Specify the requested federal contribution  


 


 Calculate two cost-per-tonne indicators: 


 


o Federal dollars/GHG reductions in 2030 (non-cumulative) 


 


o Total project cost (construction cost and O&M costs over lifetime) / cumulative 


GHG reductions over the asset’s expected lifespan 







 


 


16        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


The Executive Summary must highlight the total project cost-per-tonne.  


 


More detailed instructions will be provided in the forthcoming sector specific guidance. As the 


Climate Lens guidance is evergreen, the cost-per-tonne metric will be adjusted over time as 


methodology improves and capacity to conduct assessments grows across Canada. Over the 


long term, a more fulsome cost-per-tonne approach could be introduced. 


 
v. Optional identification of GHG mitigation opportunities 


 


A key objective of the Climate Lens is the facilitation of climate-focused behavioural change 


at the project level. In the interest of driving new and better project planning behaviours, 


applicants wishing to perform a more robust assessment are invited to identify all reasonable 


opportunities to avoid or mitigate GHG emissions within the context of their specific projects.  


 


While Infrastructure Canada recognizes that in certain cases it may be too late to implement 


major scope changes, less significant adjustments may still be feasible, and large-scale 


alterations could inform the planning of similar future assets.  


 


Applicants may also wish to estimate the cost differential between the chosen and alternative 


options on a percentage basis to inform their own current and future decision-making. 


 


2.6 Additional Supports for Applicants 


Infrastructure Canada is working with Environment and Climate Change Canada as well as other 


partners to develop measures (e.g., sector-specific technical guidance (which will include a 


“Climate Lite” GHG assessment option for projects outside the Climate Change Mitigation sub-


stream), tools and/or other training materials) that will reduce the level of effort required and 


increase the degree of standardization associated with individual mitigation assessments. More 


details about these resources will be shared as they become available. Please visit the 
Infrastructure Canada website to ensure you have the most up-to-date list of available resources.   







 


 


17        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


3. CLIMATE CHANGE 


RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT  
This section provides guidance on conducting the climate change resilience assessment 


component of the Climate Lens. Section 3.1 – 3.3 describes the scope and general approach of 


the resilience assessment. Section 3.4 explains the risk management framework and guiding 


methodology for undertaking the resilience assessment. Section 3.5 provides guidance to help 


determine the appropriate level of risk analysis of an assessment. Finally, section 3.6 identifies key 


reporting requirements stemming from the resilience assessment. Annexes D to I provide further 


information to help proponents conduct a climate change resilience assessment. 


3.1 Validation by a Qualified Party 


Infrastructure Canada will require that a qualified party, e.g., a professional engineer, registered 


professional planner, or appropriately specialized biologist or hydrologist provide an attestation 


that the climate change resilience assessment was carried out according to Infrastructure 


Canada’s Climate Lens guidance. These professionals need to demonstrate expertise in 


conducting infrastructure resilience assessments which ideally includes holding appropriate 


credentials (i.e., Canadian Risk Management designation, ISO 31000 certificate or equivalent) 


and/or relevant work experience.  


 


This attestation must be provided at the time of application, in order for a project to receive 


funding approval from Infrastructure Canada. See Section 5 for additional information on how to 


submit your assessment).  As noted in section 1, for approved projects, costs associated with 


Climate Lens assessments will be retroactively eligible for reimbursement. 


3.2 Scope and Boundaries of the Assessment 


The climate change resilience assessment is designed to support better decision-making during an 


infrastructure project’s planning and design stages. It should consider the full spectrum of project 


design choices being made (e.g., location, materials used, construction methods/standards, etc.). 


It should also consider climate risks during the build itself as well as changes in climate risks during 


the planned operation and maintenance phases. The assessment should not only include asset-


specific resilience solutions, but also identify the potential upstream and downstream impacts of 


proposed resilience solutions within the broader system (e.g., reduction of downstream flooding 


resulting from raising the bed of a river to allow temporary water storage in a wetland).  


3.3 Timescale of the Assessment 


The timescale of the assessment should match the intended lifespan of the asset. For longer-


lifespan assets (e.g., longer than 50 years), both shorter-term and longer-term climate change 


implications should be examined, as well as different plausible climate scenarios. For example, in 


the construction of the Confederation Bridge linking Prince Edward Island and New Brunswick, 







 


 


18        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


engineers and planners used various climate scenarios to determine an appropriate height to 


account for rise in sea level, and appropriate spacing between support beams to allow ice blocks 


to pass safely underneath. 


3.4 Risk Management Framework 


The climate change resilience assessment is essentially a risk assessment that includes the analysis 


of future climate conditions and risk treatment for the proposed project.  The objective of this 


exercise is to identify, evaluate and manage risks, whereby management could involve doing 


nothing or implementing mitigation strategies, thereby reducing the risk to an acceptable level by 


enhancing the resilience or adaptability of assets or systems to climate change impacts.  


 


Future climate projections are available for many parts of the country and should enable 


identification of general trends associated with a changing climate in a given area. There may be 


numerous adaptive and resilient solutions to choose from, based on time, complexity and cost. The 


risk management process helps identify best solutions. It is a practical approach to identifying and 


prioritizing complex risk issues, and for selecting optimal solutions in the face of uncertainty.  


 


3.4.1 Guiding Methodology  


Projects undertaking a climate change resilience assessment should employ the principles of ISO 


31000 Risk Management Standard and include future climate conditions and impacts in the 


process.  A globally recognized approach, the standard provides a generic risk management 


model that walks users through the steps of gathering information, assessing risk and developing a 


risk treatment plan. This internationally recognized standard was designed to accommodate any 


kind of risk to an organization but can be tailored to reflect climate risks for infrastructure assets.  


 


When assessing the potential impacts of climate change, a range of future climate projections 


should be considered. These projections should be based on multiple climate models and use 
emission scenarios ranging from low to high. 


ECCC provides climate model projections for a range of emission scenarios, also called 


Representative Concentration Pathways (RCPs). These are a set of emission scenarios that range 


from a low emission scenario characterized by active GHG mitigation (RCP 2.6), through 


intermediate scenarios (RCP 4.5), to a high emission scenario (RCP 8.5). These projections can be 
found on the Canadian Climate Data and Scenarios website, and the forthcoming Canadian 


Centre for Climate Services Portal. 


Annex F provides guiding principles to inform resilience assessments. Annex G includes a list of 


methodologies that are consistent with the ISO 31000 standard and steps for a climate change 


resilience assessment.  


3.5 Determining the Level of Risk Analysis  


This guidance is designed to accommodate a wide array of assessments and varying levels of 


complexity.  In some cases, the climate change resilience assessment will be applied to assets 


whose primary purpose is to help communities adapt and be more resilient to current and future 



https://www.iso.org/iso-31000-risk-management.html

https://www.iso.org/iso-31000-risk-management.html

http://climate-scenarios.canada.ca/?page=main





 


 


19        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


climate change hazards. In other cases, the assessment may be applied to projects that have 


different primary purposes, such as public transit. Moreover, assessments will be undertaken across 


different geographies and climate zones, under different climate hazards and for a variety of 


sectors (e.g., energy, transport, buildings, etc.). Not all projects, therefore, will require the same 


depth of analysis when conducting a resilience assessment.  


 


Infrastructure Canada recognizes the responsibility is vested in the professional judgement of 


licensed professional engineers, registered planners, specialized biologists or hydrologists to 


determine the necessary level of detail for assessments, so long as they meet the requirements 


outlined in this guidance document.  


 


An assessment’s level of effort, formality and documentation should be commensurate to the level 


of risk of the project, including its size, criticality and vulnerabilities.  
  


Figure 1: Flowchart of Resilience Assessment  


 







 


 


20        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


A preliminary climate risk screening may be sufficient in identifying that a project does not face 


significant climate change risks or it could identify that there is a need to conduct a more detailed 


assessment.  


 


The following questions may help in considering the depth of analysis required:  


 


 Is the primary outcome of your project to enhance the resilience of built or natural 


infrastructure? 


 


 Are you building or retrofitting an asset in an area that has already been impacted by a 


natural hazard or other climate risk (e.g. near a body of water with potential for flooding, 


near a potential wildfire-urban interface)?  


 


 Is the asset you are building or retrofitting of critical importance to the community it serves?2 


 


 Is your project of national significance, e.g. a project that could benefit more than one 


province or territory, a project that would mitigate a significant economic loss in case of 


disaster, or a project that could mitigate loss of life? 
 


If your answer to any of these questions is YES, Infrastructure Canada recommends you conduct a 


more detailed resilience assessment.  
 


3.6 Required Information and Data Points 


The following section provides a breakdown of the information you will need to provide to 


Infrastructure Canada as part of your overall application. It should be noted that for the Disaster 


Mitigation and Adaptation Fund, the resilience assessment has been incorporated within the 


application process for all projects. 


 


 If your resilience assessment concludes that there are no significant climate change risks 


associated with your project, reporting requirements should still identify the process you 


have undertaken, evidence base and the conclusions of your assessment.  


 


 If risks have been identified, these are to be described: an analysis of risk, consequence, 


likelihood, and vulnerability should be summarized; resilience measures to be taken should 


be highlighted (e.g., a change to the location or the design of an asset, the incorporation 


of natural infrastructure, the addition of a flexible design, etc.); and the evidence base must 


be presented. 


 


 A rationale should be provided for identified resilience measures not selected for 


implementation. 


                                                             
2 Public Safety Canada defines critical infrastructure as: “Processes, systems, facilities, technologies, networks, 


assets and services essential to the health, safety, security or economic well-being of Canadians and the 


effective functioning of government. Critical infrastructure can be stand-alone or interconnected and 


interdependent within and across provinces, territories and national borders. Disruptions of critical 


infrastructure could result in catastrophic loss of life, adverse economic effects and significant harm to public 


confidence.” 







 


 


21        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


This information will be made public at an aggregate level on Infrastructure Canada’s website, to 


transparently communicate with the Canadian public on progress in addressing climate change 


impacts. Infrastructure Canada will ensure that no sensitive information is released.  
 


3.6.1 Identification and Assessment of Climate Change Risk(s) (see Annex G 


for further information) 


Each risk should be assessed using the following order and naming convention: 


 


(a) Climate change hazard 


(b) Impact on asset (reflects vulnerability [state of repair]) 


(c) Consequence of impact  


 


For example, (a) flooding exacerbated by climate change (b) impaired operation of a 


wastewater treatment plant and interrupted service (c) which resulted in increased risk to public 


health.   


 


Each climate change hazard and impact may have several consequences and it is important that 


these risks be identified separately. This will allow each risk to be rated separately to reflect any 


potential differences in priority. For example, riverine flooding may have catastrophic 


consequences from an economic perspective but be only of moderate consequence from a 


public safety perspective.   


 


Risk identification should include consideration of impacts from extreme events (e.g., increased 


storm intensity, heat waves, etc.) as well as impacts resulting from incremental or slow onset events 


(e.g., increased drought, sea-level rise, etc.). 


 


Risk identification should include, as required, consideration of cascading and cumulative effects. 


For example, a direct risk would be flooding or inundation damaging critical infrastructure which 


reduces public safety. An example of indirect risk would be flooding or inundation damaging 


roads, which in turn prevent maintenance or emergency vehicles getting to problem areas. 
 


3.6.2 Analysis of Risk, Consequence, Likelihood, and Vulnerability (see Annex 


G for further information) 
 


Identify the magnitude of the consequence of an event and its likelihood of occurring. The 


consequence and likelihood should be considered in the context of: 


 


 the climate change scenario(s) being considered; and 


 the existing controls to manage the risk. 


 


3.6.3 Resilience Measures to be Taken (see Annex G for further information) 
 


In narrative form, identify which resilience measures (e.g. changes to location, design, operation 


and/or maintenance) have been analyzed, and which, if any, will be implemented and why -- 


including the projected change in resilience as a result.  Identify particular risks that are not being 







 


 


22        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


mitigated and explain why. Anticipated residual risk following mitigation measures should be 


identified. Cost considerations where applicable should be noted. 


 


Where possible, identify the return on investment of the project.  Applicants are encouraged to 


clearly demonstrate the following two steps associated with the Return on Investment (ROI): 


 


1. Loss Estimation Analysis; and 


2. Return on Mitigation Investment. 


 


Further Guidance on return on investment is available in Annex G.  


3.6.4 Description of Evidence Base 
 


Include both the data sources used to identify and evaluate the risks (e.g. climate scenarios, flood 


maps, projections, etc.) as well as information garnered through engagement and input from 


stakeholders.  


  







 


 


23        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


4. VALIDATION AND QUALITY 


CONTROL  
 


Both the GHG mitigation assessment and climate change resilience assessment will require 


validation by a relevant professional to ensure quality control.  


 


GHG mitigation assessments must be carried out or validated by a qualified party (i.e., a 


professional engineer, or a GHG accounting professional certified under the ISO 14064-3 or   14065 


standard3). This individual or firm would be required to provide an attestation confirming that the 


assessment conforms to the guidance provided by Infrastructure Canada.   


 


In the context of climate change resilience assessments, Infrastructure Canada will similarly require 


that a professional engineer, registered planner, or specialized biologist or hydrologist attest that 


the assessment is consistent with the relevant Climate Lens guidance.  


 


For both assessment types, attestations must be submitted at the time of application and will be 


necessary to secure project approval.  


  


                                                             
3 Note that the list of certified assessors made available by the Standards Council of Canada is not an exhaustive listing of all 
accredited service providers operating in Canada. For instance, some multinational entities may instead opt to pursue 
accreditation through the American National Standards Institute. 



https://www.scc.ca/en/accreditation/greenhouse-gas

https://www.scc.ca/en/accreditation/greenhouse-gas

https://www.ansi.org/Accreditation/environmental/greenhouse-gas-validation-verification/Default





 


 


24        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


5. WHEN AND HOW TO  


SUBMIT ASSESSMENTS TO 


INFRASTRUCTURE CANADA 
 


For projects under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program, Climate Lens assessments are to 


be completed and submitted at the time of application, unless otherwise indicated by 


Infrastructure Canada. Because costs are only eligible for reimbursement in funded projects, 


municipalities, Indigenous communities, and other potential applicants should engage regularly 


with the relevant province or territory to determine their project’s likelihood of prioritization before 


undertaking a Climate Lens assessment. 


 


For projects under the Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund and the Smart Cities Challenge, 


completed Climate Lens assessments are to be submitted to Infrastructure Canada as part of the 


project application. It should be noted that for the Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund, the 


resilience assessment has been incorporated within the application process for all projects. 


 


Projects are to be submitted to Infrastructure Canada via the Infrastructure Recipient Information 


System (IRIS) digital portal (or equivalent), unless otherwise stated in program guidelines. 
 


 


  







 


 


25        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex A – Sample Table of 


Contents for GHG Mitigation 


Assessments 
This notional table of contents is provided for informational purposes only. While the following 


topics should be addressed within the GHG Mitigation Assessment in order to comply with the 


requirements outlined in the relevant guidance document(s), proponents are not obligated to 


specifically structure their reports in this manner. 


1. Attestation of Completeness  


 


2. Executive Summary 


 


3. Introduction / Project Overview  


 


4. Methodology  


 


a. Boundary of the assessment 


b. Greenhouse gases considered 


c. Emission scopes 


d. Data collection and calculation procedures 


e. Exclusions from the assessment 


f. Assumptions 


 


5. Baseline Scenario 


 


a. Construction 


b. Operations & Maintenance 


 


6. Estimated Project Emissions 


 


a. Construction 


b. Operations & Maintenance  


 


7. Estimated Net Increase or Reduction in Emissions  


 


  







 


 


26        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


8. Other Potential Mitigation Measures (optional component) 


 


a. Options for avoidance of impacts 


b. Options for mitigation of impacts 


 


9. Estimated Cost-Per-Tonne (Climate Change Mitigation sub-stream only) 


 


10. Conclusion 


 


11. Bibliography / References  


   







 


 


27        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex B – Attestation 


Template for GHG Mitigation 


Assessments  


I/we the undersigned attest that this GHG Mitigation Assessment was undertaken using recognized 


assessment tools and approaches (i.e., ISO 14064-2: Specification with guidance at the project 


level for quantification, monitoring, and reporting of greenhouse gas emissions reductions or 


removal enhancements and, if chosen, the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting) and complies 


with the General Guidance and any relevant sector-specific technical guidance issued by 


Infrastructure Canada for use under the Climate Lens. 


 


 


Prepared by:  _____________________________________________  ___________ 


                                [Name and credentials]  [Date] 


 


 


Validated by*: _____________________________________________  ___________ 


           [Name and credentials]  [Date] 


 


*GHG Mitigation Assessments must be prepared, or at a minimum validated by, a qualified party 


(e.g., a licenced professional engineer or a professional GHG accounting specialist certified under 


the ISO 14064-3 or 14065 standard). 


  







 


 


28        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex C – Global Warming 


Potentials for GHG Mitigation 


Assessments 
Source: Canada’s National Inventory Report.  As GWPs may be updated from time to time, please ensure 


you are using the most recent figures.  


GHG Formula 100-Year GWP 


Carbon Dioxide CO2 1 


Methane CH4 25 


Nitrous Oxide N2O 298 


Sulphur Hexafluoride  SF6 22 800 


Nitrogen Trifluoride NF3 17 200 


Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) 


HFC-23 CHF3 14 800 


HFC-32 CH2F2 675 


HFC-41 CH3F 92 


HFC-43-10mee CF3CHFCHFCF2CF3 1 640 


HFC-125 CHF2CF3 3 500 


HFC-134 CHF2CHF2 1 100 


HFC-134a CH2FCF3 1 430 


HFC-143 CH2FCHF2 353 


HFC-143a CH3CF3 4 470 


HFC-152 CH2FCH2F 53 


HFC-152a CH3CHF2 124 



http://unfccc.int/national_reports/annex_i_ghg_inventories/national_inventories_submissions/items/10116.php





 


 


29        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


GHG Formula 100-Year GWP 


HFC-161 CH3CH2F 12 


HFC-227ea CF3CHFCF3 3 220 


HFC-236cb CH2FCF2CF3 1 340 


HFC-236ea CHF2CHFCF3 1 370 


HFC-236fa CF3CH2CF3 9 810 


HFC-245ca CH2FCF2CHF2 693 


HFC-245fa CHF2CH2CF3 1 030 


HFC-365mfc CH3CF2CH2CF3 794 


Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) 


Perfluoromethane  CF4 7 390 


Perfluoroethane  C2F6 12 200 


Perfluoropropane C3F8 8 830 


Perfluorobutane C4F10 8 860 


Perfluorocyclobutane c-C4F8 10 300 


Perfluoropentane C5F12 9 160 


Perfluorohexane C6F14 9 300 


Perfluorodecalin C10F18 7 500 


Perfluorocyclopropane c-C3F6 17 340 


  







 


 


30        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex D – Sample Table of 


Contents for Resilience 


Assessments 
 


This notional table of contents is provided for informational purposes only. While the following 


topics should be addressed within the Resilience Assessment in order to comply with the 


requirements outlined in the relevant guidance document(s), proponents are not obligated to 


specifically structure their reports in this manner. 


1. Attestation of Completeness  


 


2. Executive Summary 


 


3. Introduction / Project Overview  


 


4. Methodology  


 


a. Scope and timescale of the assessment 


b. Identification and assessment of climate hazards  


c. Impact on asset  


d. Consequence of Impact  


 


5. Analysis of Resilience Options 


 


a. Identification of resilience measures identified for each impact 


b. Cost/benefit analysis 


c. Consideration of resilience principles  


d. Additional Co-benefits (optional component) 


 


6. Resilience Measures Selected (or not) and Justification  


 


7. Projected Return on Investment (Loss Avoided in relation to the Project Cost) (if available) 


 


8. Description of Evidence Base (including Indigenous knowledge) 


 


9. Conclusion 


 


10. Bibliography / References  







 


 


31        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex E – Attestation 


Template for Resilience 


Assessments  


I/we the undersigned attest that this Resilience Assessment was undertaken using recognized 


assessment tools and approaches (i.e., ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management—Principles and 


Guidelines) and complies with the General Guidance and any relevant sector-specific technical 


guidance issued by Infrastructure Canada for use under the Climate Lens. 


 


Prepared by:  _____________________________________________  ___________ 


          [Name and credentials]  [Date] 


 


 


Validated by*: _____________________________________________  ___________ 


               [Name and credentials]  [Date] 


 


 


*Resilience Assessments must be prepared, or at a minimum validated by, a licenced professional 


engineer, certified planner, or appropriately specialized biologist or hydrologist.  


 


  







 


 


32        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex F - Climate Change 


Resilience Principles  
 


The following guiding principles should be reflected when conducting the assessment and 


management of climate risk component of the Climate Lens.  


 


The principles are derived from international agreements such as the Sendai Framework for 


Disaster Risk Reduction and Canada’s National Strategy for Critical Infrastructure which both 


emphasize resilience as a way to mitigate disasters and natural hazards. They are also informed by 


Canada’s Federal Adaptation Policy Framework and national climate knowledge assessments 


produced by Natural Resources Canada.  


1. Proportionate Assessment  


The level of effort and detail in assessing risk and identifying solutions should reflect: the project cost 


and scope, how vulnerable the asset is to climate impacts, and how important the asset is to 


providing or protecting essential services (criticality of asset).   


2. Systemic Analysis of Risk  


A holistic approach should assess climate hazards according to likelihood and consequence, asset 


vulnerability, and also consider infrastructure interdependencies. A network perspective considers 


dependencies and interdependencies, when appropriate. An impact to a single asset can result 


in significant damage on a city-wide, regional, national or even international scale. It is important 


to understand the nature and location of other assets that could be affected by a failure of the 


targeted asset; work with other relevant asset owners when possible.  Priority-setting should use 


best available science and data (including future climate projections), consider redundancy, 
prioritize no-regrets options and avoid locking-in costly decisions that narrow future options. 


3. Pursuit of Multiple Benefits  


Opportunities should be maximized to provide many benefits, e.g., considering synergies with 


greenhouse gas emissions reduction. Adaptation initiatives that are not GHG-intensive should be 


strongly considered. Increasing emissions to address climate impacts (e.g., use of fossil-fuel 


powered air conditioning to counter extreme heat) may be avoided through a detailed 


assessment of different options to clarify potential GHG impacts of adaptation actions. Consider 


natural infrastructure. It is becoming increasingly clear that natural assets and engineered or 


enhanced natural assets can cost-effectively complement or help deliver infrastructure services 


(particularly regarding stormwater management, wastewater, potable water and disaster 


mitigation). 


  







 


 


33        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


4. Avoidance of Unintended Consequences  


Seeking to avoid risk transference from one asset to others, preserving decision-making flexibility 


over the long-term (to accommodate new technologies and information), and pursuing no-regrets 


approaches and first-order solutions.  Climate resilience initiatives inescapably face uncertainty 


given the broad range of projected future climate change impacts. Pursuit of enduring solutions 


should be prioritized and displacement of costs (e.g., causing greater flooding to happen 


upstream) should be avoided. 


 


  







 


 


34        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex G – Methodologies and 


Resilience Assessment Steps 
Disclaimer: Note that the list of resources identified below is not exhaustive, inclusion of a resource 


on this list does not entail it is the most up-to-date version. Proponents are ultimately responsible for 


obtaining the best quality information.  


Methodologies for climate change resilience consistent with ISO 31000 


 Public Infrastructure Engineering Vulnerability Committee (PIEVC) Protocol: https://pievc.ca/  


 Envision: https://sustainableinfrastructure.org/envision/  


 SuRe – The Standard for Sustainable and Resilient Infrastructure: http://www.gib-


foundation.org/sure-standard/  


 


Steps of Climate Risk Assessment Process   
 


The following provides broad guidance for the steps typically included when conducting Risk 


Management. This step-by-step guidance can be scaled up or down based on the complexity of 


the assessment. These steps are adapted from those published in the Canadian Climate Change 


Risk Assessment Guide – A Strategic Overview of Climate Risks and Their Impact on Organizations 


(2014).  


 


Tables included in the Climate Risk Assessment process should be viewed as examples only, and 


modified by assessors to fit the assessment context.  
 


1.  Establishing the Context (Scope) 


A preliminary resilience assessment should be conducted, focusing on identifying key climate 


change risks that could significantly impair, or opportunities that could enhance the performance 


of the project or system. This step should also include learning from past project experience of 


weather and climate impacts, with a specific emphasis on incorporating the guidance from 


Indigenous historical knowledge of the area, including challenges faced during responses and 


recovery to the impacts of climate-related events. This preliminary assessment may conclude that 


your project has no climate change-related risks and that no further action is required – or it could 


identify key risks you should investigate further. 


 


Potential preparatory activities include:  


 


 Understanding the climate change projections for the areas of interest and the associated 


vulnerabilities; 


 Ensuring clarity about the objectives, timeframe and resources available for  


assessment; and  


 Development of a work plan.  



https://pievc.ca/

https://sustainableinfrastructure.org/envision/

http://www.gib-foundation.org/sure-standard/

http://www.gib-foundation.org/sure-standard/





 


 


35        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Expected Results and Outputs: 


 


 Project objectives and timelines identified.  


 Project team established.  


 Those individuals or groups that may be affected or involved have been identified and 


preliminary analysis of their needs, concerns and probable issues completed including in 


partnership with relevant Indigenous groups.  


 Communications or dialogue with groups that may be affected has been considered.  


 Collection of records and documentation begun.  
 


2. Risk Identification 


This is the beginning of the risk assessment part of the process. The sequence of risk events or slow 


climate onset events leading from the climate change impacts and vulnerabilities are carefully 


developed and given a preliminary examination. This is done by:  


 


 Identifying the specific climate change impacts and the associated potential risk events to 


the asset, system and surrounding environment and the possible opportunities.  


 Conducting a preliminary analysis of these risk events to determine in a very general sense 


their likelihood and possible consequences.  


 Considering which events present a minimal level of risk and can be discarded from further 


consideration.  


 


Key resources to identify climate projections and other relevant climate data for your region can 


be found in Annex H – Resources.  
 


Expected Results and Outputs  


 


 Risk events and potential opportunities are identified and a preliminary analysis is 


completed for each event showing initial estimates of potential consequences or benefits 


and likelihood. 


 Existing control measures are identified as are preliminary thoughts about potential 


additional adaptation or control measures.  


 Baseline information has been collected, or plans have been made to collect baseline 


information including the incorporation of Indigenous knowledge and guidance. 


 Additional analysis of other organizations, governments, people or other groups who might 


be affected by the risks has been completed.  


 An outline of a communications plan for these people or groups has been developed if it is 


needed. 


 


3. Risk Analysis 


In this step more detailed consideration is given to the likelihood and consequences of the climate 


change risk events and opportunities that were selected in Step 2. One of the final things that was 


done in the previous step was to discard from further consideration risk events that were assessed 


as being negligible, very low or low risk levels.  







 


 


36        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Expected Results and Outputs  


 


 Estimates of likelihood and consequences of risk events and opportunities.  


 Presentation of likelihood and consequence estimates in a format that is easy-to-


understand by non-experts. 


 Estimates of the acceptance by stakeholders of risk, or a record of reasons for non-


acceptance, based on a dialogue with the stakeholders and a careful documentation of 


their perception of the risks.  
 


4. Risk Evaluation  


In this step, a process for comparing or ranking each risk event and opportunity is developed.  This 


is done by:  


 


 Confirming the overall likelihood and consequence rating that was done in Step 3 including 


costs, benefits and acceptability. The overall rating should also consider any downstream 


effects identified.  


 Identifying unacceptable risks and ranking them for risk reduction or control measures.  


 Opportunities have also been rated in Step 3 in a more general way by their likelihood and 


potential benefits. These should be confirmed in Step 4 and the opportunities ranked in 


some order of importance for exploitation.  


 


The following are suggested tables proponents can use or build on to estimate likelihood of risks, 


estimates of consequences of risks and a risk evaluation matrix.  


 


Table 1 – Estimates of Likelihood of Risks 
Probability    


Range 


Type of Event 


Very Low Low Moderate High Very High 


Significant single 


event; or 


Not likely to occur 


in period 


Likely to occur 


once between 30 


and 50 years 


Likely to occur once 


between 10 and 30 


years 


Likely to occur at 


least once a decade 


Likely to occur once or 


more annually 


      


      


      


On-going / 


Cumulative 


Occurrence 


Not likely to 


become 


critical/beneficial in 


period 


Likely to become 


critical/beneficial in 


30-50 years 


Likely to become 


critical/beneficial in 10-


30 years 


Likely to become 


critical/beneficial in 


a decade 


Will become 


critical/beneficial 


within several years 


      


      


      


Note: Use as many rows as needed to include the selected risk events.  







 


 


37        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Table 2 – Estimates of Consequences of Risks 


(Use one table for each risk event)  


Factor 


Degree 


People Economic Environment 


Health & 


Safety 
Displacement 


Loss of 


Livelihood 
Reputation 


Infrastructure 


Damage 


Financial 


Impact on 


Proponent 


Financial 


Impact on 


Stakeholders 


Air Water Land Ecosystems 


Very Low            


Low            


Moderate            


High            


Very High            


Note: The project team should modify the columns to include the consequences that they 


consider important for example some may wish to include legal liability or differentiate between 


capital and operating costs. 


 


Table 3 – Risk Evaluation Matrix  


Consequences 


Very High      


High      


Moderate      


Low      


Very Low      


 Very Low Low Moderate High Very High 


 Likelihood 


Extreme Risk: Immediate controls required 


High Risk: High priority control measures required 


Moderate Risk: Some controls required to reduce risks to lower levels 


Low Risk: Controls likely not required 


Negligible Risk: Risk events do not require further consideration 


 


Expected Results and Outputs  


 


 Risks evaluated in terms of likelihood, consequence, with some sense of costs and benefits. 


 Risks ranked or prioritized. 


 Unacceptable risks identified.  


 Possible risk controls or adaptation measures have been recorded for consideration in Step 


5. 







 


 


38        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


5. Risk Mitigation  


In Step 4 the climate change impacts and the possible risk events or opportunities they could 


create were evaluated and ranked. Consideration was given to how acceptable the risks were to 


the organization and principal people or groups that may be affected or involved. For 


unacceptable risks, consideration was given to potential adaptation measures or risk controls. Also 


opportunities were identified and examined for how they could be exploited.  


 


In this step:  


 


 Adaptation measures will be identified for reducing unacceptable risks to acceptable levels 


and examined for feasibility.  


 Potential opportunities will be considered further for exploitation, where applicable.  


 The effectiveness of the adaptation measures will be evaluated including the costs (both 


operating and capital), benefits and associated implementation risks. 


 Return on Investment will be calculated where possible.   


 Optimal adaptation strategies and opportunity exploitation measures will be selected and 


consideration will be given to the acceptability of residual risks.  


 


Table 4 – Risk Mitigation and Adaptation Measures 


Risk 


Event 


Adaptation Measure 


or Risk Treatment 


(use as many rows as 


needed for each 


event) 


Timeframe Cost Effectiveness Acceptability 
Comment/  


Evaluation 


       


      


       


      


       


      


       


 


Expected results and outputs  


 


 Feasible risk treatment options are identified. 


 An adaptation plan is outlined for the implementation of adaptation measures.  


 The potential opportunities and how they can be exploited has been considered. 


 Optimal solutions are chosen.   







 


 


39        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Return on Investment Guidelines 


These return on investment guidelines are adapted from Public Safety Canada’s National Disaster 


Mitigation Program.  


Project proponents can use any recognized methodology for determining the Return on 


Investment (ROI) of the proposal. However, applicants are encouraged to clearly demonstrate the 


following two steps associated with the ROI: 


1. Loss Estimation Analysis; and 


2. Return on Mitigation Investment. 


All costs associated with the ROI calculation should be based on the direct losses that would be 


incurred if the proposed project was not undertaken. Similarly, only costs that can be directly 


attributed to the proposed adaptation or resilience activity should be used in assessing the ROI.  


Loss Estimation Analysis 


Loss Estimation Analysis (LEA) determines the dollar value estimate of the damage that would have 


resulted from the identified hazard(s), were the project not to be completed versus the costs that 


would be incurred if the project were to be completed. The losses (damages) are calculated for 


scenarios where no adaptation actions are taken for a given event. Similarly, the losses (damages) 


are calculated for the same event if the project were completed. The difference between the 


costs associated with each of the two scenarios determines the estimated loss avoided (in dollars). 


The loss estimation analysis can be presented as follows: 


MPA – MPc = LA 


Where:  


MPA = Mitigation Project Absent 


MPC = Mitigation Project Complete 


LA = Loss Avoided 


Categories of loss generally include physical damage to assets and infrastructure, loss of function, 


and emergency management costs. 


Table 5: Loss estimation categories and types 


Loss Type Loss Category 


Physical Buildings 


Contents 


Roads and Bridges 


Landscaping 


Environmental Impacts 


Vehicles/Equipment 







 


 


40        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Loss of Function Displacement Expense 


Loss of Rental Income 


Loss of Business Income 


Loss of Wages 


Disruption Time of Residents 


Loss of Public Services 


Economic Impact of Utility Loss 


Economic Impact of Road/Bridge Closure 


Emergency Management Debris Cleanup 


Government Expense 


(FEMA 2007) 


Finally, all losses avoided should be calculated in present-day values. 


 


Return on Investment 


The return on investment (ROI) is calculated using the Loss Avoided (calculated above) in relation 


to the proposed Project Cost (PC). These results can vary depending on the number of events 


evaluated for different assets and the resulting level of damage. For instance, if the mitigation 


measure is determined to protect an asset or community from more than one event during the 


course of the amortization period, the multiple cost avoidance should be calculated. 


The proposed Project Cost (PC), is the total investment estimated for the project being evaluated, 


or in the case of acquisition projects, the fair market cost to acquire and restore the property. 


Project cost should represent the total investment for the project made by all parties involved. 


Based on the information from the Loss Avoided and the determination of the Project Cost, the ROI 


should represent the following: 


 
 


Where: 


LA ($) = Loss Avoided in dollars 


PC ($) = Project Cost in Dollars 


ROI = Return on Investment (percentage) 


Amortization 


All ROI calculations should be amortized over the average useful life of the asset. Clearly indicate 


the proposed timeframe.  


 


 


  







 


 


41        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex H – Resources for 


Resilience Assessments 
The following is a list of resources to support proponents with their climate change resilience 


assessment. It includes references to information providers that can provide regional climate data, 


engineering climate data sets, broader assessments on adaptation conducted by the federal 


government and community assessment tools that may help inform a resilience assessment.  


Please note that this list is not exhaustive and that the inclusion of a resource does not mean it is 


current or the best and most detailed information available. For example, local governments may 


have more detailed flood maps that should be used. 


These resources will be updated as more become available.  


Regional Climate Resources 


 Atlantic Climate Adaptation Solutions Association: https://atlanticadaptation.ca/  


 Canadian Climate Data and Scenarios: http://climate-scenarios.canada.ca/?page=main 


 Adjusted and Homogenized Canadian Climate Data AHCCD: 


https://open.canada.ca/data/en/dataset/9c4ebc00-3ea4-4fe0-8bf2-66cfe1cddd1d 


 Climate Atlas of Canada: https://climateatlas.ca/home-page 


 Climate Change Hazards Information Portal (CCHIP): http://cchip.ca/  


 Canadian Climate Change Risk Assessment Guide – A Strategic Overview of Climate Risks 


and Their Impact on Organizations (2014): 


http://www.iclr.org/images/CC_Risk_Assessment_Guide_Interim2_Jun_8_14_.pdf 


 Canadian Climate Normals and Averages: http://climate.weather.gc.ca/climate_normals/  


 Canadian Historical Climate Data : 


http://climate.weather.gc.ca/historical_data/search_historic_data_e.html 


 Guidebook on Climate Scenarios: https://www.ouranos.ca/publication-


scientifique/GuideCharron2014_EN.pdf 


 New Brunswick’s Future Climate Data : http://acasav2.azurewebsites.net/ 


 Ontario Centre for Climate Impacts and Adaptation Resources (OCCIAR): 


http://climateontario.ca/  


 Ouranos (Québec): https://www.ouranos.ca/  


 Pacific Climate Impacts Consortium (PCIC): https://www.pacificclimate.org/  


 Prairie Climate Centre: http://prairieclimatecentre.ca/  


 Turning Back The Tide, Newfoundland and Labrador, Climate Data and Tools: 


http://www.turnbackthetide.ca/tools-and-resources/climate-data-and-tools.shtml 


 


  



https://atlanticadaptation.ca/

http://climate-scenarios.canada.ca/?page=main

http://cchip.ca/

http://climate.weather.gc.ca/climate_normals/

http://acasav2.azurewebsites.net/

http://climateontario.ca/

https://www.ouranos.ca/

https://www.pacificclimate.org/

http://prairieclimatecentre.ca/





 


 


42        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Engineering Data Sets 


 Intensity-Duration-Frequency (IDF) Files: 


ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/IDF/  


 Canadian Weather Energy and Engineering Datasets (CWEEDS):  


ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/Canadian_Weath


er_Energy_Engineering_Dataset_CWEEDS_2005/ZIPPED%20FILES/ENGLISH/  


 Canadian Weather Year for Energy Calculation (CWEC): 


ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/Canadian_Weath


er_year_for_Energy_Calculation_CWEC/ENGLISH/  


 


Provincial and Territorial Flood Maps 


 British Columbia: http://www.env.gov.bc.ca/wsd/data_searches/fpm/reports/index.html  


 Alberta: http://maps.srd.alberta.ca/FloodHazard/  


 https://www.gov.mb.ca/mit/floodinfo/floodoutlook/watersheds_data_maps.html 


 Ontario: https://www.ontario.ca/law-and-safety/flood-forecasting-and-warning-program 


 Québec: https://www.cehq.gouv.qc.ca/zones-inond/carte-esri/index.html  


 New Brunswick: 


http://www2.gnb.ca/content/gnb/en/departments/elg/environment/content/flood/flood_


maps.html 


 Newfoundland and Labrador: http://www.mae.gov.nl.ca/waterres/flooding/frm.html  


 


Community Assessment/Climate Change Adaptation Planning 


 Federation of Canadian Municipalities’ Municipalities for Climate Innovation Programme: 


https://fcm.ca/home/programs/municipalities-for-climate-innovation-


program/municipalities-for-climate-innovation-program.htm  


 ICLEI’s Changing Climate, Changing Communities Framework (BARC Tool): a milestone 


framework that guides local government practitioners through a process of initiation, 


research, planning, implementation and monitoring for climate adaptation planning. It is 


available through a subscription with ICLEI: 


www.icleicanada.org/programs/adaptation/barc  


 Atlantic Canada Climate Adaptation Solutions Association: 7 Steps to Assess Climate 


Change Vulnerability in Your Community:  http://atlanticadaptation.ca/ 


 SaskAdapt – Self-Assessment Tool: http://www.parc.ca/saskadapt/self-assessment-tool.html 


 Canadian Institute of Planning: https://www.cip-icu.ca/ClimateChangePolicy (here you will 


find a significant number of climate change adaptation plans and resources)  
  


Federal Assessment Reports  


Climate Risks & Adaptation Practices for the Canadian Transportation Sector 2016: 


http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-


adaptation/reports/assessments/2017/19623  


Climate Risks & Adaptation Practices for the Canadian Transportation Sector 2016 (co-led by 


Transport Canada) presents the current state of knowledge about climate risks to the Canadian 


transportation sector, and identifies existing or potential adaptation practices. The report includes 



ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/IDF/

ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/Canadian_Weather_Energy_Engineering_Dataset_CWEEDS_2005/ZIPPED FILES/ENGLISH/

ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/Canadian_Weather_Energy_Engineering_Dataset_CWEEDS_2005/ZIPPED FILES/ENGLISH/

ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/Canadian_Weather_year_for_Energy_Calculation_CWEC/ENGLISH/

ftp://client_climate@ftp.tor.ec.gc.ca/Pub/Engineering_Climate_Dataset/Canadian_Weather_year_for_Energy_Calculation_CWEC/ENGLISH/

http://www.env.gov.bc.ca/wsd/data_searches/fpm/reports/index.html

http://maps.srd.alberta.ca/FloodHazard/

https://www.cehq.gouv.qc.ca/zones-inond/carte-esri/index.html

http://www.mae.gov.nl.ca/waterres/flooding/frm.html

https://fcm.ca/home/programs/municipalities-for-climate-innovation-program/municipalities-for-climate-innovation-program.htm

https://fcm.ca/home/programs/municipalities-for-climate-innovation-program/municipalities-for-climate-innovation-program.htm

http://www.icleicanada.org/programs/adaptation/barc

http://atlanticadaptation.ca/

http://www.parc.ca/saskadapt/self-assessment-tool.html

https://www.cip-icu.ca/ClimateChangePolicy

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2017/19623

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2017/19623





 


 


43        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


six regional chapters and one urban chapter which reflect the different climate change impacts, 


vulnerabilities and opportunities across Canada. 


 


Canada's Marine Coasts in a Changing Climate: 


http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-


adaptation/reports/assessments/2016/18388  


Canada's Marine Coasts in a Changing Climate assesses climate change sensitivity, risks and 


adaptation along Canada's marine coasts. The report includes overviews of regional climate 


change impacts, risks and opportunities along Canada's three marine coasts, case studies 


demonstrating action, and discussion of adaptation approaches. 


 


Climate data and scenarios: synthesis of recent observation and modelling results: 


https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/climate-


change/publications/data-scenarios-synthesis-recent-observation.html 


 


This document provides a brief overview of the most up-to-date analysis of historical climate 


observations and future climate projections focusing specifically on Canada. The current 


document is intended as a resource for dissemination of climate information with a specific focus 


on historical and future climate change across Canada. It is not intended to serve as a definitive 


reference or complete characterization, and readers are directed to the underlying data sources 


for more detailed and quantitative analyses specific to their climate impact, adaptation, or 


environmental assessment context. 


 


Canada in a Changing Climate: Sector Perspectives on Impacts and Adaptation: 


http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-


adaptation/reports/assessments/2014/16309  


An update to the 2008 report, From Impacts to Adaptation: Canada in a Changing Climate. The 


report assesses literature published since 2007 on climate change impacts, adaptation and 


vulnerability in Canada.  It includes chapters on natural resources, food production, industry, 


biodiversity and protected areas, human health, and water and transportation infrastructure. 


 


From Impacts to Adaptation: Canada in a Changing Climate (2008): 


http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-


adaptation/reports/assessments/2008/10253  


Assesses risks and opportunities presented by climate change, and actions being taken to address 


them, from a regional perspective. 


 


Adaptation Solutions 


Adapting to Climate Change in Coastal Communities of the Atlantic Provinces, Canada: Land Use 


Planning and Engineering and Natural Approaches: 


https://atlanticadaptation.ca/en/islandora/object/acasa%253A789  


 


  



http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2016/18388

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2016/18388

https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/climate-change/publications/data-scenarios-synthesis-recent-observation.html

https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/climate-change/publications/data-scenarios-synthesis-recent-observation.html

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2014/16309

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2014/16309

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2008/10253

http://www.nrcan.gc.ca/environment/resources/publications/impacts-adaptation/reports/assessments/2008/10253

https://atlanticadaptation.ca/en/islandora/object/acasa%253A789





 


 


44        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Other Resources 


 US Environmental Protection Agency, Green Infrastructure Resources: 


https://www.epa.gov/green-infrastructure  


 Free and open LiDAR data: https://canadiangis.com/free-canada-lidar-data.php  


 Canada Infrastructure Report Card: 


https://csce.ca/wpcontent/uploads/2012/06/Infrastructure_Report_Card_ENG_Final1.pdf  


 Representative Concentration Pathways (RCPs): http://sedac.ipcc-


data.org/ddc/ar5_scenario_process/RCPs.html 


 


 


  



https://www.epa.gov/green-infrastructure

https://canadiangis.com/free-canada-lidar-data.php





 


 


45        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Annex I: Glossary 


Adaptation 


Adaptation refers to adjustments in ecological, social, or economic systems in 


response to actual or expected climatic stimuli and their effects or impacts. It 


refers to changes in processes, practices, and structures to moderate potential 


damages or to benefit from opportunities associated with climate change. 


Actions / measures that reduce the negative impacts of climate change, while 


taking advantage of potential new opportunities. 


Asset Dependency 


One-directional reliance of an asset, system, network, or collection thereof, 


within and/or across sectors, on input, interaction, or other requirement from 


other sources in order to function properly. 


Asset Interdependency Mutual, shared or reciprocal dependencies.  


Assessment Boundary 


The required scope and/or limits of the assessment. In the context of a 


greenhouse gas assessment, specific elements could include the timescale of 


the assessment, whether construction materials and/or activities are considered, 


etc.  


Baseline / Business As 


Usual (BAU) Scenario 


A hypothetical reference case/description of what would have most likely 


occurred in the absence of a proposed project or any considerations about 


climate change mitigation. Appropriate baselines are required to ensure 


reductions are ‘additional’ – i.e.:  the reduction or mitigation activity associated 


with a project (or the same technologies or practices it employs) would not have 


been implemented otherwise.  


Carbon Dioxide 


Equivalent (CO2e) 


The universal unit of measurement used to indicate the global warming potential 


of greenhouse gases. (CO2e) is used to evaluate the impacts of releasing (or 


avoiding the release of) different greenhouse gases. 


Climate Change 


Impacts 


The term “impacts” is used primarily to refer to the effects on natural and human 


systems of extreme weather and climate events and of climate change. Impacts 


generally refer to effects on lives, livelihoods, health status, ecosystems, 


economic, social, and cultural assets, services (including environmental), and 


infrastructure due to the interaction of climate changes or hazardous climate 


events occurring within a specific time period and the vulnerability of an 


exposed society or system. Impacts are also referred to as consequences and 


outcomes. The impacts of climate change on geophysical systems, including 


floods, droughts, and sea level rise, are a subset of impacts called physical 


impacts. 


Climate Resilience 


The capacity of a community, business, or natural environment to anticipate, 


prevent, withstand, respond to, and recover from a climate change related 


disruption or impact. 







 


 


46        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Climate Scenario 


A plausible and often simplified representation of the future climate, based on 


an internally consistent set of climatological relationships and assumptions of 


radiative forcing, typically constructed for explicit use as input to climate change 


impact models. A 'climate change scenario' is the difference between a climate 


scenario and the current climate. 


Co-Benefits 


The positive effects that a policy or measure with one objective might have on 


other objectives, irrespective of the net effect on overall social welfare. Co-


benefits are often subject to uncertainty and depend on local circumstances 


and implementation practices, among other factors. Co-benefits are also 


referred to as ancillary benefits. 


Critical Infrastructure 


Critical infrastructures are those physical and information technology facilities, 


networks, services and assets which, if disrupted or destroyed, would have a 


serious impact on the health, safety, security or economic well-being of citizens 


or the effective functioning of governments. Critical infrastructure includes: 


energy installations and networks; communications and information technology; 


finance (banking, securities and investment); health care; food; water (dams, 


storage, treatment and networks); transport (airports, ports, intermodal facilities, 


railway and mass transit networks and traffic control systems); production, 


storage and transport of dangerous goods (e.g. chemical, biological, 


radiological and nuclear materials); government (e.g. critical services, facilities, 


information networks, assets and key national sites and monuments). 


Direct Effects 
Emissions or removals from GHG sources or sinks that are owned or controlled by 


the project developer. 


Disaster 


A serious disruption of the functioning of a community or a society involving 


widespread human, material, economic or environmental losses and impacts, 


which exceeds the ability of the affected community or society to cope using its 


own resources. Comment: Disasters are often described as a result of the 


combination of: the exposure to a hazard; the conditions of vulnerability that are 


present; and insufficient capacity or measures to reduce or cope with the 


potential negative consequences. Disaster impacts may include loss of life, injury, 


disease and other negative effects on human physical, mental and social well-


being, together with damage to property, destruction of assets, loss of services, 


social and economic disruption and environmental degradation. 


Disaster Mitigation 
A measure taken to reduce the negative impact of a disaster in order to protect 


lives, property, and the environment and reduce economic disruption.  


Disaster Risk  


The potential loss of life, injury, or destroyed or damaged assets which could 


occur to a system, society or a community in a specific period of time, 


determined probabilistically as a function of hazard, exposure, vulnerability and 


capacity. 


Disaster Risk Reduction 


Disaster risk reduction is aimed at preventing new and reducing existing disaster 


risk and managing residual risk, all of which contribute to strengthening resilience 


and therefore to the achievement of sustainable development. 


Emission Factor 
A factor relating GHG emissions to a level of activity or a certain quantity of 


inputs or products or services (e.g., tonnes of fuel consumed, or units of a 


product). For example, an electricity emission factor is commonly expressed as t 







 


 


47        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


CO2eq/megawatt-hour. 


Exposure 
A measure of the spatiotemporal extent (amount of space and time) that a 


person or asset is in the hazard area. 


Extreme Weather 


Events 


Extreme weather includes unexpected, unusual, unpredictable severe or 


unseasonal weather; weather at the extremes of the historical distribution—the 


range that has been seen in the past. 


Global Warming 


Potential (GWP) 


A factor describing the radiative forcing impact of one mass-based unit of a 


given GHG relative to an equivalent unit of carbon dioxide (CO2) over a given 


period of time. 


Greenhouse Gases 


(GHGs) 


Greenhouse gases are gases that absorb and emit radiation at specific 


wavelengths within the spectrum of infrared radiation emitted by the Earth’s 


surface, the atmosphere, and clouds. The seven GHGs tracked through the 


National Inventory Report are: carbon dioxide (CO2); methane (CH4); nitrous 


oxide (N2O); hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs); perfluorocarbons (PFCs); sulphur 


hexafluoride (SF6); and nitrogen trifluoride (NF3).  


GHG Reduction 


A decrease in GHG emissions or an increase in removal or storage of GHGs from 


the atmosphere, relative to baseline emissions. Primary effects will result in GHG 


reductions, as will some secondary effects. A project activity’s total GHG 


reductions are quantified as the sum of its associated primary effect(s) and any 


significant secondary effects (which may involve decreases or countervailing 


increases in GHG emissions). A GHG project’s total GHG reductions are 


quantified as the sum of the GHG reductions from each project activity.  


GHG Removal 
The total mass of a GHG removed from the atmosphere over a specified period 


of time through a carbon sink or storage.  


GHG Sink 


Any process that removes GHG emissions from the atmosphere and stores them. 


Components of the biosphere, geosphere or hydrosphere with the capability to 


store or accumulate a GHG removed from the atmosphere by a greenhouse 


gas sink are called GHG reservoirs.  


GHG Source Any process that releases GHG emissions into the atmosphere. 


Hazard 


A potentially damaging physical event, phenomenon or human activity that 


may cause the loss of life or injury, property damage, social and economic 


disruption or environmental degradation. 


Impacts 


Refers primarily to the effects on natural and human systems caused by one or 


more hazards. Impacts generally refer to effects on lives, livelihoods, health 


status, ecosystems, economic, social, and cultural assets, services (including 


environmental), and infrastructure due to the interaction of one or more hazard 


events occurring within a specific time period and the vulnerability of an 


exposed society or system. 


Indirect Effects 
Emissions or removals that are a consequence of a project activity, but occur at 


GHG sources or sinks not owned or controlled by the project developer. 







 


 


48        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Intergovernmental 


Panel on Climate 


Change (IPCCC) 


The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) is the international 


body for assessing the science related to climate change. The IPCC was set up 


in 1988 by the World Meteorological Organization and United Nations 


Environment Programme to provide policymakers with regular assessments of the 


scientific basis of climate change, its impacts and future risks, and options for 


adaptation and mitigation. 


Likelihood 
The chance of an event or an incident happening, whether defined, measured 


or determined objectively or subjectively. 


Mitigation The reduction, removal, or avoidance of GHG emissions from a specific project. 


National Significance 


Projects of national significance include projects that:  


 Reduce impacts on critical infrastructure, including essential services, 


from impacts of climate change, disasters triggered by natural hazards, 


and extreme weather events; 


 Reduce the amount of critical infrastructure that is at high risk; 


 Reduce impacts on health and safety of Canadians; 


 Reduce significant disruptions in economic activity from impacts of 


climate change, disasters triggered by natural hazards, and extreme 


weather events;  


 Reduce costs of recovery and replacement (e.g. to the Government of 


Canada’s Disaster Financial Assistance Arrangements (DFAA)); and 


 Reduce impact on Canada’s vulnerable regions, as identified in the Pan-


Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change including 


Indigenous, northern, coastal and remote communities.  


Natural Disaster 


An event that results when a natural hazard impacts a vulnerable community in 


a way that exceeds or overwhelms the community’s ability to cope and may 


cause serious harm to the safety, health or welfare of people, or damage to 


property or the environment. 


Natural Hazard 


A source of potential harm originating from a hydro-meteorological, 


environmental, geological or biological event. 


Note: Examples of natural hazards include tornadoes, floods, glacial melt, 


extreme weather, wildland fires, earthquakes, tsunamis, etc. 


Natural Infrastructure 


The use of naturally occurring resources or the engineered use of natural 


resources to provide adaptation or mitigation services to the gradual or sudden 


impacts of climate change or natural hazards. 


Natural infrastructure often serves as a carbon sink. 


No-Regret Adaptation 


Options 


Adaptation options (or measures) that would be justified under all plausible 


future scenarios, including the absence of manmade climate change.  


One-Time Effects 


Secondary effects related to the construction, installation, and establishment or 


the decommissioning and termination of the project activity. One time effects 


are not considered under the current iteration of the Climate Lens. 







 


 


49        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Organizational-Level 


Assessment  


An assessment of GHG emissions/reductions or resilience to climate impact risk 


that considers a wider scope of activities under the purview of an organization or 


entity. This would typically consider areas including (but not limited to) buildings, 


fleets, emergency services, transportation, land use, as well as access to water, 


and disposition of wastewater and solid waste. Such assessments typically 


identify mitigation goals and specific actions that are required to meet those 


goals. 


Pan-Canadian 


Framework on Clean 


Growth and Climate 


Change  


The Pan-Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change (PCF) is 


the plan developed with the provinces and territories (PTs) and in consultation 


with Indigenous peoples to meet our emissions reduction targets, grow the 


economy, and build resilience to a changing climate. This plan includes a pan-


Canadian approach to pricing carbon pollution, and measures to achieve 


reductions across all sectors of the economy. It aims to drive innovation and 


growth by increasing technology development and adoption to ensure 


Canadian businesses are competitive in the global low-carbon economy. It also 


includes actions to advance climate change adaptation and build resilience to 


climate impacts across the country. 


Project (GHG 


Assessment) 


A specific activity or set of activities being assessed for potential to reduce GHG 


emissions, increase the storage of carbon, or enhance GHG removals from the 


atmosphere. A project may be a stand-alone project, or a component of a 


larger project. 


Project (Resilience Risk 


Assessment) 


A specific activity or set of activities being assessed for climate risk. A project 


may be a stand-alone project, or a component of a larger project. 


Project Activity (GHG 


Assessment)  


A specific action or intervention targeted at changing GHG emissions, removals, 


or storage. It may include modifications or alterations to existing production, 


process, consumption, service, or management systems, as well as the 


introduction of new systems. 


Project Activity 


(Resilience Risk 


Assessment) 


A specific action or intervention targeted at making an asset more climate 


resilient. It may include modifications or alterations to existing production, 


process, consumption, service, or management systems, as well as the 


introduction of new systems. 


Project-Level 


Assessment 


An assessment of GHG emissions or resilience to climate impact risk that is 


specific to a set of project activities within the scope of a defined project (see 


definitions above). This typically refers to a single asset or a series of interrelated 


assets constructed or rehabilitated as part of a single procurement process.  


Public Use or Benefit  


Privately or publicly owned infrastructure that provides services essential to the 


health, safety, security or economic well-being of Canadians and the effective 


functioning of government. 


Residual Risk  The risk that is left over after risk mitigation efforts.  


Resilience 


Resilience refers to the ability of a system, community or society exposed to 


hazards to resist, absorb, accommodate to, adapt to, transform and recover 


from the effects of a hazard in a timely and efficient manner, including through 


the preservation and restoration of its essential basic structures and functions 


through risk management. 







 


 


50        CLIMATE LENS - GENERAL GUIDANCE 


Return on Investment Loss Avoided in relation to the Project Cost.  


Risk 


The potential loss of life, injury, or destroyed or damaged assets which could 


occur to a system, society or a community in a specific period of time, 


determined probabilistically as a function of hazard, exposure, vulnerability and 


capacity.  


Source: UNISDR 2017 


Risk Assessment  The overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk evaluation. 


Risk Transfer 


The process of formally or informally shifting the financial consequences of 


particular risks from one party to another, whereby a household, community, 


enterprise or State authority will obtain resources from the other party after a 


disaster occurs, in exchange for ongoing or compensatory social or financial 


benefits provided to that other party. 


Scenario 


A scenario is a coherent, internally consistent, and plausible description of a 


possible future state of the world (IPCC, 1994). It is not a forecast; each scenario 


is one alternative image of how the future can unfold. A projection may serve as 


the raw material for a scenario, but scenarios often require additional 


information (e.g., about baseline conditions). A set of scenarios often is adopted 


to reflect, as well as possible, the range of uncertainty in projections. 


Scope 1 Emissions 
Used at the inventory level to reference emissions from operations that are 


owned or controlled by the project proponent.  


Scope 2 Emissions 


Used at the inventory level to reference indirect emissions from the generation of 


purchased or acquired electricity, steam, heat or cooling consumed by the 


asset or project.  


Scope 3 Emissions 


Used at the inventory level to reference all indirect emissions (not included in 


scope 2) that occur in the project or asset’s value chain, including both 


upstream and downstream emissions. 


Upstream and 


Downstream Effects 


(GHG Mitigation)  


Secondary effects associated with the inputs used (upstream) or the products or 


services produced (downstream) by a project activity. 


Upstream and 


Downstream Impacts 


(Resilience)  


A dependency impact where in upstream and downstream relationships 


anything that happens downstream can have an adverse effect on upstream 


assets or systems, or vice versa.  


Validation 


The systematic, independent and documented process for verifying the 


accuracy of a GHG assessment relative to the Climate Lens guidance, ISO 


14064-2, and (where relevant) the GHG Protocol for Project Accounting. 


Vulnerability 


A condition or set of conditions determined by physical, social, economic and 


environmental factors or processes that increase the susceptibility of an asset or 


a community to the impact of hazards. 


 














[bookmark: _Hlk531161788]

Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program

Business Case Guide for Major Infrastructure Projects

July 2018 



[image: ][image: ]





31        Business Case Guide for Major Projects  — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM



Table of Contents

Introduction	3

Preparing a Complete Project Submission	4

Project Eligibility	5

Information Required for Project Submission	5

Executive Summary – Project Tombstone Information	5

Project Background and Investment Rationale	6

Project Description	7

Procurement Strategy and Implementation Plan	8

Project Costing and Funding Information	11

Climate Lens	14

Community Employment Benefits reporting	15

Risks and Mitigation Strategies	16

Attestation	17

Annex A – Project Outcomes and Indicators	18

Annex B – Eligible and Ineligible Costs	21

Annex C - How To Create A .KML File …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 22

 

[bookmark: _GoBack]


[bookmark: _Toc531171722]Introduction

This guide provides an overview of the information required for large projects under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program. Only those projects that are anticipated to be outside of the Minister’s delegated authority and require a federal Treasury Board Submission are required to submit the information outlined in this Guide, otherwise, a regular project submission will suffice. Note that, in addition to the information provided in the business case, further information may be requested as required,  to support the review and approval process.

The following projects are outside the Minister’s delegated authority, and must be approved by Treasury Board. 

1. A project that requests a contribution of more than $50M from federal sources;

2. A project that is within federal Ministers’ ridings;

3. A project involving federal assets;

4. An ultimate recipient that is a for-profit private sector organization;

5. A project that requires an exemption to aspects of the Policy on Transfer Payments that require Treasury Board approval;

6. A project that requires an exception to the program’s terms and conditions;

7. A project that involves sole source contracting (contracts over $25,000 or, for the acquisition of architectural and/or engineering services, over $100,000); and

8. The Minister decides to seek Treasury Board approval for a project.







This guidance document is evergreen and will be updated and refined as the program evolves. 






[bookmark: _Toc531171723]Preparing a Complete Project Submission

A complete project submission includes the following:

· A completed Business Case that contains all relevant information, as outlined in this guide, including maps, diagrams, etc., suitable for reproduction

· Supporting reports referenced in the Business Case

· KML file with project location details (see Annex C)

· Signed attestation by designated municipal official

· A completed Environmental and Aboriginal Consultation Information questionnaire (available separately)*

· Climate Lens assessments



	 

* Note that capital costs, including site preparation or construction, will not be reimbursed until INFC has confirmed that Environmental Assessment requirements and Aboriginal Consultation obligations have been met to the extent possible at the time a claim is processed.






[bookmark: _Toc531171724]Project Eligibility

Under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP), the way that project eligibility is determined has changed. In the past, eligibility was based exclusively on asset type. With ICIP, project eligibility is now assessed using an outcomes-based approach. In order to be considered for funding, a project must align with at least one immediate outcome within each investment stream from which funding is being sought. The project must also meet all applicable program requirements as outlined in the ICIP Bilateral Agreement.

Table 1. Immediate Outcomes for ICIP funding 

		Funding Stream

		Immediate Outcome



		Green Infrastructure - Environmental Quality 

		Increased capacity to treat and manage wastewater and stormwater

Increased access to potable water

Increased capacity to reduce or remediate soil and air pollutants











[bookmark: _Toc531171725]Information Required for Project Submission



[bookmark: _Toc531171726]Executive Summary – Project Tombstone Information

The purpose of the Executive Summary – Project Tombstone Information section is to provide an overview of the key information provided in this business case. The executive summary will frame the project’s eligibility under the applicable stream of the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program.  

Project identifier

Provide a unique alphanumeric value assigned by the Province or Territory.

Project Title

Provide a concise but meaningful description of the asset and the work to be completed. For example: Toronto York Spadina Subway Extension.

INVESTMENT STREAM

Identify the investment stream(s) from which the project will be funded.







Project Description

Provide a brief but meaningful description of the main objectives of the project, the scope of the project (all major quantifiable components), and the approximate output(s) that the project will generate (e.g. 1 km new watermain). The description must clearly identify how the project will meet relevant immediate outcomes (e.g. The project will improve potable water infrastructure by….. as per outcomes outlined in Table 1). This should be in plain language and suitable for public communications purposes. 

Complete the outcomes and indicators in Annex A, for the outcome(s) that are relevant to the project. These will be used for reporting and performance measurement. 

Ultimate Recipient Name and Type

Provide the name and the type of ultimate recipient (e.g. municipality, regional government, town, village or other eligible entity) that will receive funds to deliver the project. 

Location	

Indicate the province or territory and the municipality where the project will take place. 

Provide a KML file with the project location(s). This is not a picture or PDF map of the project location, but a digital spatial representation of the project location produced by a geographic information system. 

key metrics	

Indicate the total costs, eligible costs, forecasted construction start and end dates, and high level key risks (risks will be addressed in detail in Section 8).

[bookmark: _Toc531171727]Project Background and Investment Rationale

The purpose of the Project Background and Investment Rationale section is to provide the strategic alignment of the proposed project, as well as the rationale justifying its selection and implementation. 

Project Background

Include relevant background information about the project, including:

· The history leading up to project submission, 

· Dates of public announcements and commitments at the provincial or municipal levels. 

· Previous phases of the project (if applicable) and funding that was secured for these previous phases,

·  any previous federal contributions.  

· If the project is being constructed in phases as part of a larger program, indicate which phase of the project is part of the current funding request, the status of future phases, and whether other phases have been or will be submitted for funding.

Rationale

Define the problem or opportunity the project is intended to address or exploit, highlighting the investment rationale underpinning the project. The rationale should be supported by data wherever possible. Include a source to any studies that are drawn upon to build the rationale for the project.  The discussion should include the following:

· Explain the public benefit or public use of the proejct. 

· If applicable, include a discussion of the current population, and projected population growth and overall development trends, and how these changes will impact or be impacted by the project. 

· Include a discussion of the alternative approaches, including not proceeding with the project, that were considered planning for this project, and explain the rationale for selection of the project as the most appropriate means to address the problem/opportunity, and the process to make this decision. 

· Indicate the benefits of the selected project, including, as a minimum and as appropriate, economic, societal and environmental, as described below.  Wherever possible, these benefits should be quantified. Other benefits not listed may be provided to strengthen the rationale for the project.

· If the project is part of a larger program or has additional phases not included in application, the project benefits should be clearly broken out from broader program benefits or the benefits of other phases.  





		Benefits



Economic and Societal:  Indicate the anticipated impact of the project on the community and economy of the urban area in which the project resides, such as: 

· Impact on the overall economy of the city/region (narrative discussion)

· Expected short-term and long-term job creation as a result of the project



Environmental:  Indicate the anticipated environmental benefits, such as:

· Local air quality improvements: volatile organic compounds (VOC), nitrogen oxides (NOx), Sulphur oxides (SOx), particulate matter (PM2.5), carbon monoxide (CO)

· Reductions in GHG emissions (aligning with results of the Climate Lens assessment) 







[bookmark: _Toc531171728]Project Description

The purpose of the Project Description section is to provide detailed information on the proposed project’s scope, functionality and capabilities.  







Project scope

Provide details about the scope of the project, including design, project components, the work to be carried out and any other information considered relevant. In the description, include the following, and support with maps, illustrations, etc., as appropriate:  

· Project location (as per the KML file)

· Construction technology, specifically any unique aspects that create significant impacts or pose risks

· Any other innovative technical aspects, including associated benefits and risks



Describe any external projects that are interrelated to this project, which, if they are not implemented, would jeopardise the successful completion of this project, its ongoing operational viability, or negatively impact its outcomes.  Explain the approval and funding status of any such external projects.



Indicate any existing system elements that will be replaced by the project and how these elements will be decommissioned.  Note if any federal funding was provided for elements that will be abandoned.  

ADDITIONAL Characteristics

Indicate the accessibility standards that apply in the jurisdiction, and demonstrate how the project will meet or exceed the highest applicable standard.

Confirm that energy efficiency standards included in building codes for the jurisdiction will be met or exceeded. 



[bookmark: _Toc531171729]Procurement Strategy and Implementation Plan

The purpose of the Procurement Strategy and Implementation Plan section is to indicate the recipient’s readiness to undertake the project by demonstrating the degree to which the project is ready to enter procurement.

Nature of the project

Indicate the % by cost of each: New, Rehabilitation, Expansion, Other (provide explanation)

Asset ownership and OPERATION

Indicate if the Ultimate Recipient will own and operate the asset(s). If not, provide additional information regarding asset ownership and operation. Include the name and type of entity and a brief description of the arrangement.  If asset ownership and/or maintenance for different elements is distributed between different entities, specify for each.

If the project is dependent on any leases, confirm that the lease will allow the asset to be available for its intended purpose throughout its useful life (note that leasing land, building and other facilities are ineligible expenditures).  

Project Schedule

Provide a detailed description of the project’s schedule, as per the table below; the table can be modified to reflect the key activities of the project (for some projects with multiple activities, timelines per component may be necessary), any additional key activities and estimated announcement dates. 

 

		Table 2. Start and end dates for the project’s key activities



		Activity

		Start Date

		End Date



		Project planning and environmental assessment 

		

		



		Preliminary engineering

		

		



		Detailed design

		

		



		Land acquisition

		

		



		Tender(s) period for construction

		

		



		Construction

		

		



		Commissioning 

		

		







Provide a snapshot of the current state of the project in relation to the key activities, and any time pressures that exist for the project. Indicate whether the project is currently tracking ahead of schedule, on schedule, or behind schedule.



If land is required, describe the project’s land acquisition, including current status, the target date for completion of all acquisitions, anticipated need for expropriation and associated timelines, and any acquisitions where no right of expropriation exists.

Provide a targeted date for federal funding approval, and explain how the project will be impacted should approvals not be obtained by that date, including the potential impact on the budget or the scope of the project, as appropriate. 

Procurement

Explain the overall procurement strategy for this project. The description should include at a minimum, procurement for: 

· the primary design, 

· construction and project management contracts.   

For each procurement package include:

· the procurement model

· the agency responsible 

· constraints or limitations that may impact the procurement timeline (i.e. approval of funding, design approvals and permits, land acquisition, security requirements of contractors etc.), and how they will be addressed

· details and rationale for proposed use of non-traditional models (such as design-build, Public-Private Partnership / Alternative Service Delivery, and similar)

· project scope represented by each procurement package

Describe any non-competitive procurement that will be used on the project (e.g. proposed sole-source contracts), including:

· amount, and contractor (if known) 

· rationale for such contracts, 

· conformity to the proponent’s procurement policy, 

· how fairness and value-for-money will be preserved

Provide assurance that there is a framework in place for establishing an accessible, fair and competitive environment to award contracts for the project.  Confirm that the contract award process for eligible expenditures to be funded under the project is in accordance with this framework and will be fair, transparent, competitive, and consistent with value for money principles, or in a manner otherwise acceptable to Canada, and if applicable, in accordance and consistent with the Canada Free Trade Agreement  and international trade agreements (describe any variances to this requirement and plans to achieve compliance).  



Note that non-competitive procurement also includes any anticipated utility relocations, specialized equipment purchased outside of primary contracts or specified to be used by bidders, use of standing offers which were not competitively procured or which have been materially adjusted through negotiation, preference for local bidders, union-only contracts, and similar.





Project Governance and recipient capacity

Outline the project governance and oversight, including roles, responsibilities and accountabilities for the entire project, from strategic planning through design, procurement, construction and operation of the completed asset. Include an indication of the ability of each agency with a role in the project to fulfill its obligations, by indicating experience with similar undertakings, including the use of the selected procurement model.

Stakeholder ENGAGEMENT

Indicate the role of external stakeholders, including the general public and/or interest groups, in the development and approval of the project, any significant public concerns with the project, and how these will be addressed.  Indicate whether any approvals, permits, authorizations, provision of services or assets including construction of related works, or similar, are required from any public or private sector stakeholders, and the process that will be followed to secure these.  Indicate any potential impact on the project if these are not secured on a timely basis. 

Innovation

Describe any innovative approaches to the processes used to manage the project, including benefits and risks to these approaches.







[bookmark: _Toc531171730]Project Costing and Funding Information



The Project Costing and Funding Information section will provide information with respect to the cost of the project, the level of the current cost estimate and accompanying cost contingency, and confirm whether all funding other than federal funding has been secured.

Source of funds

Complete the table below. The total of all funding sources must add up to the total project costs (and not only eligible costs). The program cost sharing and federal stacking limits must be respected. 



		Table 3. Source of Funds for the Project



		Source of Funds

		Amount ($)

		Secured (Yes/No)



		Total Project Costs

		

		



		Total Eligible Costs

		

		



		Federal Contribution 

		

		



		Provincial Contribution

		

		



		Ultimate Recipient Contribution

		

		



		Other Contribution (Specify, one row for each source)

		

		



		Other Contribution (Specify, one row for each source)

		

		









DEFINITIONS

Total Project Costs: Sum of eligible and ineligible costs from all sources, in nominal dollars.

Total Eligible Costs: Sum of all eligible costs associated with the project as per the IBA.

Federal Contribution: Amount of funding sought from ICIP for the project. 

Provincial Contribution: Amount of funding contributed by the province.

Ultimate Recipient Contribution: Amount of funding contributed by the Ultimate Recipient.

Other Contribution: Amount of funding sought from any other sources of funding (such as municipal share when not Ultimate Recipient, donations, other federal funding). Clearly identify the name of the entity that will provide each source of funding.



Secured funding

Provide assurance that funding to undertake and complete the project has been secured. Funding assurance may include, but is not limited to a letter from a Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer/Treasurer, a letter from a financial institution, or a Council Resolution of budget allocations. 

For any sources of funds that are not yet secured, provide an explanation, including the timeline for securing the funding and any constraints or conditions.

Project Financial Details and Cashflow

Provide a breakdown of the total capital cost of each key project component, including any contingency and any unallocated cost (include unallocated cost as a component), and the anticipated program contribution for each component by year.  Also provide a description of what is included in the ineligible costs.  Note that the costs associated with any contracts signed before approval are not eligible for reimbursement, with the exception of the costs of the Climate Lens assessments.



		Table 4. Financial contributions by component and source



		Name of Project Component

		Description of Project Component

		Estimated Total Expenditures ($)

		Estimated Total Eligible Expenditures ($)

		Estimated Contribution by Canada ($)

		Estimated Contribution by Province

($)

		Estimated Contribution by Ultimate Recipient ($)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Subtotal

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Contingency

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Total

		

		

		

		

		














		
Table 5. Canada’s contribution by fiscal year and by component



		Name of Project Component

		Canada’s Contribution per Fiscal Year ($)



		

		2018-19

		2019-20

		2020-21

		2021-22

		2022-23

		2023-24

		2024-25

		2025-26

		2026-27

		2027-28

		Total



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Subtotal

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Contingency

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Total

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		







If available for the project, in addition to the financial information provided above, please include detailed cost estimate documents produced by owner’s engineer or cost surveyor, with your project application.

Cost Estimates

Provide details about the project’s cost estimates, including:

· How the total project cost was estimated, 

· When they were prepared (estimates should be current), and by whom (i.e. title/accreditation).

· Any peer or other external review undertaken to validate the cost.  

· An indication as to the level of confidence, degree of accuracy

· The level of contingency of the proposed cost estimates; explain what it is intended to cover and why the level is appropriate. 

· Indicate how the estimated project cost will be refined, and the estimated dates when new project costs will be prepared.

Cost Overruns

Explain how the project budget will be monitored and any budget gaps identified.  If budget gaps occur, explain which entity will be responsible to address them, and how this will be done.  



If the project funding timing is not sufficient to cover projected construction costs in any fiscal year, indicate what means of financing will be used to cover the shortfall.







[bookmark: _Toc531171731]Climate Lens 



The Climate Lens is a horizontal requirement applicable to Infrastructure Canada’s Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program. It is to provide meaningful insight into the climate impacts of individual projects, encourage improved choices by project planners consistent with shared federal, provincial, and territorial objectives articulated in the Pan-Canadian Framework for Clean Growth and Climate Change—including a commitment to reduce Canada’s GHG emissions by 30% below 2005 levels by 2030—and provide a substantive eligibility test for projects funded through the Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation sub-stream of the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program.

The Climate Lens consists of two components: the GHG mitigation assessment, to measure the anticipated GHG emissions impact of an infrastructure project; and the climate change resilience assessment, which will employ a risk management approach to anticipate, prevent, withstand, respond to, and recover from a climate change related disruption or impact. Complete the appropriate assessments following Infrastructure Canada’s Climate Lens General Guidance. The complete assessment must be submitted prior to project commencement for those projects that are formally approved. In addition, the table below with summary information must be completed.

Note that any contracts issued for Climate Lens assessments must be in compliance with the terms of the ICIP Agreement in order to be eligible for reimbursement.

		Table 6. Climate Lens Assessment Information for the project



		Have you included a GHG mitigation assessment with your project application?

		YES or NO



		Have you included a Climate resilience assessment with your project application?

		YES or NO



		If either assessment is not included, provide a rationale.

		



		Expected lifespan of the asset* 

		

		Indicate the year in which the expected lifespan of the asset begins

		



		Confirm that the relevant attestation(s) has been completed by a qualified assessor or validator

		YES or NO



		*If the project involves multiple assets, please indicate the total lifespan for all assets assessed under the Climate Lens.  



		GHG Mitigation Assessment



		2030 GHG Results 

		Lifetime GHG Results



		Baseline scenario emissions in 2030

		t / kt / Mt



		Baseline scenario emissions, 

lifetime

		t / kt / Mt



		Project scenario emissions in 2030

		t / kt / Mt

		Estimated project emissions, 

lifetime

		t / kt / Mt



		Net emissions

		REDUCTION or INCREASE

		t / kt / Mt

		Net emissions

		REDUCTION or INCREASE

		t / kt / Mt



		Climate Resilience Assessment



		Have risks associated with climate change and extreme weather events in the design, location and planned operation of the project been considered? Note, these risks could be rapid (e.g. a heavy rainfall) or gradual (sea-level rise) and present or anticipated threats associated with climate change.

		YES or NO



		What hazards, associated with climate change and extreme weather events, were identified which may impact the project’s integrity and its ability to provide sustained service through its design life? Select all that apply.



		

		Storm surges

		

		Increased frequency of freeze-thaw cycles



		

		Higher tides

		

		Increased rainfall



		

		Sea level rise

		

		Increased overland flooding



		

		Coastal erosion

		

		Increased snow loads



		

		Salt water intrusion

		

		Increased wind speeds or tornadoes



		

		Heat waves or heat island effect

		

		Hurricanes



		

		Permafrost degradation

		

		Hail



		

		Drought

		

		Windstorms



		

		Wildland fires

		

		Ice storms



		

		Other (specify)

		

		Other (specify)



		Describe key measures or features of the project that incorporate climate change considerations.  

		









[bookmark: _Toc531171732]Community Employment Benefits reporting



Reporting on community employment benefits is a program requirement. An overview is provided in the Community Employment Benefits General Guidance. Complete the table below to report on community employment benefits. 



		Table 7. Community Employment Benefits reporting information for the project



		Will the target group benefit?

		% hours worked



		Which specific groups will you be targeting for employment opportunities on this project?



Provide the % of total project hours that you anticipate each targeted group will work.





		Apprentices

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		

		Indigenous peoples  

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		

		Women

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		

		Persons with disabilities  

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		

		Veterans

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		

		Youth

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		

		New Canadians  

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		%



		Will the target group benefit?

		Total value of contract



		Which types of enterprises will you be targeting? 



Provide the total value of contracts.

		Small enterprise

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		$



		

		Medium enterprise

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		



		

		Social enterprise

		YES  or  NO  or  UNKNOWN

		





 







[bookmark: _Toc531171733]Risks and Mitigation Strategies



Describe the key project risks. The risks outlined should be those that affect, at a minimum:

· The ability to complete the project in accordance with the scope described in this business case

· The ability to complete the project with the funding/financing approved from all sources

· The ability to complete the project on schedule

· The ability to achieve the benefits and outcomes 

· The reputational impact that might result from the project

For each of the risks identified, provide additional information as follows:

· Probability: Outline the probability of the risk occurring (low, medium, high).

· Impact: Describe in detail the impact of the risk defined in terms of cost, scope, schedule, benefits and reputation.

· Initial Risk Level Assessment: Determine the risk level based on the probability and the impact (low, medium, high).

· Response/Mitigation: Provide additional details on the mitigation for this risk. Will the risk be avoided, mitigated, transferred, or accepted.

· Residual Risk Level Assessment: Determine the residual risk level (low, medium, high), taking into account the proposed response.

Indicate whether a risk assessment has been (or will be) prepared, and whether a risk registry will be maintained for the duration of the project. 




[bookmark: _Toc531171734]Attestation



Attestation from the province or territory. Note that a designated official from the province or territory must sign the attestation. This designated official must have the authority to attest that:

· Project information is complete and accurate

· The contribution requested from INFC includes only eligible expenditures

· The project will be governed under ICIP terms and conditions



		
Table 8. Required Attestation Format



		I, _______________________ (Name), [INSERT TITLE] with [INSERT MUNICIPALITY], attest that, for [PROJECT TITLE]:									

	1. The information provided in this project application is complete and accurate.

2. Federal funding will support only Eligible Expenditures and that the project meets the provisions as specified in the ICIP Bilateral Agreement.

3. The project will be governed under the terms of the ICIP Bilateral Agreement. 	

4. Any Conditions set associated with formal approval will be met.												

Dated, this ________day of ___________20___																				

_______________________________________ 								

Signature 				







	




[bookmark: _Toc531171735]Annex A – Project Outcomes and Indicators

GREEN – ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

		Project outcomes(s)



		☐

		Increased capacity to treat and manage wastewater and storm water



		Indicators



		

		Quantity / 

Length

		Physical Condition before investment

		Physical Condition 

after investment



		Wastewater assets 



Indicate quantity or length as appropriate



		Treatment plants

		

		

		



		

		Lagoon systems

		

		

		



		

		Wastewater pump stations

		

		

		



		

		Wastewater lift stations

		

		

		



		

		Wastewater storage tanks

		

		

		



		

		Linear wastewater assets (in meters)

		

		

		



		

		Compliance with federal effluent regulations (or ROMAEU in QC)

		This project will achieve compliance with regulations

		YES  or  NO



		

		

		Risk level of the facility

		MEDIUM  or HIGH



		

		Quantity

		Physical Condition before investment

		Physical Condition 

after investment



		Stormwater assets 



Indicate quantity or length as appropriate



		Drainage pump stations

		

		

		



		

		Management facilities: ponds and water wetlands

		

		

		



		

		Management facilities: all other permitted end-of-pipe facilities

		

		

		



		

		Linear stormwater features (in meters)

		

		

		



		

		Before investment

		After investment



		Volume of materials diverted (in Liters)

		

		



		Capacity to dispose of materials (in Liters)

		

		



		Project outcomes(s)



		☐

		Increased access to potable water



		Indicators



		Provincial or territorial drinking water standards will be met or exceeded

		YES  or  NO



		

		Quantity / 

Length

		Physical Condition before investment

		Physical Condition 

after investment



		Drinking water assets 



Indicate quantity or length as appropriate



		Water treatment facilities

		

		

		



		

		Reservoir

		

		

		



		

		Pump stations

		

		

		



		

		Local water pipes (in metres)

		

		

		



		

		Transmission pipes (in metres)

		

		

		



		Project outcomes(s)



		☐

		Increased capacity to reduce or remediate soil and air pollutants



		Indicators



		A Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) found that this site was contaminated

		YES  or  NO



		Is the site ready for intended use at project conclusion? 

		YES  or  NO



		

		Before investment

		After Investment



		Volume of materials diverted (in Tonnes)

		

		



		Capacity to dispose of materials (in Tonnes)

		

		





[bookmark: _Toc519084666]Definitions

New construction/expansion projects: Characterized as greenfield developments; or the construction of capital fixed assets,  that did not exist previous to procurement and substantial completion of a project resulting from federal investment.

Rehabilitation: Characterized as brownfield developments involving the application of appropriate measures, including: reconstruction to extend the life of an existing asset, where the quality, structural safety, or service life of the project have been deemed unacceptable or otherwise compromised and resulting in increased user costs or safety concerns; or, rehabilitation projects may also be used to improve, strengthen, or otherwise ameliorate an asset that has been subject to stress or usage that is higher than initially specified when originally constructed. In all cases, rehabilitation projects exclude deferred maintenance, and should serve to significantly increase the life of an asset.



Physical Condition: is measured on a 5 point scale, as defined below.

· Very poor: The asset is unfit for sustained service. Near or beyond expected service life, widespread signs of advanced deterioration, some assets may be unusable.

· Poor: Increasing potential of affecting service. The asset is approaching end of service life; condition below standard and a large portion of system exhibits significant deterioration.

· Fair: The asset requires attention. The assets show signs of deterioration and some elements exhibit deficiencies.

· Good: The asset is adequate. Acceptable, generally within mid stage of expected service life.

· Very good: Asset is fit for the future. Well maintained, good condition, new or recently rehabilitated.



Potable water assets include the following: 

· Local water pipes include all connecting pipes, of diameter less than 416 mm, between pump stations, re-chlorination facilities and storage facilities if these are located within the distribution system. 

· Pump stations include pump stations within the non-linear potable water system owned by your organization, as well as all pump stations leased by your organization through a capital lease agreement. 

· Reservoir: A pond, lake, or basin (natural or artificial) that stores, regulates, or controls water. Include the number of reservoirs and water towers within the distribution, transmission, or integrated system owned by your organization or leased by your organization through a capital lease agreement. 

· Transmission pipes include all connecting pipes, of diameter greater than or equal to 416mm, between pump stations, re-chlorination facilities and storage facilities when located between the source and the treatment plant or between the treatment plant and the distribution system. 



Storm water assets include the following: 

· Linear storm water assets include culverts less than 3 meters in diameter, open ditches, storm water pipes (diameter: < 450 mm), storm water pipes (diameter: ≥ 450 mm to < 1,500 mm), and storm water pipes (diameter: ≥ 1,500 mm) owned by your organization or leased by your organization through a capital lease agreement.

· Storm water drainage pump stations include storm water drainage pump stations that are connected to drainage swales, ditches and storm sewers. Exclude combined pump stations which convey combined sewage/storm water to wastewater treatment plants. 

· Storm water management facilities – All other Permitted End-of-Pipe Facilities includes engineered end-of-pipe facilities that have received a permit or approval to operate and which are not storm water ponds or wetlands (e.g. oil-grit separators, etc.). 

· Storm water management facilities – Storm water management ponds and storm water wetlands: includes engineered end-of-pipe facilities that have received a permit or approval to operate and which may provide peak flow control, runoff quality control, runoff control for downstream erosion, runoff volume control, etc. Includes dry ponds, wet ponds, and storm water wetlands etc. 










[bookmark: _Toc531171736]Annex B – Eligible and Ineligible Costs

Eligible Expenditures

Public infrastructure is defined as tangible capital assets primarily for public use and/or benefit. Infrastructure investments will support public infrastructure, with flexibility for related project planning. Eligible expenditures are costs considered by INFC to be direct and necessary for the successful implementation of an eligible project, excluding those explicitly identified in the Ineligible Costs section below.  

These eligible expenditures may include capital costs, design and planning, as well as costs related to meeting specific program requirements (eg. climate lens). Project expenditures will only be eligible as of project approval, except for expenditures associated with climate lens assessments, which are eligible before project approval, but can only be reimbursed if and when a project is approved. 

Ineligible Expenditures

a) Costs incurred before project approval and any and all expenditures related to contracts signed prior to Project approval, except for expenditures associated with climate lens assessments;

b) Costs incurred for cancelled projects; 

c) Costs of relocating entire communities;

d) Land acquisition;

e) Leasing land, buildings and other facilities; leasing equipment other than equipment directly related to the construction of the project; real estate fees and related costs; 

f) Any overhead costs, including salaries and other employment benefits of any employees of the eligible recipient or ultimate recipient, its direct or indirect operating or administrative costs and more specifically its costs related to planning, engineering, architecture, supervision, management and other activities normally carried out by its staff, with the following exception: 

· The incremental costs of employees of an eligible recipient and/or ultimate recipient may be included as eligible expenditures under the following conditions: 

· The eligible recipient and/or ultimate recipient is able to demonstrate that it is not economically feasible to tender a contract; and

· The arrangement is approved in advance and in writing by Canada. 

g) Financing charges, legal fees, and loan interest payments, including those related to easements (e.g. surveys); 

h) Any goods and services costs which are received through donations or in kind;

i) Provincial sales tax, goods and services tax, and harmonized sales tax for which the ultimate recipient is eligible for a rebate, and any other costs eligible for rebates; 

j) Costs associated with operating expenses and regularly scheduled maintenance work;

k) Cost related to furnishing and non-fixed assets which are not essential for the operation of the asset/project; and 

l) All capital costs, including site preparation and construction costs, until INFC has confirmed that environment assessment and Aboriginal consultation obligations have been met and continue to be met.

Annex C – How To Create A .KML File



This guide will walk you through the steps to create a .KML file by using Google Earth’sfree desktop application. Other geographic software packages like ArcGIS or QGIS may also be used to create the file, although this guide only provides instructions for the use of Google Earth. Using a .KML allows a variety of point, polygon, and line data to be represented spatially with detail and consistency.



Using Google Earth



*If you already have Google Earth installed on your system, skip to step 2.

1. If you don’t already have Google Earth (free) installed on your system, follow the download instructions at this link: https://www.google.com/earth/desktop/



2. Navigate to your project location using one or more of the following options:

a. Typing an address or coordinates in the search bar

b. Using the navigation tools

c. Clicking, dragging, and scrolling in the map viewer



[image: ]

3. Draw your project on the map in the proper location using the placemark, polygon, and path tools (pictured below). You may draw as many components of varying types (point, line, polygon) as necessary.



[image: ]

b.  Polygon: project components that consist of an area of any shape

· Examples include: building footprints, vegetation cuts, sewer/wastewater lagoons, etc.

[bookmark: _Hlk531164815][image: ]    Clicking this button will bring up a dialogue box and a crosshair cursor (see below). Click as many times as necessary to create a closed polygon that represents your

project feature. 




· [bookmark: _Hlk531165128]You can rename the polygon by changing the entry in the ‘Name’ field of the dialogue box (a).

· Click ‘OK’ when finished (b).

[image: ]









c. Path: linear project components

· Examples include: roads, sewer lines, railways, pipelines, trails, transmission lines, etc.

[image: ]   Clicking this button will bring up a dialogue box and a crosshair cursor (see below).

Click as many times as necessary to create a line that represents your project

feature.















· You can rename the polygon by changing the entry in the ‘Name’ field of the dialogue box (a).



· Click ‘OK’ when finished (b).
















All drawn components will appear in the ‘Places’ sidebar under the ‘Temporary Places’ folder.





















4. Export the shapes to .KML to be shared.

* Warning: If you have multiple shapes, they will need to be exported individually as separate .KML files.

a. Right click on the component in the ‘Places’ side





























b. Change the file type from .KMZ to .KML using the ‘Save as type:’ drop down menu.







c. Choose the location where you would like to save the file in the file browser. You will need to locate it later on to send it to INFC.



[image: ]   Click ‘Save’ when you are finished. You are now ready to upload or email the file to INFC.





*Repeat Step 4 for as many project components as you have created if you have more than one.



image3.png







image4.png







image5.jpeg

= Google Earth Pro

Fie Edit View Tools Add Help

¥ Search

Search

o







image6.png







image7.jpeg

= Google Earth Pro

Fie Edit View Tools Add Help

¥ Search

Search

o







image8.emf

Choose the appropriate drawing tool for the type of component you are drawing: 


 


a. Placemark: point project components 


 Examples include: wells, outfalls, culverts, etc. 


 


   Clicking this button will add a placemark to the map and bring up a 


corresponding dialogue box (see below). 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 You can move the placemark by 


clicking and dragging it to the desired 


location, or entering the desired 


latitude and longitude coordinates in 


the dialogue box (a). 


 


 You can rename the placemark by 


changing the entry in the ‘Name’ field 


of the dialogue box (b). 


 


 Click ‘OK’ when finished (c). 


 




image9.png







image10.png







image11.png







image12.png







image13.jpeg







image14.png







image15.png

Googie Earth - New ath ... Es

Description | Style, Color | View | Altiude | Measurements







image16.png







image17.png







image18.png







image19.png







image20.jpeg







image21.png







image22.png

Googie Earth - New ath ... Es

Description | Style, Color | View | Altiude | Measurements







image23.png







image24.png







image25.png







image26.png







image27.jpeg

v Places

IS My Places
 Temporery Places
Point 1

(7 Polygon1
Path1

JPoint 1"(







image28.png







image29.jpeg

v Places

IS My Places
 Temporery Places
Point 1

(7 Polygon1
Path1

JPoint 1"(







image30.png







image31.jpeg

= Google Earth Pro

Fie Edit View Tools Add Help

¥ Search
Search
Get Directions History
v Places
> IS MyPlaces
4 1SS Temporary Places
917 poin*
B oy a0
)
1S path]
Copy
Delete
Rename

Saveto My Places

Save Place As.

Email,

Directions from here

Directions to here
Snapshot View

Show Viewshed

= Properties







image32.png







image33.png

&) Documents
& Music

= Pictures
H Videos

-l i | v

File name: Point 1

R T — |

ke

( Hide Folders







image34.png







image35.png

&) Documents
& Music

= Pictures
H Videos

-l i | v

File name: Point 1

R T — |

ke

( Hide Folders







image36.png







image1.png

I * I Infrastructure
Canada







image2.jpeg










To view the full contents of this document, you need a later version of the PDF viewer. You can upgrade 
to the latest version of Adobe Reader from www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html 
 
For further support, go to www.adobe.com/support/products/acrreader.html





Infrastructure

Canada

 Version 1.30 / Last Modified: 2018/04/19

Page  of 

ICIP: ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION (AC) & ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT (EA) SMART FORM

As part of the application process for funding, applicants are required to complete the following smart form to determine if there are any federal environmental assessments requirements (Northern EA Regimes, Modern Treaties, Canadian Environmental Assessment Act, 2012) that could apply to the project. In addition, the information provided will also be used by INFC to determine if there is a requirement to consult with Indigenous Groups. This requirement may already be met by early engagement with Indigenous groups.

 

For questions, please contact us by email at the following address:

INFC.AboriginalConsultEnv-Consultautochtonesenv.INFC@canada.ca

 

 Fields marked with an * are required.

 

General Information

Primary Contact for Person Completing the Questionnaire

EA and AC Determination

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Does a Modern Treaty, Self-Government Agreement or Northern EA Regime apply to the Project area? Select all that apply*

Describe types of land ownership in the project area? (Check all that apply)*

Please specify the land owner/administrator. (Check all that apply)*

Is an environmental site assessment available / being undertaken for the project?*

Please provide copies of all reports referred to above.

Aboriginal Engagement

Early Engagement Has Occured

Please include in the attached documents: a consultation record (definition will be provided), incoming letters of support (if available) and an example of the outgoing information to Aboriginal groups.

The consultation record consists of a high level summary of all communications with Aboriginal groups (e.g., calls, letters, meetings) and a summary of the Aboriginal groups consulted, any concerns that were raised by specific group(s), the Aboriginal group's suggested accommodation measures, how concerns were addressed/accommodated or not with an explanation.

Which aboriginal groups have been notified? List all 

groups:*

Early Engagement Has Not Occured

What is the nature of the project? (Check all that apply).*

Does the project: (Check all that apply)*

Please provide a list of Aboriginal groups in proximity:*

Does the project involve vegetation clearing? (Check all 

that apply)*

Does the project involve works? (Check all that apply)*

Please list groups or refer to consultation record if one has been provided:*

Federal, Provincial, Territorial Involvement

Please indicate all Federal Departments or agencies that may be involved in the project. (Check all that apply)*

Please specify the federal department or agency and approval required:*

Department

Permit

Statute

Please list all provincial or territorial environmental permits that could or might be required for the project.

DECLARATION OF INFORMATION

Please check the box to acknowledge you understand and agree to the following statements:

Please attach consultation record (if applicable) when submitting form electronically. (32 MB)

8.2.1.3144.1.471865.466429

False

		CurrentPage: 

		PageCount: 

		TextField8: 

		TextField9: 

		TextField10: 

		FirstName: 

		LastName: 

		Address: 

		City: 

		PostalCode: 

		Phone: 

		Email: 

		Button15: 

		Button16: 

		ProvTerrSel: 14

		FoundNFL: 3

		locComprLand: 3

		eaReqs: 2

		CheckBox36: 0

		TextField33: 

		CheckBox35: 0

		TextField32: 

		SectionA_QC_DDL: 5

		CheckBox37: 0

		CheckBox38: 0

		CheckBox39: 0

		CheckBox40: 0

		TextField34: 

		SectionA_NT_DDL: 7

		CheckBox41: 0

		CheckBox42: 0

		CheckBox43: 0

		CheckBox44: 0

		CheckBox45: 0

		CheckBox46: 0

		TextField35: 

		SectionA_NU_DDL: 2

		CheckBox47: 0

		TextField36: 

		SectionA_YU_DDL: 15

		CheckBox48: 0

		CheckBox49: 0

		CheckBox51: 0

		CheckBox52: 0

		CheckBox53: 0

		CheckBox54: 0

		CheckBox55: 0

		CheckBox56: 0

		CheckBox57: 0

		CheckBox58: 0

		CheckBox59: 0

		CheckBox60: 0

		CheckBox61: 0

		TextField37: 

		CheckBox62: 0

		CheckBox63: 0

		CheckBox64: 0

		CheckBox65: 0

		CheckBox66: 0

		TextField38: 

		CheckBox67: 0

		LandOwnOther: 0

		CheckBox4: 0

		CheckBox3: 0

		CheckBox2: 0

		LandOwnFederal: 0

		Quest1_CheckTxt: 

		LandOwnSpecify: 

		CheckBox5: 0

		CheckBox6: 0

		CheckBox7: 0

		CheckBox8: 0

		CheckBox9: 0

		CheckBox10: 0

		CheckBox11: 0

		SpecLandOwn: 0

		Quest3_CheckTxt: 

		TextField1: 

		Quest8_DDL: 4

		Quest_9_DDL: 4

		Quest10_DDL: 4

		Quest11_Phase1: 0

		Quest11_Phase2: 0

		Quest11_Phase3: 0

		Quest11_NA: 0

		Quest11_CheckTxt: 

		Quest13_DDL: 4

		Quest14_DDL: 3

		Cell2: 

		Button1: 

		Button2: 

		Quest17_DDL: 3

		Quest18_Txt: 

		Quest19_DDL: 3

		TextField2: 

		Quest20B_Txt: 

		CheckBox12: 0

		CheckBox13: 0

		CheckBox14: 0

		CheckBox15: 0

		Quest22_CheckTxt: 

		Quest22Other: 

		CheckBox16: 0

		CheckBox17: 0

		CheckBox18: 0

		CheckBox19: 0

		CheckBox20: 0

		Quest23_CheckTxt: 

		TextField31: 

		Quest24_DDL: 3

		Button3: 

		Button4: 

		alongRoad: 0

		forestArea: 0

		wetland: 0

		develArea: 0

		undevelArea: 0

		notAppl: 0

		Quest26_CheckTxt: 

		Quest26a_Txt: 

		CheckBox21: 0

		CheckBox22: 0

		CheckBox23: 0

		CheckBox24: 0

		CheckBox25: 0

		CheckBox26: 0

		Quest27_CheckTxt: 

		TextField3: 

		DropDownList1: 3

		TextField4: 

		DropDownList2: 3

		TextField5: 

		Quest30_1: 3

		Button5: 

		Button6: 

		Quest34_CheckText: 

		CheckBox27: 0

		TextField11: 

		TextField12: 

		TextField13: 

		TextField14: 

		CheckBox28: 0

		TextField15: 

		TextField16: 

		TextField17: 

		TextField18: 

		CheckBox29: 0

		TextField19: 

		TextField20: 

		TextField21: 

		TextField22: 

		CheckBox30: 0

		TextField23: 

		TextField24: 

		TextField25: 

		TextField26: 

		CheckBox31: 0

		TextField27: 

		TextField28: 

		TextField29: 

		TextField30: 

		CheckBox34: 0

		CheckBox32: 0

		Cell3: 

		Cell4: 

		Button11: 

		Button12: 

		Button9: 

		Button10: 

		DropDownList3: 3

		DropDownList4: 3

		TextField6: 

		CheckBox33: 0

		DateTimeField1: 

		TextField7: 

		Button13: 

		ResetButton1: 

		Button14: 










Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   1 


ICIP Project Application 
Green: Environmental Quality 


1   Project Tombstone Information 
* Project Title Project ID 


Provincial ID# 


* Project Description


Project Characteristics 


* Is the asset public facing?


* The highest published accessibility standard, code, or by‐laws in the jurisdiction will be met
or exceeded. 


* The highest published applicable energy efficiency standard in the jurisdiction will be met
or exceeded. 


* Was a regional approach investigated as a possible option?


 If No, why not? 


* Is this a joint project?


 If Yes, please provide details of project partner(s): Municipality or Organization; Contact name, phone number and 
email address; partner’s role in the project; how will the partner(s) benefit. 


 If No, please explain why a shared initiative is not appropriate. 


Please Note:  Mandatory Fields are indicated by an * and must be completed.







Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   2 


* Ultimate Recipient


* Name


* Type


* Location


Province  Nova Scotia 


* Address


Note: A .KML file must be submitted separately with this application or it will be considered incomplete. 


2   Project Finances 
* Sources of Funds


* Are sources of funding secured for the total project costs?


→ If No, provide explanation. 


Source  Amount ($) 


* Total Project Costs (net HST)


* Total Eligible Costs (net HST)


* Federal ICIP Contribution (40%)


* Provincial ICIP Contribution (33.33%)


* Ultimate Recipient Contribution


*Other Contribution #1 (Specify Source and Amount - Note: if there are none, indicate "NA" for Source & "0" for Amount)


$ 


*Other Contribution #2 (Specify Source and Amount - Note: if there are none, indicate "NA" for Source &"0" for Amount)


$ 


* Percentage Contingency included in Project Cost


Fiscal Year Breakdown of Project Expenditures ‐ Notional Cashflow (April 1st to March 31st) 


Fiscal Year 


*Federal Funding *Provincial Funding *Ultimate Recipient
Funding 


Total Funding 


* 2018‐19 $  $  $ $ 


* 2019‐20 $  $  $ $ 


* 2020‐21 $  $  $ $ 


* 2021‐22 $  $  $ $ 


* 2022‐23 $  $  $ $ 


2023‐24  $  $  $ $ 


2024‐25  $  $  $ $ 


2025‐26  $  $  $ $ 


2026‐27  $  $  $ $ 


TOTALS  $  $  $ $ 


$ 


$ 


$ 


$ 


$ 


%







Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   3 


3   Project Implementation Details 
* Nature of the Project (indicate % for each relevant type)


  New   


  Rehabilitation 


  Expansion 


Other (provide explanation) 


Asset Ownership 


* Will the Ultimate Recipient own and operate the asset?


→ If No, provide additional information.  


* Percentage of design completed


Not started    up to 25%      26‐50%                 51‐ 75%                       76‐100% 


 * Project Schedule 


* Forecasted Construction Start Date (Month Day Year - eg. December 14 2018 )


* Forecasted Construction End Date (Month Day Year - eg. March 31 2021 )


Sole Source Contracting 


* Will a sole source procurement be used?


  If Yes, include detailed information for the contact (s), as per the Project Submission Guide  


Contract #1 


Contract #2 


* 4   Outcomes, Indicators and Targets
Project outcome(s) 


Increased capacity to treat and manage wastewater and storm water 


Indicators 


Quantity/ 
Length 


Physical Condition 
before investment 


Physical Condition at 
project conclusion


Wastewater 


assets  


Indicate 


quantity or 


length as 


appropriate 


Wastewater Treatment plants 


Lagoon systems 


Wastewater pump stations 


Wastewater lift stations 


Wastewater storage tanks 


Linear wastewater assets 
(in metres) 







Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   4 


* This project will achieve compliance with federal effluent regulations


Risk level of the facility 


Quantity Physical Condition 
before investment 


Physical Condition at 
project conclusion 


Stormwater 


assets  


Indicate 


quantity or 


length as 


appropriate 


Drainage pump stations 


Management facilities: ponds and 
water wetlands 


Management facilities: all other 
permitted end‐of‐pipe facilities 


Linear stormwater features 
(in metres) 


Before investment  At project conclusion


Volume of materials diverted (in cubic metres/day) 


Capacity to treat waste and/or stormwater (in cubic metres/day) 


Project outcome(s) 


Increased capacity to reduce or remediate soil and air pollutants 


Indicators 


A Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) found that this site was contaminated?  


Will the site be ready for its intended use at project conclusion?  


Before investment At project conclusion
Volume of materials diverted (in tonnes/year) 


Capacity to dispose of materials (in tonnes/year)


Project outcome(s)


Increased access to potable water 


Indicators 


Provincial drinking water standards will be met or exceeded  


Quantity/ 
Length 


Physical Condition 
before investment 


Physical Condition at 
project conclusion


Drinking water 


assets  


Indicate 


quantity or 


length as 


appropriate 


Water treatment facilities 


Reservoir 


Pump stations 


Local water pipes (in metres) 


Transmission pipes (in metres) 


Facility Name:


*Will any long-term drinking water advisories
be resolved as a result of this project?


Specify the 
advisory(ies)







Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   5 


5 Climate Lens 
*Have you included a GHG mitigation assessment with your project application?


*Have you included a Climate resilience assessment with your project application?


*Expected lifespan of the asset *Indicate the year in which the expected lifespan of the asset begins


Confirm that the relevant attestation(s) has been completed by a qualified assessor or validator.   


NOTE: If the project involves multiple assets, please indicate the total lifespan for all assets assessed under the Climate Lens.


GHG Mitigation Assessment 


2030 GHG Results  Lifetime GHG Results 


Baseline scenario emissions,  


cumulative to 2030 


Baseline scenario emissions,  


lifetime 


Estimated project emissions,  


cumulative to 2030 


Estimated project emissions,  


lifetime 


Net emissions  Net emissions


Unit


* Climate Resilience Assessment


Have risks associated with climate change and extreme weather events in the design, location and 
planned operation of the project been considered? Note, these risks could be rapid (e.g. a heavy 
rainfall) or gradual (sea‐level rise) and present or anticipated threats associated with climate change. 


What hazards, associated with climate change and extreme weather events, were identified which may impact the 
project’s integrity and its ability to provide sustained service through its design life? Select all that apply. 


  Storm surges  Increased frequency of freeze‐thaw cycles 


Higher tides  Increased rainfall 


Sea level rise  Increased overland flooding 


Coastal erosion  Increased snow loads 


Salt water intrusion  Increased wind speeds or tornadoes 


Heat waves or heat island effect  Hurricanes 


Permafrost degradation  Hail 


Drought  Windstorms 


Wildland fires  Ice storms


  Other (specify)  Other (specify) 


Describe key measures or 
features of the project that 
incorporate climate change 
considerations.   


If you answered 'No' to either of the above, explain why not.


Unit







Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   6 


6 Community employment benefits reporting 
*Is the cost of your project $10 million or greater?


If Yes, you must complete the table on 'Target groups' below. 


If No, would you be prepared to report on Community 


Employment Benefits? If No, why not?


 % hours worked


Which specific groups will you be 
targeting for employment opportunities 
on this project? 


Provide the % of total project hours that 
you anticipate each targeted group will 
work. 


Apprentices 


Indigenous peoples   


Women 


Persons with disabilities  


Veterans 


Youth 


Recent Immigrants   


  Will the target group benefit? Total value of 
contract


Which types of enterprises will you be 
targeting?  


Provide the total value of contracts. 


Small enterprise 


$ Medium enterprise 


Social enterprise 


* 7   Risks and Mitigation Strategies
* Project Complexity (select all that apply) Description and Mitigation Strategies 


☐  Remote Geographical location 
☐  Unpredictable weather  
☐  Innovative Project/Technologies 
☐  Technical nature of the project 
☐  Interdependencies between phases 
☐  Other (describe) 
☐  No risk identified (explain why)


* Project Readiness (select all that apply) Description and Mitigation Strategies 


 Project site selection hasn’t been finalized 
 Land hasn’t been acquired  
 Potential issues with permits or authorizations 


(federal, provincial, territorial and municipal) 
  Industry supply may not be able to meet demand 


☐  Non‐federal sources of funding are not secured for 
the entire project cost 


Other (describe) 
  No risk identified (explain why)


Will the target group benefit?Target Groups Reporting







Project Application – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ‐ Green: Environmental Quality   7 


* Public Sensitivity (select all that apply) Description and Mitigation Strategies 


The  project  has  received  positive  media  attention  
The  project  has  received  negative  media  attention   
Certain stakeholders have been vocal about the 
project 
Other (describe) 
No risk identified (explain why)


*Ultimate Recipient Risk (select all that apply) Description and Mitigation Strategies 


☐  The Ultimate Recipient does not have experience 
with this type of project 


☐  The Ultimate Recipient has low capacity in one or 
more area: technical expertise, human resources, 
reporting, delivery of past projects, etc. 


☐  There is no plan for operation and maintenance in 
place for this project. 


☐  Other (describe) 
☐  No risk identified (explain why)


* 8   Attestation (by the Ultimate Recipient)


I, _______________________ (Name, Title) with ___________________________ (Ultimate Recipient), attest that:


1. The information provided in this project application is complete and accurate.


2. I have the authority to submit this application on behalf of the Ultimate Recipient as indicated above.


3. I acknowledge that the appropriate forms as required for this submission must be received by Municipal


Affairs prior to application acceptance.   


Dated, this ________day of ___________20___ 


_______________________________________  


Signature  


* Describe the project management plan and
leadership in place to ensure project success





		Provincial ID: 

		Percentage Contingency included in project cost: 

		Expected lifespan of the asset: 

		Indicate the year in which the expected lifespan of the asset begins: 

		Describe key measures or features of the project that incorporate climate change considerations: 

		Rationale for not including community employment benefits as part of the project: 

		undefined: 

		Project Title: 

		Project Description: 

		No Regional approach: 

		Name Ultimate Recipient: 

		UR Type: 

		Source funding Secured?: [Select]

		Sources of Funding not secured: 

		Joint Project?: [Select]

		Regional Approach Investigated?: [Select]

		Highest Energy Efficiency be met?: [Select]

		Highest Accessability Standard be met?: [Select]

		Asset Public Facing?: [Select]

		Total Project Costs: 

		Provincial ICIP Contribution (max: 

		 33: 

		33%): 





		Federal ICIP Contriburion (max: 

		 40%): 



		Other Contribution #1 Specify source: 

		Other Contribution #2 Specify Source: 

		Amount from Other Contribution #1: 

		Amount from Other Contribution #2: 

		Federal  Funding 20/21: 

		Federal  Funding 19/20: 

		Federal Funding 21/22: 

		Federal Funding 22/23: 

		Provide explanation for Other: 

		If UR not Own and Operate, provide additional information: 

		Design up to 25% complete: Off

		Design between 26 and 50% completed: Off

		Design between 51 and 75% completed: Off

		Design - Not Started: Off

		Design between 76 and 100% completed: Off

		Forecasted Construction End Date: 

		Federal Funding 23/24: 

		Federal Funding 26/27: 

		Federal Funding 25/26: 

		Federal Funding 24/25: 

		Forecasted Construction Start Date: 

		Asset Owner?: [Select]

		Sole Source Contract #1: 

		Sole Source Contract #2: 

		Physical Condition after investment - Treatment plants: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Lagoon Systems: [Select]

		Quantity Lagoon systems: 

		Quantity Wastewater pump stations: 

		Physical Condition before investment - Lagoon Systems: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Wastewater Pump Stations: [Select]

		Quantity Wastewater lift stations: 

		Physical Condition before investment - Wastewater Pump Stations: [Select]

		Federal Funding 18/19: 

		Total Funding 18/19: 0

		Total Funding 19/20: 0

		Total Funding 20/21: 0

		Total Funding 21/22: 0

		UR Funding 23/24: 

		UR Funding 24/25: 

		UR Funding 25/26: 

		UR Funding 26/27: 

		Total Funding 22/23: 0

		Total Funding 23/24: 0

		Total Funding 24/25: 0

		Total Funding 25/26: 0

		Total Funding 26/27: 0

		Physical Condition after investment - Wastewater Lift Stations: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Wastewater Lift Stations: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Wastewater storage tanks: [Select]

		Length (Linear) wastewater assets in metres: 

		Quantity Wastewater storage tanks: 

		Physical Condition before investment - Wastewater storage tanks: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Linear wastewater assets: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Linear wastewater assets: [Select]

		Sole Source?: [Select]

		Risk Level: [Select]

		Quantity Treatment plants: 

		Physical Condition before investment - Treatment plants: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Management facilities ponds and water wetlands: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Management facilities ponds and water wetlands: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Management facilities: all other permitted end-of-pipe facilities: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Management facilities: all other permitted end-of-pipe facilities: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Linear stormwater features: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Linear stormwater features: [Select]

		Quantity - Drainage pump stations: 

		Quantity - Management facilities ponds and water wetlands: 

		Quantity - Management facilities all other permitted end-of-pipe facilities: 

		Quantity - Length (Linear) stormwater features: 

		Volume - Material diverted After investment: 

		Volume - Material diverted Before investment: 

		Increased capacity to treat and manage wastewater and storm water: Off

		Is the site ready for intended use at project conclusion?: [Select]

		Volume of materials diverted - Before investment: 

		Volume of materials diverted - After investment: 

		Capacity to dispose of materials - Before investment: 

		Capacity to dispose of materials - After investment: 

		Increased capacity to reduce or remediate soil and air pollutants: Off

		Increased access to potable water: Off

		Phase II ESA determined the site was contaminated?: [Select]

		Quantity - Water treatment facilities: 

		Quantity - Reservoir: 

		Quantity - Pump stations: 

		Length - Local water pipes: 

		Length - Transmission pipes: 

		Physical Condition before investment - Water treatment facilities: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Reservoir: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Local water pipes: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Transmission pipes: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - Drainage pump stations: [Select]

		Physical Condition before investment - pump stations: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Drainage pump stations: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Water treatment facilities: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Reservoir: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - pump stations: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Local water pipes: [Select]

		Physical Condition after investment - Transmission pipes: [Select]

		Provincial drinking water standards will be met or exceeded?: [Select]

		Have you included a Climate resilience assessment with your project application?: [Select]

		Explain why No GHG or CR included: 

		Baseline scenario emissions, cumulative to 2030: 

		Estimated project emissions, cumulative to 2030: 

		Net emissions: 

		Baseline scenario emissions, lifetime: 

		Estimated project emissions, lifetime: 

		Net Emissions, lifetime: 

		What hazards - Higher tides?: Off

		What hazards - Sea level rise?: Off

		What hazards - Coastal Erosion?: Off

		What hazards - Salt Water Intrusion?: Off

		What hazards - Heat waves or heat island effect: Off

		What hazards -Permafrost degradation: Off

		What hazards -Drought: Off

		What hazards - Wildland fires: Off

		Specify Other #1: 

		Specify Other #2: 

		What hazards - Storm surge?: Off

		What hazards - Increased frequency of freeze-thaw cycles: Off

		What hazards - Increased rainfall: Off

		What hazards - Increased overland flooding: Off

		What hazards - Increased snow loads: Off

		What hazards - Increased wind speeds or tornadoes: Off

		What hazards -Hurricanes: Off

		What hazards - Increased hail: Off

		What hazards - Increased windstorms: Off

		What hazards - Increased ice storms: Off

		What hazards - Other #1: Off

		What hazards - Other #2: Off

		Have you included a GHG mitigation assessment with your project application?: [Select]

		Does the project include community employment benefits?: [Select]

		Have risks associated with climate change and extreme weather events in the design location and planned operation of the project been considered Note these risks could be rapid eg a heavy rainfall or gradual sealevel rise and present or anticipated threats associated with climate change?: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Apprentices?: [Select]

		Apprentices % hours worked: 

		Will the target group benefit Indigenous peoples?: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit New Canadians?: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Veterans?: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Persons with disabilities?: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Women?: [Select]

		Women % hours worked: 

		Persons with disabilities % hours worked: 

		Veterans % hours worked: 

		Youth % hours worked: 

		Indigenous peoples % hours worked: 

		New Canadians % hours worked: 

		Will the target group benefit Youth?: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Small Enterprises: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Medium Enterprises: [Select]

		Will the target group benefit Social Enterprises: [Select]

		Total Value Contract Enterprises: 

		Remote Geographical location: Off

		Unpredictable weather: Off

		Innovative Project/Technologies: Off

		No risk identified - Complexity: Off

		Other Complexity: Off

		Nonfederal sources of funding are not secured for entire project cost: Off

		Industry supply may not be able to meet demand: Off

		Potential issues with permits or authorizations: Off

		Interdependencies between phases: Off

		Technical nature of the project: Off

		Project site selection hasnt been finalized: Off

		Name,  Title: 

		Ultimate Recipient: 

		Month: 

		last two digits of year: 

		date - day: 

		No risk identified - Readiness: Off

		Other - Readiness: Off

		Land hasn't been acquired: Off

		The project has received negative media attention: Off

		Certain stakeholders have been vocal about the project: Off

		The project has received positive media attention: Off

		Description of "Other" Project Readiness issues and Mitigation Strategies for selected Readiness issues or if No risk identified: 

		Description of "Other" Public Sensitivity issues and Mitigation Strategies for selected Public Sensitivity issues or if No risk identified: 

		Description of "Other" Complexity issues and Mitigation Strategies for selected Complexities: 

		Project Management: 

		No risk identified - Public Sensitivity: Off

		No risk identified - UR: Off

		Other - UR: Off

		O&M: Off

		Low Capacity: Off

		Other - Public Sensitivity: Off

		The Ultimate Recipient does not have experience with this type of project The Ultimate Recipient has low capacity in one or more area technical expertise human resources reporting delivery of past projects etc There is no plan for operation and maintenance in place for this project Other describe No risk identified: 

		UR no experience with this type project: Off

		Achieve Compliance with Regulations?: [Select]

		Attestations: [Select]

		% Other: 

		Not Shared Initiative: 

		Project partners: 

		Total Eligible Costs: 

		Ultimate Recipient Contribution: 

		Provincial Funding 18/19: 

		Provincial Funding 19/20: 

		Provincial Funding 20/21: 

		Provincial Funding 26/27: 

		Provincial Funding 21/22: 

		Provincial Funding 22/23: 

		Provincial Funding 23/24: 

		Provincial Funding 24/25: 

		Provincial Funding 25/26: 

		UR Funding 18/19: 

		UR Funding 19/20: 

		UR Funding 20/21: 

		UR Funding 21/22: 

		UR Funding 22/23: 

		% New: 

		% Rehab: 

		% Expansion: 

		Total Federal Funding: 0

		Total Provincial Funding: 0

		Total UR Funding: 0

		Total Funding: 0

		2030 Net Emissions: [Select]

		Lifetime Net Emissions: [Select]

		Facility Name: 

		Long Term Advisories?: [Select]

		Specify advisory: 

		Select Unit: [Select]

		Address: 








 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program 


 


 


 


 


Nova Scotia Project Submission 


Guide - Annexes 
Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
NOVA SCOTIA DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS 


December 2018 







2 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


 


 


Annex A – Application Guide  
 
 


ABOUT THE PROGRAM 
 


The Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream will fund infrastructure projects that will support quality 
and management improvements for drinking water, wastewater and stormwater, as well as reductions to soil and air 
pollutants through solid waste diversion and remediation.  It is a component of the wider Investing in Canada 
Infrastructure Program (ICIP) which will provide funding through an Integrated Bilateral Agreement between Canada 
and Nova Scotia. 


 


Under the Environmental Quality Sub-Stream, a project must meet at least one of the following outcomes to be eligible: 


 


• Increased capacity to treat and/or manage wastewater and stormwater 


• Increased access to potable water 


• Increased capacity to reduce and/or remediate soil and/or air pollutants 


 


In Nova Scotia, a call for applications begins on December 3, 2018 and closes January 18, 2018.  Municipalities are 
invited to submit up to a maximum of 2 applications for consideration.  During this call, it is anticipated that there will 
be more projects that qualify for funding than there are program funds available. Consequently, eligible projects will be 
subject to technical evaluation and ranked according to the extent to which they meet the program’s objectives and the 
eligibility criteria. 


 


Projects with total estimated eligible expenditures of $10 million or more will be required to complete a climate lens 
assessment (including a greenhouse gas emissions assessment that includes a cost-per-tonne calculation and a climate 
change resilience assessment). This work must be completed to Nova Scotia and Canada’s satisfaction prior to Canada’s 
approval of project funding. 


 


Projects with total estimated eligible expenditures of $10 million or more will be required to report on community 
employment benefits.  


 


Approved projects will be subject to reporting requirements as the projects progress. Applicants are encouraged to 
familiarize themselves with the requirements described in this guide. 


 


This round of funding targets projects that can be started in Fiscal 2019-20 or 2020-21. 


 


Funding provided by the federal and provincial government towards infrastructure projects is cost-shared with 
municipalities. The level of federal contribution for this sub-stream is 40% with an additional 33.33% provincial 
contribution.  The remaining eligible project costs, plus all ineligible project costs, and cost overruns are the 
responsibility of the applicant.  


 


Where applicants plan to use or have applied for funds from other federal programs, the source of these funds must be 
indicated on the application form. Applicants who have other funding or grants in place for their project should note 
that the program is subject to stacking rules. Note that Gas Tax Funds are considered to be a federal contribution for 
these purposes and will not be able to be utilized for the ultimate recipient’s funding contribution to the project.   







3 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


  
 


Introduction 
 


This guide provides an overview of the information required when completing an application under the Investing in 


Canada Infrastructure Program. Additional information may be requested as needed. 


 


A complete project submission includes the following: 
 


 A completed Project Application 


 
 KML file with project location details (see Annex C) 


 
 Attestation signed by designated municipal official (last page of the application) 


 
 A completed Environmental and Aboriginal Consultation Information (ACES) questionnaire* 


 
 Climate Lens assessment(s), as applicable 


 


 A detailed cost estimate 


 


 A Council Resolution supporting the submission of the project under the ICIP and the project’s priority 
 
 


The project application contains 8 sections: 


1. Project Tombstone Information 


2. Project Finances 
3. Project implementation Details 
4. Outcomes, Indicators and Targets 
5. Climate Lens 
6. Community Employment Benefits reporting 


7. Risks and Mitigation Strategies 
8. Attestation 


 
 
 


* Note that capital costs, including site preparation or construction, will not be reimbursed until it is 
confirmed that Environmental Assessment requirements and Aboriginal Consultation obligations have 
been met to the extent possible at the time a claim is processed. 







4 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Project Eligibility 


Under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP), the way that project eligibility is determined has 


changed. In the past, eligibility was based exclusively on asset type. With ICIP, project eligibility is now assessed 


using an outcomes-based approach. In order to be considered for funding, a project must align with at least one 


immediate outcome within one of the investment streams. The project must also meet all applicable program 


requirements as outlined in the ICIP Bilateral Agreement. 


 
 


Table 1. Immediate Outcomes for the Green Infrastructure - Environmental Quality funding stream 
 
 


Funding Stream Immediate Outcomes 


Green Infrastructure - 


Environmental Quality 


• Increased capacity to treat and manage wastewater and 


stormwater  


• Increased access to potable water 


• Increased capacity to reduce or remediate soil and air 
pollutants 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







5 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


 


 


 


Information Required for Project Submission 
 


Please Note:  Mandatory Fields are indicated by an * on the application form, and must be completed. 


 


1  PROJECT TOMBSTONE INFROMATION 
 
 


PROJECT TITLE 


A concise but meaningful description of the asset and the work to be completed. For example: Upgrade the main 


water line to the Wastewater facility (Plant 5) would be an acceptable title, while Pipe at Plant 5 is not. 
 
 


PROJECT ID 


To be assigned by DMA. 
 
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


A brief but meaningful description of the following: the scope (identify all major quantifiable components); the 


approximate output(s) that the project will generate (e.g. water treatment plant, or 5km of new sewer pipes); why 


the project is needed; how the need was identified (e.g. study, federal/provincial regulatory requirement, etc.); and 


the plan for Project Management. The description must clearly identify how the project will meet relevant immediate 


outcomes (as per Table 1). 


Quantitative information regarding the project (e.g. Number pumps, capacity of new pipes, etc.) will be collected 


as part of the performance measurements information in Section 4 of the application. 


 
 


PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 


Answer yes or no to the questions, and provide additional details as required. 
 


 
ULTIMATE RECIPIENT TYPE 


Type of Entity who will receive funds to deliver the project. 
 
 


LOCATION 


Indicate the address of the Ultimate Recipient 
 


Provide a KML file with the project location(s). This is not a picture or PDF map of the project location, but a 


digital spatial representation of the project location produced by a geographic information system. See Annex C at 


the end of this document. 







6 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


 


 
 


2  PROJECT FINANCES 
 


Complete the financial tables. 
 


Total Project Costs: Sum of eligible and ineligible costs from all sources. 


Total Eligible Costs: Sum of all eligible costs associated with the project. 


Federal Contribution: Amount of funding sought from INFC for the project.  


Provincial Contribution: Amount of funding contributed by the Province. 


Ultimate Recipient Contribution: Amount of funding contributed by the ultimate recipient. 


Other Contribution: Amount of funding sought from any other sources of funding (such as municipal 
share when not Ultimate Recipient, donations, other federal funding). Clearly identify the name of the 
entity that will provide each source of funding. 


The total of all funding sources must add up to the total project costs (and not only eligible costs). Note that 
program cost sharing and federal stacking limits must be respected. 


The fiscal year breakdown represents the portion of the contribution that will be claimed for reimbursement for 
each relevant fiscal year. The fiscal year begins April 1 and ends March 31 of the following year. 


 
 


3  PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION DETAILS 
 


NATURE OF PROJECT 
 


Indicate the % of each: New, Rehabilitation, Expansion, Other (provide explanation) 


 


 
ASSET OWNERSHIP AND OPERATION 


Indicate if the Ultimate Recipient will own and operate the asset. If not, provide additional information regarding 


asset ownership and operation. Include the name and type of entity and a brief description of the arrangement. 


 
 


PROJECT SCHEDULE 


Provide details about the project schedule. 
 


Forecasted Construction Start Date: date on which construction is expected to begin (shovels in the ground) 
 


Forecasted Construction End Date: date of substantial completion 







7 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


 


 


 


SOLE SOURCE CONTRACTING 


 


Indicate if sole source procurement will be used, including relocation of utilities. If YES, for each sole source 


contract include the following information, if known:  estimated amount of the sole source contract, who will be 


conducting the work, the nature of the work, and explain why sole source contracting will be used.  Note that 


projects that require s o l e  source contracts may need Federal Treasury Board submission for project approval. 


 
 


4  OUTCOMES, INDICATORS AND TARGETS 
 


IMMEDIATE OUTCOMES 


Select the immediate outcome(s) that apply to the project. See Annex B for additional information. 
 


 
 


INDICATORS 


Provide expected results for all indicators that are relevant to the project. See Annex B for additional information. 
 
 


5  CLIMATE LENS 
 


For projects with a cost of $10 million or greater, a Climate Lens Report will be required. The Climate Lens 
consists of two assessments:  a greenhouse gas (GHG) mitigation assessment; and a climate change resilience 
assessment.  The assessments shall follow Infrastructure Canada’s Climate Lens guidance documents. 


 
Summary information is required as part of this project application, and the complete assessment will be required 
prior to project commencement for those projects that are formally approved. 


 
 


Climate Lens assessment thresholds for ICIP 


   
Funding Streams GHG Mitigation 


Assessment 


Climate Change 


Resilience 


Assessment  


Environmental Quality sub-stream of Green 


Infrastructure 


 


If total eligible costs are 


$10M or greater 


 


If total eligible costs are 


$10M or greater 


 


 
 


 
 
 


 
  







8 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (DECEMBER 2018) 


Green Infrastructure – Environmental Quality Sub-Stream 
 


  


 


 


 


6  COMMUNITY EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS REPORTING 
 


Reporting on community employment benefits is a requirement for projects with a total eligible cost of $10 
million or greater. Approved projects will be provided with reporting requirements information. 


 
Summary information is required as part of this project application for projects with a total eligible cost of $10 million 
or greater. 


 
 


7  RISKS AND MITIGATION STRATEGIES 


 
From the included list, select the factors for each of the four categories (project complexity, project readiness, 
public sensitivity, and Ultimate Recipient Risk) that have a reasonable likelihood of affecting the project. Briefly 
describe why this is a risk to the project and the mitigation strategies. 


 
 
 


8  ATTESTATION 
 


 


The Attestation must be signed by a designated official (CAO/Clerk) of Ultimate Recipient. This designated official 


must have the authority to attest that: 


• Project information is complete and accurate; 


• The designated official has the authority to submit this application on behalf of the Ultimate Recipient; 


• Acknowledgement that the appropriate forms as required for this submission must be received by Municipal 


Affairs prior to application acceptance.







9  


 


Annex B – Outcomes and Indicators Guidance 
Investment Stream: Green Infrastructure - Environmental Quality 


 


IMMEDIATE OUTCOMES INDICATORS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Increased capacity to treat 


and manage wastewater 


and stormwater 


Number/length and type of wastewater and stormwater assets receiving investment 


• Wastewater 
• Treatment plants 
• Lagoon systems 
• Wastewater pump stations 
• Wastewater lift stations 
• Wastewater storage tanks 
• Linear wastewater assets 


• Stormwater 
• Drainage pump stations 
• Management facilities – ponds and water wetlands 
• Management facilities – all other permitted end-of-pipe facilities 
• Linear stormwater assets 


Physical condition of wastewater/stormwater assets receiving investment (before 


investment and at project conclusion) 


• Very poor, Poor, Fair, Good or Very Good 


Number of wastewater systems achieving compliance with federal effluent regulations 


Volume of materials diverted, measured in cubic metres/day (before investment 


and at project conclusion) 


Capacity to dispose of materials, measured in cubic metre/day (before investment 


and at project conclusion) 


 


 


 


 
Increased access to 


potable water 


Number/length and type of drinking water assets receiving investment 


• Water treatment facilities 


• Reservoir 
• Pump stations 


• Local water pipes 


• Transmission pipes 


Physical condition of potable water assets receiving investment (before investment 


and at project conclusion) 


• Very poor, Poor, Fair, Good or Very Good 


Will any of the following long-term drinking water advisories be resolved as a result of 


this project? (Select from drop down list) 


 
 


Increased capacity to reduce 


or remediate soil and air 


pollutants 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Volume of materials diverted, measured in tonnes/year (before investment and at 


project conclusion) 


Capacity to dispose of materials, measured in tonnes/year (before investment 


and at project conclusion) 


The geographic footprint of lands which have been remediated (provided by GPS file, 


.k ml format) 


• Is the site ready for intended use at project conclusion (yes/no) 
  







9 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (December 2018) 


  


 


 


 


DEFINITIONS 
 


Physical Condition: is measured on a 5-point scale, as defined below. 


- NA: Before project, asset did not exist. 


- Very poor: The asset is unfit for sustained service. Near or beyond expected service life, widespread 
signs of advanced deterioration, some assets may be unusable. 


- Poor: Increasing potential of affecting service. The asset is approaching end of service life; condition 
below standard and a large portion of system exhibits significant deterioration. 


- Fair: The asset requires attention. The assets show signs of deterioration and some elements exhibit 
deficiencies. 


- Good: The asset is adequate. Acceptable, generally within mid stage of expected service life. 
- Very good: Asset is fit for the future. Well maintained, good condition, new or recently rehabilitated. 


 
Potable water assets include the following: 


- Local water pipes include all connecting pipes, of diameter less than 416 mm, between pump 
stations, re- chlorination facilities and storage facilities if these are located within the distribution 
system. 


- Pump stations include pump stations within the non-linear potable water system owned by your 
organization, as well as all pump stations leased by your organization through a capital lease 
agreement. 


- Reservoir: A pond, lake, or basin (natural or artificial) that stores, regulates, or controls water. Include 
the number of reservoirs and water towers within the distribution, transmission, or integrated system 
owned by your organization or leased by your organization through a capital lease agreement. 


- Transmission pipes include all connecting pipes, of diameter greater than or equal to 416mm, between 
pump stations, re-chlorination facilities and storage facilities when located between the source and the 
treatment plant or between the treatment plant and the distribution system. 


 
Storm water assets include the following: 


- Linear storm water assets include culverts less than 3 meters in diameter, open ditches, storm 
water pipes (diameter: < 450 mm), storm water pipes (diameter: ≥ 450 mm to < 1,500 mm), and 
storm water pipes (diameter: ≥ 1,500 mm) owned by your organization or leased by your 
organization through a capital lease agreement. 


- Storm water drainage pump stations include storm water drainage pump stations that are 
connected to drainage swales, ditches and storm sewers. Exclude combined pump stations which 
convey combined sewage/storm water to wastewater treatment plants. 


- Storm water management facilities – All other Permitted End-of-Pipe Facilities includes engineered 
end-of- pipe facilities that have received a permit or approval to operate and which are not storm 
water ponds or wetlands (e.g. oil-grit separators, etc.). 


- Storm water management facilities – Storm water management ponds and storm water wetlands: 
includes engineered end-of-pipe facilities that have received a permit or approval to operate and 
which may provide peak flow control, runoff quality control, runoff control for downstream erosion, 
runoff volume control, etc. Includes dry ponds, wet ponds, and storm water wetlands etc. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







10 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (December 2018) 


  


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


Annex C – How to Create A .KML File 
This guide will walk you through the steps to create a .KML file by Google Earth’s free desktop application. 


Other geographic software packages like ArcGIS or QGIS may also be used to create the file, although this 


guide only provides instructions for the use of Google Earth. Using a .KML allows a variety of point, polygon, 


and line data be represented spatially with detail and consistency. 


 


 


USING GOOGLE EARTH 
 


*If you already have Google Earth installed on your system, skip to step 2. 
 


1. If you don’t already have Google Earth (free) installed on your system, follow the download 
instructions at this link: https://www.google.com/earth/desktop/ 


 


3. Draw your project on the map in the proper location using the placemark, polygon, and path 


tools (pictured below). You may draw as many components of varying types (point, line, polygon) 


as necessary. 


 


2. Navigate to your project location using one or more of the following options: 
 


a. Typing an address or coordinates in the search bar 
b. Using the navigation tools 
c. Clicking, dragging, and scrolling in the map viewer 



https://www.google.com/earth/desktop/

http://www.google.com/earth/desktop/





11 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (December 2018) 


  


 
 


 


Choose the appropriate drawing tool for the type of component you are drawing: 
 


a. Placemark: point project components 


− Examples include: wells, outfalls, culverts, etc. 


 


   Clicking this button will add a placemark to the map and bring up a 


corresponding dialogue box (see below). 
 


 


b. Polygon: project components that consist of an area of any shape 


− Examples include: building footprints, vegetation cuts, sewer/wastewater lagoons, etc. 
 


    Clicking this button will bring up a dialogue box and a crosshair cursor (see 


below). Click as many times as necessary to create a closed polygon that 
represents your 


project feature. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


− You can rename the polygon by 


changing the entry in the ‘Name’ 


field of the dialogue box (a). 


− Click ‘OK’ when finished (b). 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
− You can move the placemark by 


clicking and dragging it to the desired 


location or entering the desired 


latitude and longitude coordinates in 


the dialogue box (a). 


 


− You can rename the placemark by 


changing the entry in the ‘Name’ field 


of the dialogue box (b). 


 
− Click ‘OK’ when finished (c). 







12 Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (December 2018) 


  


 
 


 


 


c. Path: linear project components 


− Examples include: roads, sewer lines, railways, pipelines, trails, transmission lines, etc. 


   Clicking this button will bring up a dialogue box and a crosshair cursor (see below). 
Click as many times as necessary to create a line that represents your project 


feature. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


− You can rename the polygon by 


changing the entry in the ‘Name’ 


field of the dialogue box (a). 


 
− Click ‘OK’ when finished (b). 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


All drawn components will appear in the ‘Places’ sidebar under the ‘Temporary Places’ folder. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
4. Export the shapes to .KML to be shared. 


* Warning: If you have multiple shapes, they will need to be exported individually as separate .KML files. 
 
 
 
 


 
 







Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (December 2018) 
 


 


 


 


Annex D – Eligible / Ineligible Expenses for 


Approved Projects 
 


ELIGIBLE EXPENSES 
 


Eligible expenses will include the following: 


a) all costs considered to be direct and necessary for the successful implementation of an eligible project, in 
the opinion of Canada and Nova Scotia, excluding those identified under Ineligible Costs, below; 


b) the capital costs of constructing or renovating a tangible asset, as defined and determined according 
to generally accepted accounting principles in Canada; 


c) all planning (including plans and specifications), assessment and design costs specified in the agreement 
such as the costs of environmental planning, surveying, engineering, architectural supervision, testing and 
management consulting services, to a maximum of 15% of total funding award; 


d) costs related to meeting specific Program requirements, including completing climate lens assessments (as 
outlined in Section 6) and creating community employment benefit plans (costs for climate lens 
assessments can be incurred prior to project approval, but can only be paid if and when a project is 
approved by both the Province and Canada for contribution funding); 


e) the costs of engineering and environmental reviews, including environmental assessments and follow-up 
programs as defined in the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act 2012 and the costs of remedial 
activities, mitigation measures and follow-up identified in any environmental assessment; 


f) the costs of Aboriginal consultation, and where appropriate, accommodation; 


g) the costs directly associated with joint federal and provincial communication activities (press releases, 
press conferences, translation, etc.) and with federal and provincial project signage; and 


h) the incremental costs of the eligible recipient’s employees related to construction of the project may be 
included as eligible costs under the following conditions: 


i. The recipient is able to demonstrate that it is not economically feasible to tender a contract; 


ii. The employee or equipment is engaged directly in respect of the work that would have been the 
subject of the contract; and, 


iii. The arrangement is approved in advance and in writing by the Province and by Canada. 
 


Eligible costs are limited to the following: 


a) costs incurred between the project approval date and the project completion date set out in the Shared 
Cost Agreement, except for costs associated with completing climate lens assessments and creating 
community employment benefit plans, which are eligible before project approval, but can only be paid if 
and when a project is approved by the Province and Canada and a signed Shared Cost Agreement is in 
place. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Project Submission Guide — INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (December 2018) 
 


 
 


INELIGIBLE EXPENSES 
 


 The following are deemed ineligible costs: 


a) costs incurred prior to the approval of the project, except for expenditures associated with completing 
climate lens assessments and creating community employment benefit plans as required (but can only be 
paid if and when a project is approved by the Province and Canada and a signed Shared Cost Agreement is in 
place); 


b) incurred after the project completion date set out in the Shared Cost Agreement with the exception of 
expenditures related to audit and evaluation requirements pursuant to the agreement; 


c) costs related to developing a funding application and application supporting documentation; 


d) costs incurred for cancelled projects; 


e) costs of relocating entire communities; 


f) land acquisition; 


g) real estate and other fees related to purchasing land and buildings; 


h)  financing charges, legal fees and interest payments on loans, including those related to easements (e.g. 
associated surveys); 


i)  costs associated with operating expenses and regularly scheduled maintenance work; 


j)  leasing land, buildings and other facilities; 


k) leasing of equipment other than equipment directly related to the construction of the project; 


l) overhead costs, including salaries and other employments benefits, direct or indirect costs associated with 


m) operating expenses, administration and regularly scheduled maintenance work, and more specifically any 
costs related to planning, engineering, architecture, supervision, management and other activities normally 
carried out by staff, except those indicated in Eligible Expenditures; 


n) costs related to furnishing and non-fixed assets which are not essential for the operation of the asset/project; 


o) any goods and services costs which are received through donations or in kind; 


p) taxes for which the ultimate recipient is eligible for a tax rebate and all other costs eligible for rebates; 


q) all capital costs, including site preparation, vegetation removal and construction costs, until Canada has been 
satisfied that the federal requirements under the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act, 2012 (CEAA, 
2012), other applicable federal environmental assessment legislation that is or may come into force during 
the term of the Agreement, and other applicable agreements between Canada and Aboriginal groups have 
been met to the extent possible and continue to be met; and 


r) all capital costs, including site preparation, vegetation removal and construction costs, until Canada is 
satisfied that any legal duty to consult, and where appropriate, to accommodate Aboriginal groups or other 
federal consultation requirement, has been met and continues to be met. 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Ossinger, Tom <eossinger@digby.ca>; Phillips, Mark <markp@kentville.ca>; Pitman, Malcolm
<mpitman@chester.ca>; Renton, Beatrice <brenton@explorelunenburg.ca>; Rice, Kelly
<kelly.rice@westville.ca>; Richard MacLellan - RQM (richard.maclellan@bridgewater.ca)
<richard.maclellan@bridgewater.ca>; Shupe, Darren <cao@town.shelburne.ns.ca>; Simonds, Rob
<rsimonds@colchester.ca>; Smith, Ken <cao@barringtonmunicipality.com>; Stephane Cyr
(cao@municipality.clare.ns.ca) <cao@municipality.clare.ns.ca>; Town of Truro Admin
<jgallant@truro.ca>; Troke, Dan <Dan.troke@townofpictou.ca>; Walsh, Marie
<mjwalsh@cbrm.ns.ca>; White, Brian <Brian.white@trenton.ca>; Young, Joyce
<townoflockeport@ns.sympatico.ca>
Cc: Bellefontaine, Laura <Laura.Bellefontaine@novascotia.ca>; Peck, Mark A
<Mark.Peck@novascotia.ca>; Bennett, Shannon <Shannon.Bennett@novascotia.ca>; Pond, Emily A
<Emily.Pond@novascotia.ca>; Schwartzentruber, Mico <Mico.Schwartzentruber@novascotia.ca>;
Smith, Gordon T <Gordon.Smith@novascotia.ca>; Cox-Brown, Kathy M <Katharine.Cox-
Brown@novascotia.ca>; Stuckless, Hardy G <Hardy.Stuckless@novascotia.ca>; Bell, Jason
<Jason.Bell@novascotia.ca>; Betty MacDonald <BMacDonald@nsfm.ca>; 'Janice Wentzell'
<jwentzell@amans.ca>; Higdon, Krista <Krista.Higdon@novascotia.ca>; MacDonald, Elizabeth A
(CNS) (OSNS) <Elizabeth.MacDonald@novascotia.ca>; Bray, Nancy <Nancy.Bray@novascotia.ca>;
Dauphinee, Ron L <Ron.Dauphinee@novascotia.ca>; Shahwan, Ahmad
<Ahmad.Shahwan@novascotia.ca>
Subject: Call For Application under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program: Green -
Environmental Quality Stream
 
To:  CAOs, Clerk/Treasurers
 
Re: Call for Applications – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program
 
The Department of Municipal Affairs (DMA), on behalf of Canada and the Province of
Nova Scotia, is pleased to announce a call for applications under the Green -
Environmental Quality Stream of the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program
(ICIP).
 
The ICIP will create long-term economic growth, build inclusive, sustainable
communities and support a low carbon, green economy. The Green – Environmental
Quality Stream is focused on infrastructure that will support quality and management
improvements for drinking water, wastewater and stormwater, as well as reductions to
soil and air pollutants through solid waste diversion and remediation. Projects must
meet related outcomes to be eligible. Information on the Investing in Canada
Infrastructure Program Green Stream can be found at:
https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/plan/gi-iv-eng.html
 
In order for applications to be considered, the following must be adhered to:
 
-          A maximum of two applications will be accepted;

-          A joint application will be considered as one application from each municipal unit;

-          Projects must be prioritized via a Resolution of Council dated after April 1, 2018.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 31

mailto:eossinger@digby.ca
mailto:markp@kentville.ca
mailto:mpitman@chester.ca
mailto:brenton@explorelunenburg.ca
mailto:kelly.rice@westville.ca
mailto:richard.maclellan@bridgewater.ca
mailto:richard.maclellan@bridgewater.ca
mailto:cao@town.shelburne.ns.ca
mailto:rsimonds@colchester.ca
mailto:cao@barringtonmunicipality.com
mailto:cao@municipality.clare.ns.ca
mailto:cao@municipality.clare.ns.ca
mailto:jgallant@truro.ca
mailto:Dan.troke@townofpictou.ca
mailto:mjwalsh@cbrm.ns.ca
mailto:Brian.white@trenton.ca
mailto:townoflockeport@ns.sympatico.ca
mailto:Laura.Bellefontaine@novascotia.ca
mailto:Mark.Peck@novascotia.ca
mailto:Shannon.Bennett@novascotia.ca
mailto:Emily.Pond@novascotia.ca
mailto:Mico.Schwartzentruber@novascotia.ca
mailto:Gordon.Smith@novascotia.ca
mailto:Katharine.Cox-Brown@novascotia.ca
mailto:Katharine.Cox-Brown@novascotia.ca
mailto:Hardy.Stuckless@novascotia.ca
mailto:Jason.Bell@novascotia.ca
mailto:BMacDonald@nsfm.ca
mailto:jwentzell@amans.ca
mailto:Krista.Higdon@novascotia.ca
mailto:Elizabeth.MacDonald@novascotia.ca
mailto:Nancy.Bray@novascotia.ca
mailto:Ron.Dauphinee@novascotia.ca
mailto:Ahmad.Shahwan@novascotia.ca
https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/plan/gi-iv-eng.html


If Council cannot meet to prioritize projects before the January 18/19 closing date,
please indicate in your application submission email, the date that Council will
meet to set the priorities;

-          A detailed project cost estimate must be attached (separate from the table in the
application form);

-          Applications (including the Environmental and Aboriginal Consultation
Information Requirements Questionnaire (ACES)) must be fully completed with all
requested information;

-          Only projects that can start in 2019/20 or 2020/21 will be considered.

 
Applications will be accepted via email (Jason.Bell@novascotia.ca) from Monday
December 3 until midnight Friday January 18, 2019. 
 
The following documents are attached:
 
-          Fillable pdf application;

-          Environmental and Aboriginal Consultation Information Requirements
Questionnaire (ACES);

-          Project Submission Guide; 

-          Climate Lens Guidance Document

-          Business Case Guide for Major Infrastructure Projects (Federal contribution
greater than $50 million)

 
Please note the following:
 
- A Project Manager, which will be required for all projects, is an eligible expense, so
that cost should be included in the project total;
 
- Project applications received after January 18th 2019, will not be accepted. We
recommend that you test the application form well in advance of the closing date to
ensure you have the appropriate software;
 
-  Projects equal to or greater than $10m will require a Climate Lens report. While this
report will not be required at the time of application submission, municipalities with
projects over $10m will be notified on the timing requirement for the Climate Lens
submission.  The Climate Lens is an eligible expense and those costs should be
included in their project total;
 
- Municipalities submitting projects with federal contribution greater than $50 million
are directed to review the attachment regarding Major Projects;
 
- Projects equal to or greater than $10 million will be required to report on Community

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 32

mailto:Jason.Bell@novascotia.ca


Employment Benefits.  A template will be provided after project approval;
 
- We expect the next call for applications will likely be in the fall of 2019. However,
after reviewing the results of Round 1 this timing could change.   
 
 
If you have issues or questions with the application, please contact Jason Bell
(jason.bell@novascotia.ca or 902-424-5655) to ensure your application can be
submitted by the closing date.
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.
 
Regards,
Aileen

 
Aileen Waller-Hebb, P.Eng.
Director
Grants and Programs
Municipal Affairs
PO Box 216
Halifax, NS
B3J 2M4
 
902-424-7414
Aileen.Waller-Hebb@novascotia.ca
 
 

 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 33

mailto:jason.bell@novascotia.ca)o
mailto:Aileen.Waller-Hebb@novascotia.ca


Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

 

TO Committee of the Whole 
  
PREPARED BY Katrina Roefs, CPA, CA, Financial Analyst 
  
MEETING DATE December 18, 2018 
  
SUBJECT Multi Year Grant Commitments with Completed Projects 
  

 

ORIGIN 

• December 4, 2018 Council Motion 
• November 9, 2018 letter from the Berwick & District Community Association  

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council that existing grant commitment terms be followed 
until complete, subject to annual budget approval.  

INTENT 

Information on the cost and consequences of paying out all remaining multi-year grant commitments for 
projects that have been completed has been requested. This report sets out to address that request. 
 
DISCUSSION 

Cost of paying out all remaining multi-year grant commitments for projects that have been completed: 

There are eight community organizations who have grant funding commitments  set out during previous 
budget years. The details of these projects are summarized in Appendix A to this report. In total $716,000 
is remaining as commitments.  

Of the eight projects, the following five are complete:  

 

Details of each individual commitment are outlined in Appendix B. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 34



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

$461,000 represents one and a half cents on the residential tax rate (based on 2017/18 rates and 
assessment).  

Payment Options:  

Continued funding based on original commitment terms: 

Continuing to budget annually the amounts originally set out would result in all current commitments 
being paid in full by the 2022/23 budget year. The amount required can be budgeted each year and would 
not be a draw from our reserve funds.  

Payment of completed projects from operating reserve funds: 

The Operating reserves have a balance at March 31, 2018 of $8,671,800 of which $5,752,300 is held in 
the General Operating Fund. The remaining reserve balances are held for specific purposes including 
examples such as Unpaid Grants (airport), Municipal Sewer (restricted to sewer deficits), and Valley 
Waste Resource to reduce the impact on tax payers for additional contributions which may be required by 
VWRM. These funds would not be available for the payment of these multi-year grants these would need 
to be paid from the General Operating Reserve Fund.  

Items to consider when deciding on the use of operating reserve funds: 

• Operating reserve levels are part of the measures used to judge the financial health of a municipality. 
The chart below shows the Financial Conditional Indicator as calculated by the Province for our 
Operating Reserves: 
 

   
 
This indicator is comparing operating reserve funds to a single year’s operating expenses including 
debt payments. In order to determine how much a municipality has available if there was ever a major 
event or deficit which would require funds.  
 
Provincial Thresholds per the 2016/17 reporting period are as follows:  
 
Green: Low Risk – Greater than 20% 
Yellow: Moderate Risk – Between 10% - 20% 
Red: High Risk – Below 10% 
 
The calculation by the province uses the total balance of all our operating reserves including those 
linked to specific projects. Based on these calculations we have a preliminary calculation of 29.2% for 
2017/18 which is above the Provincial threshold of 20% for moderate risk, however we are below the 
rural municipal average from 2016/17 of 42%.  
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 35



Municipality of the County of Kings 
Request for Decision 
 

If the calculation was performed using only our General Operating Reserve of $5,752,300 we would 
be at 19.4% and would be considered in the yellow group for moderate risk.  
 

• Interest earned on our bank balances would be impacted if we paid these out in one lump sum. 
Based on current interest rates we would earn $10,600 annually on $461,000. Other organizations 
have incurred debt and interest to finance projects. Earned interest is used as a revenue in the 
annual operating budget reducing the impact on tax rates. 
 

• Projects have been identified as Council Strategic Priorities such as broadband, solar, J-Class Road 
paving, etc., which may require operating reserve funds in the future.  

 
• Ongoing asset management reviews may identify a cash requirement (transfer of funds) to 

replacement reserves. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

• No financial implication at this time, if an accelerated option is approved, payment of $461,000 would 
be paid and drawn from the general operating reserve (61-4-460-270) 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

A community engagement initiative is not required as the subject was approved as part of the Operating 
Budget. The community had the opportunity to provide public comments as part of that process. This 
report is providing an update on those budgets. 

ALTERNATIVES  

1) Payment of $461,000 from the general operating reserve (61-4-460-270) to those organizations 
that have completed their projects and  have funding commitments from the Municipality; 
including Berwick & District Community Association ($121,000); Village of New Minas ($160,000); 
L’Arche Home Fires ($30,000); Town of Kentville Skate Park ($50,000); Western Kings Rink 
Association ($100,000).  
 

2) Accelerated payment to Berwick and District Community Association as per their written request 
and continued multiyear funding for the other grant commitments as no formal requests have 
been received.  

IMPLEMENTATION 

• Respond in the negative to the request for an accelerated payment received from Berwick & 
District Community Association. 

• Inclusion of multi-year grants in the upcoming 2019/20 budget at existing commitment levels. 

APPENDICES 

• Appendix A: summary of existing multi-year grant commitments 
• Appendix B: 1-5 individual summaries for multi-year commitments with completed projects 

APPROVALS 

Wendy Salsman, Interim Director of Finance & IT December 7, 2018 
  
Rob Frost, Deputy CAO December 7, 2018 
  
Scott Conrod, CAO December 11, 2018 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 36



Appendix A) 
Summary of existing multi‐year grant commitments

Organization Project Funding Year Start
#of Years 
Committed

Commitment End 
*

Total 
Commitment

Remaining 
Commitment

Project Stage of 
Completion

Funds to be dispersed if 
completed projects are paid 

in full now

Berwick & District Community Association Phase 2 KMCC 2013/14 8 2021/22 415,000                  121,000                  Complete 121,000                                    

Village of New Minas Louis Millett Centre 2012/13 10 2022/23 500,000                  160,000                  Complete 160,000                                    

L'Arche Home Fires
Renovation of former church 
into workshop 2014/15 6 2020/21 150,000                  30,000                     Complete 30,000                                      

Landscape of Grand Pre
Site management coordination 
UNESCO Grand Pre 2012/13 10 2022/23 250,000                  80,000                    

 On going ‐ 
operations  ‐                                             

Kentville Skate Park Association/Town of 
Kentville Kentville Skate Park 2017/18 3 2019/20 150,000                  50,000                     Complete 50,000                                      

Western Kings Rink Association Cooling plant replacement 2018/19 3 2020/21 150,000                  100,000                  Complete 100,000                                    

Coastarts Assoc. Building the Future Project 2018/19 4 2021/22 200,000                  150,000                  On going  

Halls Harbour Community Development 
Association Walkway 2018/19 2 2019/20 55,000                     25,000                     On going

716,000                ‐                         461,000                                  

* Note ‐  During the 2015/16 budget multi year grants were reduced by 20% with a motion that they could apply for that 20% in the year after their final committed payment. This adds an additional funding year to the 
commitments to Berwick & District Community Association, Village of New Minas, L'Arche Home Fires, and Landscape of Grand Pre during the final year they will be able to apply for the 20% lost during the 2015/16 budget 
year.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 37



Appendix B ‐ 1

Berwick & District Community Association 
KMCC Phase 2 Funding History

Total Original Commitment 415,000        

Budget Year
Amount 
Budgeted

2013/14 30,000          
2014/15 55,000          
2015/16 44,000           Note 1
2016/17 55,000          
2017/18 55,000          
2018/19 55,000          
Budgeted to date 294,000        

Remaining Commitment 121,000        

Originally approved in the 2013/14 operating budget for $30,000 plus 
a commitment for $55,000 per year for the next seven years.

Note 1) During the 2015/16 budget multi year grants were reduced by 
20% with a motion that they could apply for that 20% in the year after 
their final committed payment.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 38



Appendix B ‐ 2

Village of New Minas
Louis Millett Community Complex

Total Original Commitment 500,000        

Budget Year
Amount 
Budgeted

2012/13 50,000          
2013/14 50,000          
2014/15 50,000          
2015/16 40,000           Note 1
2016/17 50,000          
2017/18 50,000          
2018/19 50,000          

340,000        

Remaining Commitment 160,000        

Note 1) During the 2015/16 budget multi year grants were reduced by 
20% with a motion that they could apply for that 20% in the year after 
their final committed payment.

Originally approved in the 2012/13 budget year as $500,000 to be 
paid over 10 years in installments of $50,000.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 39



Appendix B ‐ 3

L'Arche Home Fires
Renovation of Hall

Total Original Commitment 150,000        

Budget Year
Amount 
Budgeted

2014/15 25,000          
2015/16 20,000           Note 1
2016/17 25,000          
2017/18 25,000          
2018/19 25,000          
Budgeted to date 120,000        

Remaining Commitment 30,000          

Originally approved in the 2014/15 budget year as $150,000 to be 
paid over 6 years in installments of $25,000.

Note 1) During the 2015/16 budget multi year grants were reduced by 
20% with a motion that they could apply for that 20% in the year after 
their final committed payment.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 40



Appendix B ‐ 4

Kentville Skate Park Association / Town of Kentville
Kentville Skate Park  

Total Original Commitment 150,000        

Budget Year
Amount 
Budgeted

2017/18 50,000          
2018/19 50,000          
Budgeted to date 100,000        

Remaining Commitment 50,000          

Originally approved in the 2017/18 budget year as $150,000 to be 
paid over 3 years in installments of $50,000.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 41



Appendix B ‐ 5

Western Kings Rink Association
Cooling Plant 

Total Original Commitment 150,000        

Budget Year
Amount 
Budgeted

2018/19 50,000          
Budgeted to date 50,000          

Remaining Commitment 100,000        

Originally approved in the 2018/19 budget year as $150,000 to be 
paid over 3 years in installments of $50,000.

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 42



                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 43



                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 44



Royal Canadian Mounted Police 
Soutliwest Nova District 
District Policing Officer 

November 15, 2018 

Mayor Peter Muttart 

Superintendent Julie Moss 

Municipality of the County of Kings 
PO Box 100 
Kentville, NS B4N 3 W3 

Dear Mayor Muttart: 

lft ISCIE fl\flE\O 
N�W 2 � 2018 

---------

92 treet 
New Minas, NS B4N 3E8 

Tel: (902) 679-5738 

Having recently joined the senior management team with the Royal Canadian Mounted Police 
(RCMP) in Nova Scotia, I thought it important to reach out to formally introduce myself. 

I am currently fulfilling the role of the District Policing Officer for the Southwest Nova District. 
My policing career began in New Brunswick more than twenty-six years ago and I have spent 
much of my time in the Province of British Columbia. Earlier this year, I was afforded the 
opportunity to return to the Maritimes. 

As you may be aware, Southwest Nova District is comprised of eleven RCMP Detachments in 
Kings, Annapolis, Digby, Yarmouth, Shelburne, Queens, Lunenburg and Hants Counties. I am 
quickly becoming acquainted with topical issues in the Province and in particular challenges that 
we are facing in the Southwest Nova District. 

If there are issues that you wish to discuss in a timely fashion please do not hesitate to reach out 
to Heather Levy at heather.levy@rcmp-grc.gc.ca or at 902-679-5738 to arrange a time. I look 
forward to meeting you, in person, in the near future. 

Kind Regards, 

Julie Moss, Superintendent 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 45



 

 
P. O. Box 445, 
Berwick, N.S. 

B0P 1E0 
 

 
 
Municipality of the County of Kings,     November 30, 2018 
Box 100, 87 Cornwallis St., 
Kentville, N.S. 
B4N 3W3 
 
 
 
The 73rd Berwick Gala Days was a roaring success!  The generous grant from the County of Kings was a 
big part of that success. 
 
Because of Berwick Gala Days’ focus on raising funds to support youth programs in Berwick and 
surrounding areas, we struggle to offer events that will attract people to the grounds without costing 
too much.  The increased funding allowed us to add some events and services that increased the 
population we reached and therefore the revenue we generated. 
 
Quiet Touch a Truck was added for the first time this year.  For the first hour, families with children who 
have difficulties with too much noise and stimulation were able to participate.  This was very well 
received by families with children with Autism Spectrum Disorder as well as families with children who 
just don’t like noise.  We also added a Quiet Zone at the very start of the Grand Street Parade.  Entries in 
the Parade were asked to not run their flashing lights, blow horns or create noise until they made the 
turn onto Commercial Street.  Even the marching band was silent.  This year three families took 
advantage of the Quiet Zone, but we are sure that this will grow!  Some of these families have not been 
able to attend the Parade for years. 
 
Officially, the County of Kings was the sponsor of the Antiques and Collectibles Sale.  This was a new 
event this year and was very well received.  The County was recognized during this event and a banner 
bearing their name and logo was displayed throughout the event. 
 
For the past number of years, we have struggled to find events that would entice parade goers to come 
back to the fairgrounds after the Parade.  With the increased funding, we were able to hire a motorcycle 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 46



2 
 

group from Dartmouth who performed two shows and rode in the Parade.  These performances also 
appealed to people who might have otherwise gone to Digby rather than staying in Berwick. 
 
From the first event, straight through to the end of day on Monday, the crowds were amazing.  We 
estimate 5000 people watched the parade and close to 6000 people watched the fireworks.    6000 
people paid to enter the grounds but children under 12 were free so there were many more who 
enjoyed the festival.  The restaurants were busy, visitors shopped in local businesses, B & Bs were full!  
The economic spinoff to the community is huge. 
 
As a committee we endeavored to source as much as possible locally.  T-shirts were printed locally, 
banners were produced by a local business, promotional material was printed by a local printer, food 
was purchased through local businesses and much more.  Approximately $35,000 was returned directly 
to the community. 
 
During and after the festival, we heard many comments that Gala Days 2018 was like the Gala Days that 
people remembered from their childhood.  This is the highest praise that the Committee could receive. 
 
Last year once all expenses were paid, we turned $11,000 over to seven groups representing youth 
programs.  This year we have been able to support eleven youth groups.  Because we had the funds to 
do it, we also made smaller donations to four non-profit groups who are currently running major 
fundraising programs.  These non-profit groups have helped and supported us for many years and we 
were pleased to be able to give back in this way.  In total, over $26,000 was distributed among these 
hard-working groups. 
 
Final financial statements will be available once all bills and credits have been received. 
 
On behalf of the Berwick Gala Days Committee and all the groups who benefited from this year’s 
festival, a huge thank you to the County of Kings for your support.  We couldn’t have done it without 
you.  We would be happy to provide any further information you require. 
 
 
Sincerely; 
 

 
 
Shoneth Salsman  
For the Berwick Gala Days Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 47



 THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS 
 
To:  Committee of the Whole 
Subject: Annapolis Valley Trails Coalition Board 
From:  Paul Spicer  
Date:  December 18, 2018 
 
 
Due to inclement weather, the Annapolis Valley Trails Coalition Board has not met since 
October. Next meeting date is January 8, 2019, 1:30pm in the Orchards Room within the 
Municipal Complex. 
 
Same agenda as previously cancelled meetings with Students from COGS presenting. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Paul Spicer  
Councillor District 5 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 48



  

 THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS 
 
To:  Committee of the Whole 
Subject: Audit Committee  
From:  Councillor Spicer, Chair 
Date:  December 18, 2018 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The inaugural meeting of the Audit Committee was held on November 6, 2018.  
Members present were Councillor Armstrong, Councillor Winsor, Councillor Spicer, 
Mayor Muttart, and citizen member Quentin Hill. Regrets were received from Councillor 
Hodges and citizen member Macael Baxter. 
 
There was a call for nominations for Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit Committee. 
  
The Audit Committee appointed Councillor Spicer as Chair. 
The Audit Committee appointed Councillor Armstrong as the Vice-Chair. 
 
The Committee discussed setting a regular schedule of meetings but decided that until 
the training of each committee member has been completed, it would be difficult to 
assume the frequency of meetings needed to complete a work plan. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 49



THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS 
To:   Committee of the Whole 
Subject:  Kentville Joint Fire Services Committee 
From:   Pauline Raven, Chair 
Date:   December 18, 2018 
______________________________________________________________________  

1. The Joint Fire Services Committee met at 4PM on November 27, as scheduled, and 
with all but one member present, including Fire Chief Brian Desloges. Also in 
attendance were Deputy Chief Scott Hamilton, Deb Crowell (Director of Finance, 
Town of Kentville) and Matt Boates (Secretary KVFD). 

2. The Director of Finance reported that: 
i. Overall expenditures were less than the benchmark for operations, noting 

that some expenses are not booked until later in the year.  
ii. It is expected that operational expenditures will be close to budget at year 

end. 
iii. Overall expenditures were greater than the benchmark for the fire rate 

firefighting budget. The expenditure for the live fire training building 
budgeted for this year will not be made. (Since the meeting this has been 
approved by the KVFD Society). This amount will be transferred to a 
reserve and will be deducted from any amount sought through rate-payers 
for 2019-2020. 

3. Highlights of the Chief’s Report are: 
i. His recommendation to declare a 2008 Dodge Pickup, a 2015 United 

Trailer and a 2008 John Deere Gator as surplus equipment was 
unanimously supported by motion. The equipment is not necessary and is 
seldom used. Proceeds to be deposited in the Capital Reserve Account. 

ii. Valley Communications has approached the KVFD to utilize department 
as the backup communication facility in the event of a failure at their 
facility. A written agreement is being prepared. 

4. 2019-2020 Budget Planning. A healthy discussion occurred regarding both 
Operations and Area Rate budgets. The following timelines were approved: 

i. Draft budgets would be distributed electronically to JFSC members by 
December 11, 2018. 

ii. To ensure questions are not duplicated and to give everyone an 
opportunity to review questions, all JFSC members’ questions should be 
sent to all members ASAP. The Chair will compile and send as one 
package to the Secretary by December 17, 2018. 

iii. A response to questions will be sent by December 20, 2018. 
iv. JFSC will meet on January 8, 2019, to review the budgets and discuss 

any needed changes and ratify the budgets with any amendments 
required.  

v. JFSC approved budget will be sent to the Town of Kentville and the 
County of Kings by January 15, 2019.  

vi. We agreed that an additional meeting between January 8 and January 15 
would be set, if required between January 8th and 15, 2019 should 
additional amendments be required. 

5. Next meeting of the JFSC will be at 2PM on January 8, 2019. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 50



  

THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS 
 

To:  Committee of the Whole 
Subject: Kings Transit Authority Update 
From:  Pauline Raven, Vice-Chair  
Date:  December 18, 2018 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. The regular meeting of the Authority occurred as scheduled on November 28. All 

members were present with the exception of Deputy Mayor Morton, Town of Berwick; 
Councillor Walsh attended as the alternate.   

2. Authority Members and Service Partners welcomed Councillor Wendy Donovan, who 
had been appointed to KTA by the Town of Wolfville. This appointment left the Chair 
position, that had been held by Councillor Mercedes Brian, Town of Wolfville, open.  

3. It was decided to delay election of the Chair and Vice-Chair as the appointees for the 
Municipality of the County of Kings were still to be determined. 

4. “Hotspot Parking and Transit” is up and running. This is a third piece of “customer 
experience” improvements rolled out during the last year of the former General 
Manager’s tenure and during the first several months with the current General 
Manager. The synopsis below outlines how these add to KTA’s ability to better serve 
the public transit user and to attract new riders: 

i. Free WIFI - Our routes are long and many riders use transit to move 
between towns. Onboard WIFI permits riders to make better use of their 
time on the bus. The connections are fast, streaming is good, and use is 
unlimited. 

ii. DoubleMap - This app allows riders to track where the bus they want to 
catch is currently located on the route. This limits the amount of time a 
rider needs to spend waiting at a bus stop. This is especially important to a 
transit service like ours where there can be delays and where it will be 
another hour before a second bus would arrive. 

iii. Hotspot Parking and Transit - This app allows riders to purchase single 
tickets or monthly bus passes for presentation on a cell phone and 
validation by drivers. This means riders do not have to have cash to ride 
the bus and that they can purchase passes without having to go to a store 
or come to the KTA depot. 

5. A decision was made to apply to the Solar Electricity for Community Building 
Program when the 2019 Program opens. Much of the work to apply was completed 
during the first round of applications. 

6. Disappointment was expressed by Board members that the KTA Intermunicipal 
Service Agreement review had not started. The most accurate estimate possible for 
when this work would begin has been requested through the CAO assigned to KTA 
(Mark Phillips). 

7. An in-camera session was held to discuss contractual matters related to the Acadia 
U-Pass proposal. 

8. It was decided that a KTA meeting would not be held in December. 
9. The next regular Board meeting of the Kings Transit Authority will be held at 4PM on 

January 23, Board Room at KTA Headquarters, Crescent Drive, New Minas. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 51



 THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS 
 
To:  Committee of the Whole 
Subject: Kings Youth Council Report 
From:  Vice Chair Kali McMullin 
Date:  December 18, 2018 
 
 
We met in Council Chambers on December 3rd, 2018 at 6 PM. The CAO presented the 
2018-2021 Strategic Plan wherein Good Governance, Environmental Stewardship, 
Economic Development, Strong Communities, and Financial Sustainability were 
discussed. Within this discussion, we asked the CAO if there were measures to obtain 
more youth. He responded, alongside Emily Lutz and Meg Hodges, highlighting the fact 
that municipalities within Kings County are creating discussion around encouraging youth, 
which is what was envisioned when the KYC was created.  
 
We talked about the future of the KYC and how each Councillor thinks we are doing 
progress wise. We reached a mutual understanding that we got the preliminary things 
dealt with and it is now time to start acting.  
 
Next meeting is January 7th, 2019 at 7 PM in Council Chambers. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 52



Committee Reports – Jim Winsor 
Reporting period – December 18, 2018 Committee of the Whole 

 
Budget and Finance Committee  
 
Last Meeting – Monday, November 19 (This will be my last report as I am no longer on 
the Committee) 

Further to issues raised at the November Council Meeting we had discussion as follows: 

• Citizen Engagement in the budget process – Staff advised us that they had 
considered ways of using social media to inform the public of critical matters and 
processes and to seek their comments. 

• Youth Council Engagement – The Chair and finance staff will meet  to discuss 
making a presentation to the Youth Council and discuss with them their critical 
areas of interest and ways in which they might be engaged in the budget 
development process. 

• Recreation Funding Programs – Staff have considered processes that would 
more equitably assure recreational funding to all associations and entities delivering 
recreational programs, not just towns and villages. There is much analytical work to 
be completed prior to next budget. It was also noted that some of these entities 
presently access funding through other programs and that would have to be 
factored in/out as the case may be. 

Fire Department Budgets – The Committee discussed whether or not it should provide a 
recommendation to Council for particular instructions to Fire Departments for their 
guidance in the construct of their budget (i.e. same budget as last year, last year budget 
plus COLA, or budget based on their needs). The Committee could not agree on a 
recommendation to Council but felt that staff should be at the next Fire Services Advisory 
Committee to just caution them that budgets will be tight. 

Kings Regional Sewer Committee (This will be my last report as I am no longer on the 
Committee) 

 
Last Meeting – November 15, 2018 Operations are relatively normal. Staff have been 
concerned about trespassers at the sewage lagoon in New Minas. The Nova Scotia Bird 
Society has been informally visiting the sewage lagoon to view various waterfowl in the 
settling ponds while staff have been on site but have been denied access of late because 
of concerns of liability. They have formally requested that an arrangement be established 
to allow their continued access to the site. 

The Committee also tasked the Technical Subcommittee to commence work on a project 
to harmonize the sewer discharge bylaws of the Municipality of Kings, the Town of 
Kentville and the Village of New Minas. 

 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 53



Kings Point to Point Committee  
 
Last Meeting - October 23, 2018 Passenger volumes and revenues continue to be up. 
 
Province hosted a media event in Kentville on August 3rd to announce an increase to both 
the Community Transportation Assistance Program and the Accessibility Transportation 
Program. 
 
The Rural Transportation Association is working with the Department of Energy to 
research and implement a Province wide dispatch system connecting all community 
transit organizations. 
 
Approval was received in the amount of $55,629 (ATAP grant) which was 50% of the cost 
of two full size vans. 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 54



1 | P a g e  
 

 

  

Board Initiatives Report – December 2018 

 

NSFM Vision: Effective local government and strong, sustainable communities 
 
NSFM Mission: To enable effective local government for Nova Scotia’s communities by 
facilitating strategic advocacy, education and collaboration 

 

Initiatives  

1. Partnership Framework 

 
A report on the progress under the Partnership Framework was approved at the 
Ministers Roundtable meeting with the NSFM Executive on October 30, 2018.  The 
report was distributed to members on November 5th and is on the NSFM website 
under the Advocacy tab. 
 
Discussions between the NSFM, AMANS and Department of Municipal Affairs 
continue.  
 
The Fire Services Committee met November 22. 

 

2. Report on 2018 Resolutions 
 

The 2018 resolutions and Statements of Municipal Concern were sent to the 
Province for consideration on November 22.  It is anticipated the resolutions will be 
discussed at the next Ministers Round Table meeting, tentatively being scheduled 
for January. 

 
CAP:  The NSFM President, Regional Chair and Towns Chair met with 
representatives of the real estate sector, mortgage brokers, property lawyers and 
appraisers, along with AMANS and Turner Drake.  There was agreement to work 
collaboratively on communications around the CAP issue.  Further meetings will be 
held. 
 
Extended Producer Responsibility:  The Solid Waste Priorities group met to 
discuss the outreach to the business community to gather their feedback on the 
NSFM proposal.  
 
 
Municipal Funding:  The NSFM Executive met with Minister Casey as part of 
Advocacy Days on November 8, and the Executive shared the resolution with her.   

 
Roads: The Joint Committee on Roads held their first meeting November 1, and 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 55



2 | P a g e  
 

their next meeting is December 6.  NSFM Committee member is Councillor 
Lennie White, Westville.  AMANS representatives are Greg Herrett, Amherst and 
Chris McNeill, Queens 
 
 

 

3. Cannabis Legalization 

 

NSFM continues to raise the need for new revenues for municipalities to address 
the implications of the legalization of cannabis. 

 

The NSFM/AMA Municipal Cannabis Working Group has been meeting to 
discuss the implications to NS municipalities. Training in preparation for 
legalization and implications for the workplace is being launched. Discussions 
continue on the implications for planning, bylaws etc. 
 
The committee is beginning to prepare for the legalization of edibles. 

 

4. Asset Management 
 

NFSM continues to support municipalities with asset management planning, as a requirement 
of the 2014-24 Gas Tax Fund Agreement.  
 
Workshops Integrating Climate Consideration into Asset Management Planning 
In mid-June, NSFM received word that FCM approved our funding proposal to the Municipal 
Asset Management Program (MAMP) to deliver two 1-day workshops to help municipalities 
incorporate climate risks into their asset management planning practices. NSFM is working 
with a local group – ClimAction Services – to deliver the workshops aimed at enhancing local 
asset management practices by providing municipalities with the information and tools to 
include climate considerations into their long-term infrastructure planning. This will help 
position them to take necessary steps to proactively adapt their assets to climate risks.   
 
The first workshop was held on Nov. 26 in Dartmouth and was very well received.  The second 
workshop, scheduled to take place in Middleton on November 28, has been postponed until 
early January to try and increase attendance.   
 
Online Asset Management Courses 
NSFM has developed two online resources to support municipalities in understanding and 
implementing sound asset management practices, which will help them make informed, 
proactive infrastructure and budget decisions based on the priorities and needs of their 
communities. On October 31, NSFM launched the following courses to support municipalities 
with their asset management planning efforts: 
 
The Basics of Asset Management for Elected Officials to provide elected officials with a 
simple and clear understanding of asset management and how to use it to inform 
infrastructure decision making and improve service delivery  (cost:  $175.00) 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 56



3 | P a g e  
 

The Data Collection Standard Operating Procedure Guide for Linear Assets to provide an 
overview to the first set of tools developed through the Nova Scotia Asset Management 
Program by the Province of Nova Scotia for linear data collection  (cost:  Free) 

The courses can be accessed at:  www.nsfm.ca/nsfm-asset-management.html  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5. Upcoming Events 
 

                    COTW 2018/12/18 Page 57

http://www.nsfm.ca/nsfm-asset-management.html

	AGENDA
	MINUTES: November 20, 2018
	PRESENTATION: VON Annapolis Valley
	PRESENTATION: The Booker School
	ADMIN: Strategic Plan 2018-2021
	ADMIN: Municipal Branding/Visual Identity
	ADMIN: Youth Travel Assistance Program
	EPW/FINANCE: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Green
	FINANCE: Multi Year Grant Commitments with Completed Projects
	CORRESPONDENCE: Minister of Fisheries and Oceans re: Offshore Oil and Gas Drilling
	CORRESPONDENCE: RCMP District Policing Officer Southwest Nova
	CORRESPONDENCE: Berwick Gala Days Thank You
	BOARD REPORT: Annapolis Valley Trails Coalition Board
	COMMITTEE REPORT: Audit Committee
	COMMITTEE REPORT: Kentville Joint Fire Services Committee
	BOARD REPORT: Kings Transit Authority Board
	COMMITTEE REPORT: Kings Youth Council
	COMMITTEE REPORT: Budget & Finance Committee
	COMMITTEE REPORT: Regional Sewer Committee
	BOARD REPORT: Kings Point to Point Board
	BOARD REPORT: NSFM Board Initiatives Report
	RETURN to AGENDA



